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DISCLAIMER

1) Though adequate care has been taken while preparing the RfS document, the bidder(s) shall
satisfy themselves that the document is complete in al respect. Intimation regarding any
discrepancy shall be given by the prospective bidders to the office of SIVN Ltd immediately.

2) If no intimation is received from any bidder within 21 (Twenty one) days from the date of
issuance of RfS documents, it shall be considered that the document is completein all respect
and has been received/ acknowledged by the bidder(s).

3) SJIVN Ltd. reserves the right to modify, amend or supplement this document.

4) This RfS document has been prepared in good faith and on best endeavour basis. Neither SIVN
Ltd. nor their employees or advisors make any representation or warranty, express or implied,
or accept any responsibility or liability, whatsoever, in respect of any statements or omissions
herein, or the accuracy, completeness or reliability of information, and shall incur no liability
under any law, statute, rules or regulations as to the accuracy, reliability or completeness of this
document, even if any loss or damage is caused by any act or omission on their part.

5) In case of any discrepancy in the documents uploaded on the websites of SIVN Ltd, ISN-ETS
and CPPP, the documents uploaded on the ISN-ETS website will prevail.

Place: New Delhi Date: 31.01.2024
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SECTION 1:
INVITATION FOR BIDS
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1.1
1.11.

112

1.13.

1.14.

1.15.

1.16.

1.1.7.

1.18.

SECTION-I: INVITATION FOR BIDS

INTRODUCTION:

SIVN Limited (hereinafter referred as “SJVN/Renewable Energy Implementing Agency”)
is aJoint Venture of Govt. of India & Govt. of Himacha Pradesh and a Mini Ratna,
Category-lI and Schedule — ‘A’ CPSE under administrative control of Ministry of Power,
Govt. of India.

SIVN has been designated as Intermediary Procurer/Renewable Energy Implementing
Agency (REIA) vide Office Memorandum F. No. 283/33/2020-GRID SOLAR dated 24"
April, 2023 issued by Ministry of New and Renewable Energy (MNRE), Govt of India.

With the objective to provide a framework for promotion of large grid connected wind-
solar PV hybrid system for optimal and efficient utilization of transmission infrastructure
and land, reducing the variability in renewable power generation and achieving better grid
stability, MNRE had issued the Wind-Solar Hybrid Policy on 14.05.2018 (along with its
amendment on 11.10.2018).

Subsequently, Ministry of Power, Govt. of India has issued “Guidelines for Tariff Based
Competitive Bidding Process for Procurement of Power from Grid Connected Wind Solar
Hybrid Projects” vide the Gazette of India Notification No 202 dated 21.08.2023,
including subsequent amendments and clarifications thereto.

This RfS document has been prepared in line with the above Guidéines issued by MNRE,
including its subsequent amendments and clarifications.

As part of the above scheme, SIVN hereby invites proposals for “Selection of Hybrid
Power Developers for setting up of 1500 MW |STS-connected Wind-Solar Hybrid Power
Projects in India under Tariff-Based Competitive Bidding”. SIVN shall enter into a Power
Purchase Agreement (PPA) with the successful Bidders selected based on this RfS for
purchase of Power for a period of 25 years based on the terms, conditions and provisions
of the RfS and PPA. The standard PPA document is available for download from the | SN-
ETS porta https.//www.bharat-el ectronictender.com and SJVN’s website www.gvn.nic.in.

Power procured by SIVN from the above Projects has been provisioned to be sold to the
different Buying Entities of India The details of Buying Entities shall be intimated at a
later date. SIVN shall at its discretion be entitled to substitute any entity in other states
only for selling the power procured from the selected Bidders. SIVN shal be an
intermediary nodal agency/procurer for procurement of power supplied by the Hybrid
Power Developer (HPD)/Hybrid Power Generator (HPG) and sale of such power to the
Buying Entity(ies) entirely on back-to-back basis, based on due performance by the Hybrid
Power Developer (HPD) as well as the Buying Entity(ies).

The Bidders will be free to avail fisca incentives like Accelerated Depreciation,
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1.1.9.

1.1.10.

1.1.11.

1.1.12.

Concessiona Customs and Excise Duties, Tax Holidays etc. as available for such Projects.
The same will not have any bearing on comparison of bids for selection. As equal
opportunity is being provided to al bidders at the time of tendering itself, it is up to the
bidders to avail various tax and other benefits. No claim shal arise on SJVN for any
liability if bidders are not able to avail fiscal incentives and this will not have any bearing
on the applicable tariff. SIVN does not however, give a representation on the availability
of fiscal incentive and submission of bid by the bidder shall be independent of such
availability or non-availability as the case may be of the fiscal incentives.

No separate Central Financial Assistance is envisaged for implementation of the Projects
selected under this RfS.

The minimum quantum of power that can be offered by the Bidder shall be 50 MW and
above for projects connected to inter-state transmission system subject to the condition that
the rated power capacity of one resource (wind or solar) shall be at least 33% of the total
contracted capacity and the maximum guantum of power shall be 750 MW. The total
cumul ative capacity of power to be awarded under this RfS shall be 1500 MW.

A Bidder, including its Parent, Affiliate or Ultimate Parent or any Group Company shall
submit a single bid offering a minimum quantum of Contracted Capacity of 50 MW and a
maximum quantum of 750 MW, in the prescribed formats. The Contracted Capacity shall
be quoted in multiple of 10 MW only.

Note: In case acommon Company/Companies directly or indirectly hold(s) more than 10%
but less than 26% shareholding in more than one Bidder participating in the RfS, each of
such Bidders will be required to submit the Disclosure as per Format 7.8A. In al other
cases, Format 7.8 will be applicable.

Bidders, including its Affiliates, who have aready installed wind solar hybrid power plants
or are in the process of constructing such plants and have untied capacity may also
participate in the bid. In such case, they will be given the benefit of alonger duration of
PPA, commensurate to the duration between the actual date of commencement of supply
of power and Scheduled Commencement of Supply Date (SCSD). Bidders, including its
Affiliates, who have already set up capacity or who have spare untied capacity (that is
unencumbered from any power supply commitments or power purchase agreements and is
available for augmenting the proposed RE power under this RfS) may also participate in
the bid.

The bidders will be selected by the process of e-bidding (Single Stage Two Envelope
Bidding Process. Envelope-l: Technica Bid and Envelope-ll: Financia Bid) to be
followed by e- reverse auction process for selection of bidders. For conducting electronic
tendering, SIVN is using the portal https://www.bharat-el ectronictender.com (i.e. ETS
Portal) of M/s ISN Electronic Tender Services Ltd. The portal is aso referred to as
Electronic Tender System® (ETYS).
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1.2 INVITATION FOR BIDS:

On behalf of SIVN Limited (SIVN/Renewable Energy Implementation Agency(REIA)),
ONLINE e-Tender Enquiry under Single Stage Two Envelope Bidding Process (Technical
Bid & Financia Bid) are hereby invited from the Hybrid Power Developers (HPDs) who
are meeting the Qualification Requirements (QR) stipulated in Section IV for “Selection
of Hybrid Power Developers for setting up of 1500 MW [ISTS-connected Wind-Solar
Hybrid Power Projects in India under Tariff-Based Competitive Bidding” on Build- Own-
Operate (BOO) basis. SIVN shall enter into a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with the
successful Bidder(s) selected based on this RfS for purchase of Hybrid Power for a period
of 25 years based on the terms, conditions and provisions of the RfS and PPA. The
standard PPA document is avalable for download from |ISN-ETS portd
https://www.bhar at- electr onictender.com and SIVN’s website www.g vn.nic.in.

1.3 BIDINFORMATION SHEET:

Sr. No. Description
1) RfS No. SIVN/CC-Delhi/REIA/2024/HYBRID-2
2) RfS Date 31.01.2024

Sdection of Hybrid Power Deveopers for
stting up of 1500 MW |STS-connected
3) Name of Work Wind-Solar Hybrid Power Projects in India
under Tariff-Based Competitive Bidding, on
Build-Own-Operate (BOO) basis.

Open e-Tender (Single Stage two Envelope

4) Mode of Tender system).

Amount: INR 29,500/- (Indian Rupees
Twenty Nine Thousand Five Hundred
Document Fee/Cost of RfS | Only) including GST to be submitted
Document (Non-refundable) | through NEFT/ RTGS transfer in the
account of SJVN, aong with the response to
RfS.

5)

Rs. 15 Lakh + 18% GST for each Project,

to be submitted through NEFT/RTGS
transfer in the account of SJVN, aong with
the response to RfS.

6) Bid Processing Fee

Amount: INR 12,26,000/- (Indian Rupees
Twelve Lakhs and Twenty-Six Thousand
only) per MW per Project to be submitted in
the form of Bank Guarantee aong with the
response to RfS.

Earnest Money  Deposit

| EMD)

8) Performance Bank Guarantee | As per the RfS document.

9) Document available  for

downloading Asper NIT on ISN-ETS portal.
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Sr. No. Description
15.02.2024 at 11:00 Hrs
Venue: Conference Room, SIVN Ltd., 6th
Floor, Tower No.1, Office Block, NBCC
10) Meeting 110023 (In case of change in venue, the
same shal be intimated separately OR
through Video Conferencing (Link will be
provided on the designated website prior to
the Pre-bid meeting.)
Last Date and Time for . ]
11) submission of Online Bids 15.03.2024 till 18:00 Hrs
Last Date and Time for
12) submission of Hard Copy of | 19.03.2024 till 18:00 Hrs
Bids
13) ([))fa'tl'eecr%ni C;”Q?d of OPeNing | 54 43 2024 at 11:00 Hrs
1) Date & Time of Opening | Shall be intimated to technically qualified
of Price Bids. bidders.
Will beinformed to eligible bidders.
15) | e-Reverse Auction Date and time of e-RA shall be intimated
through email.
16) Period of Bid Validity éfzbrir:jc;nths from the last date of submission
M/s ISN Electronic-Tender Services Pvt.
Ltd., Gurugram
Contact Person: ISN-ETS Support Team
17) CONTACT DETAILS OF | Customer Support: +91-124-4229071,
ISN- ETS PORTAL 4229072
(From 10:00 Hrsto 18:00 Hrs on all working
Daysi.e. Monday to Friday except Govt.
Holidays) Email: support@isn-ets.com

1.4
141

AVAILABILITY OF RFSDOCUMENT:

The detaled RfS Document shall be avalable on the ISN-ETS Portal
(https.//www.bharat- €l ectronictender.com) and on SIVN’s website www.gvn.nic.in (Home
Page— Tender Management (under Quick Links at the Bottom of Home Page) — Location
New Dehi).The Notice Inviting RfS shal aso be avalable on CPP porta i.e
http://eprocure.gov.in/cppp/.

1.4.2 It is mandatory to download official copy of the RfS Document from Electronic Tender
System (ISN-ETS) Portal to participate in the RfS.

1.4.3 In case of any Clarification (s)/ Amendment(s)/Addendum (s)/Corrigendum (s) to this RfS

document, the same shall be issued on the websites www.gvn.nic.in and ISN-ETS Portal
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https.//www.bharat-el ectronictender.com). However, in case of any discrepancy, the
information available on ISN-ETS website shall prevail.

1.4.4 Bidders are requested to remain updated for any notices amendments/ clarifications etc. to
the RfS document through the above referred websites https.//www.bharat-
€l ectronictender.com and www.sjvn.nic.in. No separate notifications shall be issued for such
notices/ amendments/ clarifications etc. in the print media or any other media individually.
Intimation regarding notification on the above shall be updated on www.sjvn.nic.in and the
details will be available only from https://www.bharat-€l ectroni ctender.com.

1.5 BID SUBMISSION:

151 A Single Stage, Two-Envelope Bidding Procedure will be adopted and will proceed as
detailed in the RfS Documents. Bidding will be conducted through the competitive bidding
procedures as per the provisions of this RfS. The respective rights of SIVN and the
Bidder/HPD shall be governed by the RfS Documents/Agreement signed between SIVN
and the HPD for the package.

1.5.2 Interested bidders have to necessarily register themselves on the portal https.//www.bharat-
electronictender.com (“ETS portal”) through M/s Electronic Tender.com (India) Pvt Ltd to
participate in the bidding under this invitation for bids. It shall be the sole responsibility of
the interested bidders to get themselves registered at the aforesaid portal for which they are
required to contact M/s Electronic Tender.com (India) Pvt. Limited, New Delhi to complete
the registration formalities. Contact details of ISN-ETS is mentioned on the Bid
Information Sheet. All required documents and formalities for registering on ISN-ETS are
mentioned in the subsequent RfS documents.

1.5.3 Any bidder, who meets the Qualification Requirements stipulated in Section-1V and wishes
to submit bid against this RfS, may download the complete RfS document along with its
amendment(s) and clarifications if any, from ISN-ETS Portal (https.//www.bharat-
electronictender.com)and submit their Bid complete in all respect as per terms & conditions
of RfS Document on or before the due date of bid submission.

1.5.4 For proper uploading of the bids on the ETS portal, it shall be the sole responsibility of the
bidders to apprise themselves adequately regarding all the relevant procedures and
provisions as detailed in the portal as well as by contacting M/s Electronic Tender.com
(India@) Pvt. Limited (ETI) directly, as and when required, for which contact details are also
mentioned on the Bid Information Sheet. SIVN in no case shall be responsible for any
issues related to timely or properly uploading/ submission of the bid in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Bidding Documents.

155 Bidders are required to submit their bids strictly as per terms and conditions of the RfS
documents and not to stipulate any deviations/ exceptions.
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156

1.5.7

158

159

1.5.10

16

1.7

Bidders should submit their bid proposal complete in al respect on or before last date and
timeof Bid Submisson as mentioned on ISN-ETS Portal (https://www.bharat-
electronictender.com), SIVN website http://www.gvn.nic.in and as indicated in the Bid
Information Sheet.

Bidder shall submit its bid/proposal aong with non-refundable RfS Document Fees, Bid
Processing Fees and Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) complete in all respect as per the Bid
Information Sheet. Bid proposals received without the prescribed Document Fees, Bid
Processing Fees and EMD will be reected. In the event of any date indicated being
declared a holiday, the next working day shall become operative for the respective purpose
mentioned herein.

SIVN shall conduct e-Reverse Auction (e-RA), if required or as per provisions of RfS
documents.

SIVN reserves the right to cancel/ withdraw/ defer this invitation for bids/RfS process at
any stage without assigning any reason whatsoever and shall bear no liability whatsoever
consequent upon such a decision. No bidder/indenting bidder shall have any claim arising
out of such action.

SIVN has issued this RfS in the capacity of “Intermediary Procurer” as defined in the
aforementioned Guidelines. SIVN may develop a suitable monitoring mechanism, to
analyse the performance of the project and carry out random checks to verify compliance of
quality standards and HPDs shall provide al necessary support in this respect.

For any enquiry/ clarification regarding this tender enquiry, the bidder may contact:

1) Sh. Prateek Sharma, Manager (C&P), Contact No.  +91-11-61901953 &
+9195992058512.

2) Sh. Pramod Behera, Senior Manager (REIA), Contact No. +91-11-61901930 & +91-
98166136663.

3) Sh. Manish Kumar Kanth, Deputy Genera Manager (C&P), Contact No. +91-11-
61901906 & +91-9418084303

CONTACT DETAILSOF ISN- ETSPORTAL

M/s Electronic Tender.com (India) Pvt. Ltd. Gurugram,

Contact Person: ISN-ETS Support Team, Customer Support: +91-124- 4229071, 4229072
(From 10:00 Hrs to 18:00 Hrs on al working Days i.e. Monday to Friday except Govt.
Holidays) Email: support@isn-ets.com
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1.8 RFSINVITING AUTHORITY

Deputy General M anager,
Contracts & Procurement Department,

REIA, SIVN Ltd., 6™ Floor, Tower No. 1,
NBCC Office Complex, East Kidwai Nagar,
New Delhi-110023, Ph. No.: +011-61901953
E-mail: contracts.reia@sjvn.nic.in

Visit us at: www.gvn.nic.in

Registered Office: SIVN Ltd., CHQ, Shakti Sadan, Shanan, Shimla -171006 (H.P.)
Corporate I dentification Number: L40101HP1988GOI 008409
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SECTIONII:
DEFINITIONS
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SECTION-II: DEFINITIONS

Following terms used in the documents will carry the meaning and interpretations as
described below:

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

"ACT" or "ELECTRICITY ACT, 2003" shal mean the Electricity Act, 2003 and
shall include any modifications, amendments and substitution from time to time.

“AFFILIATE” shall mean acompany that, directly or indirectly,

)] controls, or

i) is controlled by, or

iii) is under common control with, a company developing a Project or a Member
in a Consortium developing the Project and control means ownership, directly or
indirectly, of more than 50% (fifty percent) of the voting shares of such company or
right to appoint majority Directorsto the Board of Directors.

“APPROPRIATE COMMISSION” shall mean as defined in the PPA.
NOT USED
NOT USED

“BID” or “PROPOSAL” shall mean the documents submitted by the Bidder towards
meeting the Technical and financial qualifying requirements, along with the price
bid/Financial Bid submitted by the Bidder and submissions during the e-Reverse Auctions,
if applicable, and all documents/credentialg/attachments /annexures etc submitted by the
Bidder as part of its response to the RfSissued by SIVN.

“BIDDER” shall mean Bidding Company (including a foreign company) or a Bidding
Consortium submitting the Bid. Any reference to the Bidder includes Bidding Company/
Bidding Consortium, Member of a Bidding Consortium including its successors, executors
and permitted assigns and Lead Member of the Bidding Consortium jointly and severally, as
the context may require; foreign companies participating in the bidding process shal be
registered as companies as per the rules of their country of origin.

“BIDDING CONSORTIUM” or “CONSORTIUM” shal refer to a group of
Companies that collectively submit the response in accordance with the provisions of this
RfS under a Consortium Agreement.

“BID CAPACITY” shal mean aggregate Contracted capacity of the Wind-
Solar Hybrid Power Project(s) as proposed by the bidder.

“BUYING ENTITY” shall mean any DISCOMs/Distribution Licensee/ Bulk Consumer
etc. that requires Wind Solar Hybrid Power to fulfil its RPO under respective RPO
regulation as per the Government of India’s orders or notifications, unless otherwise
intimated in writing separately.
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211

212

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

“CAPACITY UTILIZATION FACTOR or CUF” shal have the same meaning as
provided in CERC (Terms and Conditions for Tariff determination from Renewable Energy
Sources) Regulations, 2020 as amended from time to time.

For illustration, CUF shall be calculated based on the annual energy injected and metered at
the Delivery Point. In any Contract Year, if ‘X” MWh of energy has been metered out at
the Délivery Point for ‘Y’ MW Project capacity, CUF= (X MWh/ (Y MW*8766)) X 100%.

It may be noted that in the above illustration, the capacity ‘Y’ MW shall refer tothe
Contracted Capacity in terms of the PPA.

“CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT?” shall mean a person practicing in India or a firm
whereof all the partners practicing in India as a Chartered Accountant(s) within the
meaning of the Chartered Accountants Act, 1949.

For bidders incorporated in countries other than India, “Chartered Accountant” shall mean
aperson or afirm practicing in the respective country and designated/ registered under the
corresponding Statutes/ laws of the respective country.

“COMPANY?” shall mean a body corporate incorporated in India under the Companies
Act, 1956/2013 or any law in India prior thereto relating to Companies, as applicable.

“COMMERCIAL OPERATION DATE (COD)” shal mean the date as defined in
Clause 6.14 of the RfS.

“COMMENCEMENT OF SUPPLY OF POWER DATE (CSD)” shal mean the
actual date of supply of power of the contracted capacity subsequent to COD as defined
in Clause 6.14 of the RfS.

“CONTRACTED CAPACITY” shal mean the AC capacity in MW contracted with
SIVN for supply by the HPD to SIVN at the Delivery Point from the Project, based on
which the PPA is executed with SIVN.

“CONTRACT YEAR?” shall mean the period beginning from the Effective Date of the
PPA and ending on the immediately succeeding 31st March and thereafter each period
of 12 months beginning on 1st April and ending on 31st March provided that:

i) in the financial year in which the Scheduled Commencement of Supply of Date
(SCSD) of contracted capacity would occur, the Contract Year shall end on the date
immediately before the SCSD and a new Contract Year shall commence once again

from the SCSD and end on the immediately succeeding 318t March, and theresfter
each period of 12 (Twelve) Months commencing on 1t April and ending on 31t
March, and

ii) provided further that the last Contract Year of this Agreement shall end on the last day
of the Term of this Agreement.
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2.18

2.19

2.20

221

2.22

2.23

2.24

2.25

2.26

“CONTROL” shall mean the ownership, directly or indirectly, of more than 50%
(fifty percent) of the voting shares of such Company or right to appoint mgority Directors.

“CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDING” shal mean more than 50% of the voting shares
of the Company or right to appoint majority Directors.

“CENTRAL TRANSMISSION UTILITY (CTU)” shal mean the Centra
Transmission Utility as defined in sub-section (10) of section 2 of the Electricity Act 2003.

“DAY” shall mean calendar day.
“EFFECTIVE DATE” shall mean the date of signing of PPA.
“EQUITY” shall mean Net Worth as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.

“FINANCIAL CLOSURE” or “PROJECT FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS”
means arrangement of necessary funds by the HPD towards 100% Project Cost either by
way of commitment of funds by the Company from its interna resources and/or tie up of
funds through a bank/ financial institution by way of sanction of aloan or letter agreeing to
finance.

“GUIDELINES” shal mean the Guiddines for Tariff Based Competitive Bidding
Process for procurement of power from Grid Connected Wind Solar Hybrid Projects”
issued by the Ministry of New and Renewable Energy vide F. No. 27/03/2023-RCM dated
21.08.2023, including subsequent amendments and clarifications, if any, issued until the
last date of bid submission of this RfS.

“GROUP COMPANY” of aCompany means

i) a Company which, directly or indirectly, holds 10% (Ten Percent) or more of the
share capital of the Company or;

i) aCompany in which the Company, directly or indirectly, holds 10% (Ten Percent) or
more of the share capital of such Company or;

iii) a Company in which the Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to direct or
cause to be directed the management and policies of such Company whether through the
ownership of securities or agreement or any other arrangement or otherwise or;

iv) a Company which, directly or indirectly, has the power to direct or cause to be directed
the management and policies of the Company whether through the ownership of
securities or agreement or any other arrangement or otherwise or;

v) a Company which is under common control with the Company, and control means
ownership by one Company of at least 10% (Ten Percent) of the share capital of the
other Company or power to direct or cause to be directed the management and policies
of such Company whether through the ownership of securities or agreement or any
other arrangement or otherwise;
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2.27

2.28

2.29

2.30

2.31

2.32

2.33

2.34

2.35

2.36

2.37

vi) Provided that afinancial institution, scheduled bank, foreign institutional investor, Non-
Banking Financia Company, and any mutual fund, pension funds and sovereign funds
shall not be deemed to be Group Company, and its shareholding and the power to direct
or cause to be directed the management and policies of a Company shall not be
considered for the purposes of this definition unless it is the Project Company or a
Member of the Consortium devel oping the Project.

“INTER-CONNECTION POINT/ DELIVERY/ METERING POINT” shal mean a
single point or multiple points at 220kV or above, where the power from the Project(s)
isinjected into the ISTS Substation (including the transmission line connecting the Projects
with the substation system) as specified in the RfS document. Metering shall be done at this
interconnection point where the power is injected into. For interconnection with grid and
metering, the HPDs shall abide by the relevant CERC/SERC Regulations, Grid Code and
Central Electricity Authority (Installation and Operation of Meters) Regulations, 2006
as amended and revised from time to time.

“INTERMEDIARY PROCURER” shal mean a trader who shall aggregate the
power purchased from different RE Projects and sell it to the distribution licensee(s).

“InST S” means Intra-State Transmission System.
“IST S” means Inter-State Transmission System.

“INTERESTED PARTIES” shadl mean a sdituation where control is equaly
distributed among interested parties in the Group Company or Bidding Consortium.

“JOINT CONTROL” shall mean a situation where a company has multiple promoters
(but none of the shareholders has more than 50% of voting rights and paid up share capital).

“LEAD MEMBER OF THE BIDDING CONSORTIUM” or “LEAD MEMBER”:
There shall be only one Lead Member, having the shareholding of not less 51% in the
Bidding Consortium.

Note: The shareholding of the Lead member in the Project Company (Special Purpose
Vehicle) cannot be changed until 01 (ONE) year after the SCSD of the contracted capacity.

“LETTER OF AWARD” or “LoA” shall mean the letter issued by SIVN to the
selected Bidder for award of the Project.

“LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP” or “LLP” shall mean a Company governed
by Limited Liability Partnership Act 2008 or as amended.

“LLC” shall mean Limited Liability Company.

“MEMBER IN A BIDDING CONSORTIUM” or “MEMBER” shal mean each
Company in a Bidding Consortium. In case of a Technology Partner being a member in the
Consortium, it has to be a Company.
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2.38

2.39

2.40

241

242

243

2.44

2.45

2.46

2.47

2.48

“MONTH?” shall mean calendar month.

“NET-WORTH” shall mean the Net-Worth as defined section 2 of the Companies
Act,2013.

“PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL” shal mean the paid-up share capital as defined in
Section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013.

“PARENT?” shal mean a Company, which holds more than 50% voting rights and paid
up share capital, either directly or indirectly in the Project Company or a Member in a
Consortium developing the Project.

Not Used.
Not Used.

“POOLING SUBSTATION/POOLING POINT” shal mean a point where more than
one Project may connect to a common Transmission System. Multiple Projects can be
connected to a pooling substation from where common transmission system shall be
constructed and maintained by the HPD(s) to get connected to the ISTS substation. The
voltage level for such common line shall be 220 kV or above. Further, the metering of the
pooled power shall be done at the injection point, i.e. the ISTS substation. However, the
voltage level of transmission system of individual projects up to the pooling substation may
be at 33 kV and above. Sub-meters shal be installed at the pooling substation for
metering and forecasting and scheduling of individual Projects. The losses in the
common transmission system up to the injection point shall be apportioned to the
individual Projects for the purpose of billing.

“PGCIL” or “POWERGRID” shall mean Power Grid Corporation of India Limited.

“PPA” shall mean the Power Purchase Agreement signed between the successful Bidder
and SIVN according to the terms and conditions of the standard PPA enclosed with this
RfS.

“PSA” shal mean the Power Sale Agreement signed between SIVN and Buying
Entity according to the terms and conditions of the standard PSA enclosed with this RfS.

“RENEWABLE ENERGY (RE) PROJECT”/” PROJECT”/” HYBRID POWER
PROJECT” shal mean the Solar PV and Wind Power generation facilities, where the
rated power capacity of one resource (wind or solar) is at least 33% of the total
Contracted Capacity, having a single point of injection into the grid at Interconnection/
Delivery/ Metering Point at ISTS substation, or in case of sharing of transmission lines, by
separate injection at Pooling Point and having control systems and metering. The Project
shall include all unity modules and auxiliaries and associated facilities, bay(s) for
transmission system in the switchyard, transmission line up to the Delivery Point and all the
other assets, buildings/structures, equipment, plant and machinery, facilities and related
assets required for the efficient and economic operation of the power generation facility,

RfS for selection of HPD for setting up of 1500 MW ISTS-connected Hybrid Power | Page 16 of 149

Projectsin Indiaunder TBCB (RfS No.: SIVN/CC- Delhi/REIA/2024/ HY BRID-2
TSC: SIVN-2024-TN000001




2.49

2.50

251

2.52

2.53

2.54

2.55

2.56

2.57

whether completed or at any stage of development and construction or intended to be
developed and constructed for the purpose of supply of power to SIVN.

“PROCURER?” shal mean, as the context may require, the distribution licensees, or
the Authorized Representative(s) or an Intermediary Procurer.

“PROJECT CAPACITY” or “INSTALLED CAPACITY” or “RATED CAPACITY”
shall mean the rated capacity of the installed Project components, i.e. Solar PV and Wind
Power components of the Project, as committed in the PPA. This shall be equal to the
“installed capacity” for which connectivity is sought by the HPD under the GNA
Regulations. The quantum of Installed Capacity (in MW), including that of the revised
Installed Capacity, if any, shall be greater than or equal to the Contracted Capacity. It isto
be noted that prior to commencement of supply of power under the PPA, the installation
and commencement of power supply from the corresponding committed rated capacity of
Wind and Solar PV_components as declared in the PPA, will be verified by SIVN.

“PROJECT COMMISSIONING”: The Project will be considered as commissioned if
all equipment as per rated project capacity has been installed and energy has flown into
grid, in line with the Commissioning procedures defined in the RfS/PPA.

“PROJECT DEVELOPER” or “DEVELOPER” o “HYBRID POWER
DEVELOPER (HPD)” “HYBRID POWER GENERATOR (HPG)” or “WIND-
SOLAR HYBRID POWER DEVELOPER” shal mean the Bidding Company or a
Bidding Consortium participating in the bid and having been selected and allocated a
Project capacity by SIVN (through a competitive bidding process), including the SPV
formed by the selected bidder/ consortium for the purpose of setting up of the Project and
signing of PPA with SIVN.

“PROJECT LOCATION” shall mean the arealareas identified by the HPD,
comprising village(s), Tehsil(s)/Taluk(s) and District(s) within a State or States, where
the Project isbeing implemented.

“PROMOTER?” shal mean Promoter as defined in the Companies Act, 2013.

“RfS” or “RfS DOCUMENT” or “BIDDING DOCUMENT(S)” or “TENDER
DOOCUMENTS” shall mean the “Request for Selection” document issued by SIVN vide
RfS No. SIVN/CC-Dehi/REIA/2024/HY BRID-2 Dated DD.0OM.2024, including standard
Power Purchase Agreement and standard Power Sale Agreement aong with
subsequent clarifications and amendments thereof (if any).

“SJVN?” shall mean SIVN Limited.

“SCHEDULED COMMENCEMENT-OF-SUPPLY DATE (SCSD)” shall mean in
relation to the contracted capacity or the part of the contracted capacity shall mean the
date(s) corresponding to the date of commencement of supply quoted in the RfS (Request
for Selection), indicated in Clause 6.8.2.
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2.59

2.60

2.61

2.62

2.63

2.64

2.65

2.66

“SELECTED BIDDER” or “SUCCESSFUL BIDDER” shal mean the Bidder
selected pursuant to this RfS to set up the Project and supply electricity as per the terms of
PPA.

“SOLAR PV PROJECT” or “SOLAR POWER GENERATING SYSTEM/
STATION” shall mean the Solar Photo Voltaic Power Project that uses sunlight for direct
conversion of solar energy into electricity through Photo Voltaic Technology.

“SPARE CAPACITY” shall mean that capacity of RE project that is unencumbered
from any power supply commitments or power purchase agreements and is available for
augmenting the proposed RE power under this RfS.

“STATE TRANSMISSION UTILITY” or “STU” shal mean the Board or the
Government Company notified by the respective State Government under Sub-Section | of
Section 39 of the Electricity Act, 2003.

“TOE” shall mean Tender Opening Event.

“TRADING MARGIN” shal mean the margin on sale of Solar-Wind Hybrid power
to State Utilities/ Discoms/ other Bulk Consumers under this RfS being charged by SIVN
and shall be @ INR 0.07/kWh.

“ULTIMATE PARENT” shall mean a Company, which owns more than 50% (Fifty
Percent) voting rights and paid up share capital, either directly or indirectly in the Parent
and Affiliates;

“WEEK” shall mean calendar week;

“WIND POWER PROJECT” or “WIND POWER GENERATING SYSTEMY
STATIONS” means the wind power project that uses wind energy for conversion
into electricity through awind turbine generator.
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SECTION -1I11
INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS
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SECTION 111: INSTRUCTIONSTO BIDDER

3.1 Obtaining RfS Documents

Interested bidders have to download the official copy of RfS Document & other documents
after login into the ISN-ETS portal by using the Login ID & Password created on ISN-ETS
during registration (Refer Annexure - B). The bidder shall be eligible to submit/upload
the bid document only after logging into the ISN-ETS portal and downloading the official
copy of RfS.If only free copy of RfS documents are downloaded from ETS portal or
RfS documents are downloaded without confirmation or without gener ating official copy
serial number, then the bidders will not be able to submit the bids. For further
assistance, please contact ETS help desk at +91 124-4229071, 124-4229072. Transfer of
RfS documents downloaded by one intending bidder to another is not permitted.

3.2 Cost of Documents & Bid Processing Fees

3.2.1 Prospective Bidders interested to participate in the bidding process are required to
submit their Project proposals in response to this RfS document along with a non-
refundable RfS document fee and processing fee as mentioned in the Bid Information
Sheet. A Bidder will be eligible to participate in the bidding process only on submission
of entire financia amounts as per the Bid Information Sheet. Payments against Cost of
RfS document and Bid Processing Fee shall be done only through NEFT/RTGS (electronic
transfer), and the Bidder shall submit the transaction receipt, as part of the online bid
submission.

The bank details of SIVN are as follows:

Name of Alc : SIVN REIA

A/c No : 42326206137

Name of Bank . State Bank of India

Branch : South Extension Part-11, M Block, New Delhi-110049
IFSC Code : SBIN0003219

3.2.2 In case a Bidder chooses to deduct TDS while making the payments against cost of
RfS and/Bid Processing Fee, such TDS details shall be submitted by the Bidder along with
the transaction details, as part of online bid submission.

3.2.3 Bids submitted without cost of the RfS document and/or Bid Processing Fee and/or
Bank Guarantee/Payment on Order Instrument towards Earnest Money Deposit (EMD)
(including partial submission of any one of the respective amounts), may be liable for
rgection by SIVN.

3.2.4 In case a Bidder has paid cost of RfS document and Bid Processing Fee for this RfS and
chooses not to participate in the bidding process (i.e. the Bidder does not submit any of the
online or offline bid documents to SJVN), the respective amounts paid to SIVN will be
refunded without any interest payment, to the respective Bidder.
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3.25 MSMEs (Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises) registered under NSIC/DIC/Udyog
Aadhar Only are exempted from submission of Cost of RfS Document, Bid Processing Fee
& Earnest Money Deposit (EMD). For a Consortium to be eligible for exemption from
submission of Cost of RfS document, Bid Processing Fee & Earnest Money Deposit, all the
members of the Consortium shall be registered as MSME.

3.3 Content of RfS Document:

The RfS Documents shall comprise the documents listed below along with Standard Power
Purchase Agreement (PPA) and Standard Power Sae Agreement (PSA) and any
Amendment/Addendum/Corrigendum/Clarification/Errata issued in accordance with
Clause 3.6, if any.

i) Section I: Invitation for Bids

ii) Section Il: Definitions

iii) Section I1: Instruction to Bidders

iv) Section IV: Eligibility Criteria

v) Section V: Bid Evaluation and Selection of Bidders
vi) Section VI: Conditions of Contract

vii) Section VII: Forms & Formats for Bid Submission

34 Cost of Bidding:

The Bidder shal be responsible for all the costs associated with the preparation of
the response to RfS and participation in discussions and attending pre-bid meeting(s) etc.
SIVN shall not be responsible in any way for such costs, regardless of the conduct or
outcome of the bid process.

35 Pre-Bid Meeting

A Pre-Bid Meeting with prospective bidders will be held on the date and venue mentioned
a Clause 1.3 of Section | of this RfS Document OR through Video Conferencing. Wherever
the bidder finds any discrepancy, omission, ambiguity or conflict in or among the
documents issued or be in doubt as to their meaning and interpretation; such matter should
be called to the attention of the RfS Inviting Authority, in writing either by email or by post
and it must be received to RfS Inviting Authority latest by [10" day up to 18:00 Hrs from
the date of issue of this RfS]. SIVN will make effort to respond to the same in the Pre-Bid
Meeting to be held as mentioned in the Bid Information Sheet. A compiled list of such
questionnaire and SJIVN’s response will be uploaded in the ISN-ETS portal
https.//www.bharat- electronictender.com. and www.gvn.nic.in. Any modification to the
RfS Documents that may become necessary as a result of the pre-bid Clarifications shall be
made by SIVN through the issue of an Addendum/Corrigendum/Amendment/Clarification
pursuant to clause 3.6. SIVN shall not be obliged to respond to any request for clarification
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https://www.bharat-electronictender.com/
http://www.sjvn.nic.in/

received later than the above period. Further, mere request for clarification from the
Bidders shall not be a ground for seeking extension in the deadline for submission of bids.

3.6 Amendmentsto RfS Document

3.6.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, SIVN may, for any reason,
whether at its own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a prospective
Bidder(s), modify the RfS documents Standard PPA/Standard PSA by issuing
Addendum /Corrigendum/Amendment/Clarification and the same shall be available on
the ISN-ETS portal https:.//www.bharat-electronictender.com and SIVN’s website
www.gvn.nic.in. No press note will be released in this regard. Therefore, the Bidders are
advised to visit the above referred sites regularly before deadline for submission of
proposal.

3.6.2 All such Addendum/Corrigendum/Amendment/Clarification shall form integral part of
this RfS Document. SJVN shall bear no responsibility or liability arising out of non-receipt
of the above in time by the Bidders.

3.6.3 In order to allow prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take the amendment
into account in preparing their Bids, SIVN, at its discretion, may extend the deadline for
the submission and opening of Bids.

3.7 Language of Bids:

The Bids prepared by bidders and all correspondences and documents relating to the Bid
exchanged by the Bidder(s) and SIVN shal be in English. Supporting documents and
printed literature furnished by the Bidders with their bids may be in another language,
provided they are accompanied with a certificate of the authorized trandator certifying
therein an accurate trandation of the relevant passages in the above stated language, in
which case, for the purposes of interpretation of the Bid, the translation shall prevail.

3.8 Bid Currencies;

The bidder shall indicate the entire bid pricein INDIAN RUPEES only.
3.9 Validity of the Responseto RfS:
The Bidder shall submit the response to RfS which shall remain valid up to 12 months from

the last date of submission of response to RfS (“Bid Validity”). SIVN reserves the right to
reject any response to RfS which does not meet the aforementioned validity requirement.
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3.10 Earnest Money Deposit (EMD):

3.10.1 Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) of INR 12.26 LakhgMW (Rs. 12,26,000/MW) per Project
in the form of Bank Guarantee according to Format 7.3A and valid for 12 months from the
last date of bid submission, shall be submitted by the Bidder aong with their bid, faling
which the bid shall be summarily rejected. The Bank Guarantees towards EMD have to be
issued in the name of the Bidding Company/ Lead Member of Bidding Consortium. In the
event of encashment of EMD, the encashed amount shall include al applicable taxes.

Electronic Bank Guarantee (e-BG) is also acceptable against EMD under this RfS.

3.10.2 The Bidder shal furnish the Bank Guarantees towards EMD from any of the Scheduled
Commercia Banks as listed on the website of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and amended
as on the date of issuance of bank guarantee. Bank Guarantee issued by foreign branch of a
Scheduled Commercial Bank is to be endorsed by the Indian branch of the same bank or
State Bank of India (SBI).

3.10.3 The EMD snhal be valid as per the timelines stipulated above. However, shortfall in the
EMD validity, if any, up to a period of seven (7) days shall be acceptable. Further, an
additional shortfall shall be acceptable only if bidder has submitted the EMD with validity
as per original bid submission date or as per any revised submission date and if the
deadline for submission of bids has been extended further, the Bid Guarantee shall be
acceptable provided, the EMD is submitted in accordance with original bid submission date
stipulated above and Bidder submits the EMD extension for the requisite period within the
period upto seven days from the date of opening of Technical Bids, if required.

3.10.4 SIVN has agreed to accept the EMD in the form of an unconditional and irrevocable Bank
Guarantee instead of the cash deposit with the clear position intimated to the bidder that the
EMD Bank Guarantee shall be encash able for being appropriated by SIVN in terms of the
guarantee asin the case of appropriation of the cash deposit lying with SIVN.

3.10.5 Payment on Order Instrument (POI): As an aternative to submission of EMD as above,
the Bidder also has an option to submit a letter of undertaking issued by either of the
following three organizations, viz. (i) Indian Renewable Development Agency Limited
(IREDA) or (ii) Power Finance Corporation Limited or (iii) REC Limited. This Letter of
Undertaking shal be issued as “Payment on Order Instrument” (POIl), wherein the POI
issuing organization undertakes to pay in all scenarios under which the EMD would be
liable to be encashed by SIVN within the provisons of RfS/PPA. This instrument would
have to be furnished as per Format 7.3B of the RfS, within the timelines as per Clause
3.10.1 above, for the amount and validity period as per those Clause 3.10.1 above.

3.10.6 Theterm “Bank Guarantee (BG) towards/ against EMD” occurring in the RfS shall be read
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as “Bank Guarantee (BG)/ Payment on Order Instrument (POI) towards/ against EMD”.

311 Forfatureof EMD:

The BG towards EMD shall be encashed by SIVN in following cases:

a) If the bidder withdraws or varies the bid after due date and time of bid submission and
during the validity of bid;

b) In case, SIVN offers to execute the PPA with the Selected Bidder and if the Selected
Bidder does not submit the requisite documents as per Clause 6.11 of the RfS or does not
execute the PPA within the stipulated time period,;

c) |If after issuance of LOA, it isfound that the documents furnished by the bidders as part of
response to RfS are midleading or misrepresented in any way;

d) If the bidder failsto furnish required Performance Bank Guarantee/POI in accordance with
Clause 6.9 of the RfS.

3.12 Instructions to Bidders for Structuring of Bid Proposals in Response to
RfS

The bidder including its Parent, Affiliate or Ultimate Parent or any Group Company
shall submit single response to RfS. Detailed Instructions to be followed by the bidders for
online submission of response to RfS are stated at Annexure —B Submission of bid
proposas by Biddersin response to RfS shal be in the manner described bel ow:

i) Covering Letter as per Format 7.1.

ii) In case of a Bidding Consortium, a Power of Attorney in favour of the Lead
Member issued by the other Members of the Consortium shall be provided in original as
per format attached hereto as Format 7.2.

In the event any Member of the Bidding Consortium (other than Lead Member) is
aforeign entity, it may submit Board Resolutions in place of Power of Attorney for
the purpose of fulfilling the requirements under this clause. Provided that such Board
Resolutions shall be supported by an unqualified opinion issued by the legal counsel of
such foreign entity stating that the Board Resolutions are in compliance with the
applicable laws of the respective jurisdictions of the issuing Company and the
authorizations granted therein are true and valid.

iii) Bank Guarantee against Earnest Money Deposit (EMD) as per Format 7.3 A/7.3B.

iv) Board Resolutions, as per prescribed formats enclosed as per Format 7.4 duly
certified by the Company Secretary or the Director of the relevant Bidder, as applicable
to the Bidder and mentioned hereunder:

a) Board Resolution from the Bidding Company or the Lead Member of the
Consortium, as the case may be, in favour of the person signing the response to
RfS and in the event of selection of the Projects and to sign the PPA with SIVN.
Board Resolution from each of the Consortium Members in favour of the person
signing Consortium Agreement.
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b) Board Resolution from the Bidding Company committing 100% (One Hundred
Percent) of the equity requirement for the Project/ Board Resolutions from each of
the Consortium Members together in aggregate committing to 100% (One Hundred
Percent) of equity requirement for the Project (in case of Bidding Consortium); and

c¢) Board Resolutions from each of the Consortium Members and Lead member
contributing such additional amount over and above the percentage limit
(specified for the Lead Member and other member in the Consortium Agreement) to
the extent becoming necessary towards the total equity share in the Project
Company, obligatory on the part of the Consortium pursuant to the terms and
conditions in the Consortium Agreement.

V) In case of a Consortium, the Consortium Agreement between the Members in the
Consortium as per Format 7.5 along with Board resolution from each Member of the
Consortium for participating in Consortium.

vi) Format for Financial Requirements as per Format 7.6 along with the certificate from
practicing Chartered Accountant/ Statutory Auditors showing details of computation
of thefinancial credentials of the Bidder.

vii)Undertaking regarding no wilful default and no major litigation pending as per
Format 7.7.

viii) A disclosure statement as per Format 7.8/ 7.8A regarding participation of any
related companies in the bidding process.

iX) Format for Technical Criteria as per Format 7.9 (to be filled out separately for
each Project).

X) Format 7.10: Declaration by the Bidder for the proposed Wind-Solar Hybrid
Configuration

xi) Signed Integrity Pact between SIVN and the Bidding Company as per Format 7.12.
xii) Attachments

a) Memorandum of Association, Article of Association of the Bidder needs to be
attached aong with the bid. The bidder should also highlight the relevant provision
which highlights the objects relating to Power/ Energy/ Renewable
Energy/Wind / Wind-Solar Hybrid / Solar Power plant development.

In case, there is no mention of the above provisions in the MoA/ AoA of the
Bidder, the same has to be amended and submitted prior to signing of PPA, if the
bidder is selected as Successful bidder.

If the selected bidder wishes to execute the project through a Special Purpose
Vehicle (SPV), the MoA/ AoA of the SPV highlighting the relevant provision
which highlights the objects relating to Power/ Energy/ Renewable Energy/Wind /
Wind-Solar Hybrid / Solar Power plant development has to be submitted prior to
signing of PPA.

b) Certificate of Incorporation of Bidding Company/ al member companies of
Bidding Consortium.
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3.13

i)

c) A certificate of shareholding of the bidding company, its Parent and Ultimate
Parent (if any) duly certified by a practicing Chartered Accountant/Company
Secretary as on a date within 30 days prior to the last date of bid submission. SIVN
reserves the right to seek additional information relating to shareholding in promoter
companies, their parents ultimate parents and other group companies to satisfy
themselves that RfS conditions have been complied with and the bidder will
ensure submission of the same within the required time lines.

d) Certified copies of annual audited accounts for the last three financial years, ending
on 31.03.2023 or provisional accounts duly certified by a practicing Chartered
Accountant (as applicable), along with certified copies of Balance Sheet, Profit
&Loss Account, Schedules and Cash Flow Statement supported with bank
statements as on the date at least 7 days prior to the due date of bid submission (if
applicable), shall be required to be submitted.

e) Details of al types of securities/instruments which are pending conversion into
equity whether optionally or mandatorily.

xiii)  Covering letter of the financia bid as per Format 7.13

xiv)  Break-up of the Preliminary Estimate of Cost of Project as per Format 7.14
(separately for each Project).

Important Notesand Instructionsto Bidders:

Wherever information has been sought in specified formats, the Bidders shal fill in the
details as per the prescribed formats and shall refrain from any deviations and referring to
any other document for providing any information required in the prescribed format.

The Bidders shall be shortlisted based on the declarations made by them in relevant
schedules of RfS. The documents submitted online will be verified before signing of PPA
in terms of Clause 6.11 of the RfS.

If the Bidder/Member in a Bidding Consortium conceals any material information or
makes a wrong statement or misrepresents facts or makes a misleading statement in its
response to RfS, in any manner whatsoever, SJVN reserves the right to reject such response
to RfS and/or cancel the Letter of Award, if issued, and the Bank Guarantee provided up to
that stage shall be encashed. Bidder shall be solely responsible for disqualification based on
their declaration in the submission of responseto RfS.

If the event specified at Clause 3.13(iii) is discovered after the Effective Date of PPA,
conseguences specified in PPA shall apply.

Response submitted by the Bidder shal become the property of the SIVN and SIVN
shall have no obligation to return the same to the Bidder. However, the EMDs submitted by
unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as specified in Clause 6.9.10 of the RfS.
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vi) All documents of the response to RfS (including RfS and subsequent Amendments/
Clarifications/ Addenda, PPA and PSA) submitted online must be digitally signed by the
person authorized by the Board as per Format 7.4.

vii) The response to RfS shall be submitted as mentioned in Clause 3.12 of the RfS. No change
or supplemental information to a response to RfS will be accepted after the scheduled date
and time of submission of response to RfS. However, SIVN reserves the right to seek
additional information from the Bidders, if found necessary, during the course of evaluation
of the response to RfS.

viii) The Bidder shall make sure that the correct, valid and operative Pass-Phrase to decrypt the
relevant Bid-part is submitted into the ‘Time Locked Electronic Key Box (EKB)’ after the
deadline of Bid submission, and before the commencement of the Online Tender Opening
Event (TOE) of Technical bid.

iX) All the information should be submitted in English language only. In case of foreign
bidders having documents in other than English language, then the documents shall be
trandated in English language by certified translator and submitted.

X) Bidders shal mention the name of the contact person and complete address and contact
details of the Bidder in the covering letter.

xi) Response to RfS that are incomplete, which do not substantially meet the requirements
prescribed in this RfS, will be liable for rejection by SIVN.

xii) Response to RfS not submitted in the specified formats will be liable for reection by
SIVN.

xiii) Bidders delaying in submission of additional information or clarifications sought will be
liable for rgjection.

xiv) Non-submission and/ or submission of incomplete data/ information required under the
provisions of RfS shall not be construed as waiver on the part of SIVN of the obligation of
the Bidder to furnish the said data/information unless the waiver isin writing.

xv) The Central Electricity Regulatory Commission shall be the appropriate commission to
exercise the regulatory and adjudicatory jurisdiction in regard to matters between HPD and
SIVN as well as SIVN and Buying Entity (ies). Subject to the above, only New Delhi
Courts shall have exclusive jurisdiction in al matters pertaining to this RfS.

xvi) All the financia transactions to be made with SIVN including success charges, delay
charges, and any additional charges (if required), shall attract 18% GST on each transaction,
irrespective of the same being mentioned in the RfS/PPA.

xvii) The bid shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. The bid
should be serially numbered and properly indexed mentioning al constituents of bid
including any enclosures/attachments etc. and their location page numbers in the bid.
Failure to submit the bid in systematic manner as above may result oversight of any
important information provided by the bidder for which SIVN shall not be responsible.
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xviii) The Bid shall contain no overwriting, alterations, omissions, or additions, unless such
corrections are initiated by the person(s) signing the Bid. Corrections if any shall only be
made by scoring out the cancelled portion, writing the correction, initiating and dating it by
the person(s) signing the Bid.

xix) All witnesses and sureties shall be persons of status and their full names, occupations and
addresses shall be stated below their signatures.

xX) Please note that bids in any other mode including Email shall not be entertained under any
circumstances.

3.14 Method of Submission of Response to RfS by the Bidder

3.14.1 Documentsto be Submitted Offline (in Original):

i) Thebidder hasto submit original of following documents offline.

a) Bank Guarantee towards EMD as mentioned in the Bid Information Sheet (as
per Format 7.3A/7.3B). One EMD may be submitted for the cumulative capacity
guoted by the bidder.

b) Duly Signed Integrity Pact between SIVN and the Bidding Company (Scanned
version of the format, duly signed by SIVN’s authorized signatory, is available on
the ETS porta as addendum to the RfS).

¢) Pass-phrasesfor Technical bids and Financia bids submitted on the ETS portal

ii) Bank Guarantee against EMD needs to be submitted in both online and offline modes.
The bidders will be required to submit the bank guarantee, either in person or through
post, at the office of SIVN until the last date and time for submission of hard copy of
document as mentioned at Cl. 1.3 of RfS and its subsequent extension(s), if any.

Note: In all cases, the Bank Guarantee against EMD (if applicable), shall be issuedon
or before the bid submission deadline. These instruments issued after the expiry of
the deadline will be summarily rejected.

iii) The bidding envelope shall contain the following sticker:

Selection of Hybrid Power Developers for setting up of 1500 MW ISTS-
connected Wind- Solar Hybrid Power Projects in India under Tariff-Based
Cumul gtive Capqcity of | MW

the projects applied for

No. of Projects Bid for

RfS Reference No.

Submitted by (Enter Full name and address of the Bidder)

Organization ID (OID) |(Enter the OID through which the Bid has been submitted

on ETSportal online on ETS portal)
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(Signature of the Authorized Sgnatory)(Name of the
Authorized Sgnatory  |Authorized

Sgnatory)

Deputy General Manager (C&P), REIA

SIJVN Limited

Bid Submitted to 6" Floor, Tower-1, NBCC Office Complex, East Kidwai
Nagar, New Delhi-110023

Tel No. 011-61901906

Email — contracts.rela@s vn.nic.in,

3.14.2 Documentsto be Submitted Online

Detailed instructions to be followed by the Bidders for online submission of response to
RfS are stated at Annexure-B. The bidders shall strictly follow the instructions mentioned in
the electronic form in respective Technica Bid and financial bid while filling the forms.

If the Bidder has submitted bid online and fails to submit the Bank Guarantee against
EMD for requisite amount offline, until the last date and time for submission of hard
copy of document as mentioned at Cl. 1.3 of RfS and its subsequent extension(s), if
any, the same shall be treated as incomplete bid and Cost of RfS, Processing fee
submitted at this stage will be encashed and the EMD(s) shall be returned and the
submitted bid will stand cancelled.

All documents of the response to RfS submitted online must be digitally signed and

uploaded on the website, https://www.bhar at-electronictender.com which should contain
the following:

1) Technical Bid (First Envelope)

The Bidder shall upload single Technical Bid containing scanned copies of the following
documents duly signed and stamped on each page by the authorized signatory as mentioned
below:

a) Formats - 7.1, 7.2 (if applicable), 7.3 A/ 7.3 B, 7.4, 7.5 (if applicable), 7.6,
7.7,7.8/7.8A, 7.9, 7.10 and 7.12 elaborated in Clause 3.12 of the RfS.

b) All attachments elaborated in Clause 3.12 of the RfS, under the sub-clause xi:
Attachments, with proper file names.

c) All supporting documents regarding meeting the eligibility criteria.

d) Scanned Copies of NEFT/RTGS details towards Cost of RfS Document and
Bid Processing Fee as mentioned in Bid Information Sheet.

€) Scanned copies of requisite amount of Bank Guarantee/ Payment on Order
Instrument towards EMD as mentioned in the Bid Information Sheet.
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1)

1)

2)

f) The Bidder will have to fill the Electronic Form provided at the ISN-ETS portal
as part of Technical Bid.

g) Submission of Pass-phrases. In line with Clause 3.13 (viii) and Annexure-B,
the Bidder shall be required to submit the Pass-Phrase to decrypt the relevant Bid-
part is submitted into the ‘Time Locked Electronic Key Box (EKB)’ after the
deadline of Bid submission, and before the commencement of the Online Tender
Opening Event (TOE) of Techno- commercial bid.

Financial Bid (Second Envelope)

Bidders shall submit the single Financial Bid containing the scanned copy of following
document(s):

a) Covering letter as per Format - 7.13 of the RfS.
b) Preliminary Estimate of Cost of RE Power Project for supply of contracted capacity
of Wind-Solar Hybrid Power, as per Format 7.14 of the RfS.

The financial bid shall be submitted online, in the format as per the Electronic Form
on the ISN-ETS portal .

Only a single tariff bid for the contracted capacity applied for, shall have to be
filled online in the Electronic Form provided at the ISN-ETS portal. The
instructions mentioned in the Financial Bid Electronic Form have to be strictly
followed without any deviation, else the bid shall be consider ed as non- responsive.

I mportant Note:

a)
b)

c)

d)

The Bidders shall not deviate from the naming and the numbering formats of
envelops mentioned above, in any manner.

In each of the envelopes, al the documents enclosed shall be indexed and flagged
appropriately, with theindex list indicating the name of the document against each flag.

All the envelopes shall be properly sealed with the signature of the Authorized
Signatory running across the sealing of the envelopes.

In case the Bidder submits the online documents on ISN-ETS within the bid submission
deadlines and fails to submit the offline documents in the office of SIVN within the bid
submission deadlines, the online bid of the Bidder shal not be opened and shal
be ‘archived’ on the ISN-ETS portal. Similarly, bids submitted offline but without any
online submission on ISN-ETS portal shall not be opened and the EMD shal be
returned to the respective bidder.

In case of submission of Bank Guarantee against EM D/POI on online portal on or
before the bid submission deadline, and non-submission of the hard copy of the

Bank Guarantee to SJIVN within the timeline specified for submission of har dcopy

of the documents, its bid shall be rejected and not considered for further
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evaluation.

3.15 Deadlinefor Submission of Bids:

3.15.1 Complete Bid must be uploaded at the ISN-ETS portal. The documents to be submitted
offline as per Clause 3.14.1 must be received by SIVN at the address of RfS Inviting
Authority not later than the last date and time for submission of hardcopy of documents
offline as stipulated in the RfS document/ ISN-ETS portal. The date and time for online
submission of the bids shall continue to be the date and time as specified in the RfS
document or any subsequent amendment for the same. In the event of the specified date for
the submission of bids being declared a holiday for SIJVN, the hard copy of
documents/offline submission will be received up to the specified time on the next working

day.

3.15.2 SIVN may, in exceptional circumstances and at its discretion, extend the deadline for
submission of bids by issuing an Addendum in accordance with Clause 3.6, in such case all
rights and obligations of SIVN and the bidders previoudy subject to the original deadline
will thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

3.16 LateBids:

Online submission of the bid will not be permitted on the portal after expiry of submission
time and the bidder shall not be permitted to submit the same by any other mode. Similarly,
hard copies of the OFFLINE documents, if received by SIVN Ltd after the deadline for
submission as prescribed in RfS document/ ISN-ETS portal, then it will be considered
as ‘Late Bid’ and shall be considered non-responsive and shal be summarily rejected
notwithstanding the fact that the bidder has uploaded the bid online within the stipulated
deadline.

3.17 Maodification, Substitution and Withdrawal of Bids

3.17.1 The Bidder may modify, substitute, or withdraw his bid after its submission but in any case,
before the deadline for submission of bids.

3.17.2 Any dteration/ modification in the Bid or additional information supplied unless solicited
by SIVN subsequent to expiry of last date and time of submission of bids shal be
disregarded.

3.17.3 Withdrawa of a Price Bid during the interval between the deadline for submission of Bids
and expiration of the period of Bid validity specified in Clause 3.9 shal not be permitted
and appropriate action may be taken by SIVN as per provisions mentioned in the Bid
Security Declaration submitted by the Bidder.
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3.18 Bid Opening

3.18.1 Initialy, the Technical Bid shall be opened on scheduled date in the presence of Bidders
representatives who choose to attend, at the time, date, and location stipulated in the RfS
Document. The Bidders' representatives who are present shall sign a register evidencing
their attendance.

3.18.2 The Price Bid shall be opened only of those bidders whose Technical Bid are found
Technicaly qualified. The date of opening of Financial Bids will be informed to
Technically qualified bidders through Email/ISTN Portal. Financial Bids of the Bidders
whose Bids not found Technically qualified shall not be opened and shall not be considered
at al any further.

3.18.3 If it happens to be a holiday or due to any other technical reasons like non-availability of
the Committee Members etc. on the day of opening of the tender, the Bids shall be
opened on next working day at the same time.

3.18.4 SIVN Ltd shall not be responsible if online bid could not be opened within reasonable
time for whatsoever reason. In such a case, the bid shall remain unopened on the portal and
shall not be considered at all any further.

3.19 Clarification on Bids:

To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of bids, SIVN may, at its
discretion, ask any bidder for clarification of its Bid. The request for clarification and the
response shall be through e-mail but no change in the price or substance of the bid shall be
sought, offered, or permitted except as required to confirm the correction of arithmetical
errors discovered by the SIVN in the evaluation of the Bids. All such responses
submitted by the Bidder shall form part of their bid.

3.20 Evaluation of Bids and selection of Bidder:

The evaluation of Bids and selection of successful Bidders shall be carried out as per the
procedure and methodology stipulated in Section V of this RfS Document

321 Right of SJVN to Regect a Bid:

SIVN reserves the right to rgect any or al of the responses to RfS or cancel the RfS or
annul the bidding process for any project a any stage without assigning any reasons
whatsoever and without thereby any liability. In the event of the tender being cancelled
at any stage, the processing fee (excluding GST, if amount credited to SIVN’s account),
without any interests, and EMD submitted by the Bidders shall be returned to the respective
Bidders.
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3.22 Post Award Compliances:

Timely completion of al the milestones i.e. signing of PPA, meeting Financial Closure
Requirements/Conditions  Subsequent (PPA), Commissioning etc. will be the sole
responsibility of HPD. SJVN shall not be liable for issuing any intimations/ reminders to
HPDs for timely completion of milestones and/ or submission of compliance documents.

Any checklist shared with HPD by SIVN for compliance of above mentioned milestones
to be considered for the purpose of facilitation only. Any additional documents required as
per the conditions of Guidelines, RfS and PPA must be timely submitted by the HPD.

323 Pre-Contract Integrity Pact:

To improve transparency and fairness in the tendering process, SIVN is implementing
Integrity Pact. Integrity Pact is deemed as part of the contract so that the prospective
bidders are bound by its provisions.

To improve transparency and fairness in the tendering process, SIVN is implementing
Integrity Pact. Integrity Pact is deemed as part of the contract so that the prospective
bidders are bound by its provisions.

The Integrity Pact, signed by all the prospective Bidders and SIVN, shall commit the
persongofficils of both the partiess not to exercise any  corrupt
[fraudulent/collusive/coercive practices in the Tendering process and also during
implementation of the Contract. Only those Bidders who have entered into Integrity Pact
with SIVN shall be eligible to participate in the bidding process. Bidders signing Integrity
Pact shall not approach the Courts while representing the matters to IEMs and he/she will
await their decision in the matter Entering into Integrity Pact as per Performa enclosed in
the Tender Document is a basic qualifying requirement. In case of JV, each partner of JV
shall sign Integrity Pact with SIVN. In case of sub-contracting, the Principal Consultant
shall be responsible for adoption of Integrity Pact by the sub-Consultant.

To oversee the compliance of obligation under the Integrity Pact, Independent External
Monitor(s) (IEMs) have been appointed by SIVN. The details are as under:

Sl. No. Nameof IEMs Addressof IEMs
1 Sh. Manoj Pant, House no. 70, Usha Colony, Sahastradhara
|FoS (Retd.) Road, Dehradun-248013 (Uttarakhand),

Email- mpant2007@gmail.com

The Integrity Pact duly signed on behalf of SIVN is given in Section VII: Forms & Format.
The Integrity Pact along with its Annexure -A (Guidelines on banning of business dealings)
and Undertaking (FORM OF DECLARATION OF ELIGIBILITY) enclosed in the RfS
Document shall be downloaded, printed and signed by the bidder and the same will be
submitted with Bid.

The successful bidder shall submit duly executed Integrity Pact on Non-Judicial stamp
paper of appropriate value prior to signing of Contract Agreement.
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324  Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices:

It is expected from the Bidders that they will observe the high standard of ethics during the
bidding process and Construction of such Contracts. In pursuance of this policy:

1)

2)

3)

4)

For the purpose of this provision, the terms set-forth below shall mean as under:

a) “corrupt practice” is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or
indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party

b) “fraudulent practice” is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that
knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a
financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation

c) “collusive practice” is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to
achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of
another party; “collusive practice” is an arrangement between two or more parties
designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the
actions of another party;

d) “coercive practice” is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm,
directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly
the actions of a party;

€) “obstructive practice” is deliberately destroying, falsifying, atering or concealing
of evidence materia to the investigation or making false statements to investigators
in order to materially impede a investigation into allegations of a corrupt,
fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or
intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters
relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation.

A Bid shall be rgjected by SIVN if it is determined at any stage that respective Bidder
has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent or Collusive or Coercive practices or obstructive
practice in executing the Contract in question and his Bid Security shall be forfeited.
The Bidder shall not be entitled for any compensation whatsoever under this clause.

SIVN may declare a bidder ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time,
to be awarded a Contract if it at any time determines that the bidder has engaged in
corrupt or fraudulent or collusive or coercive practices in competing for, or in executing
a Contract.

The documents/information submitted by Bidder/Contractor may be verified by the
officials of SJVN for its authenticity at any time and the Bidder/Contractor shall provide
all facilities/co-operation in this regard. If it is found that any of the
documents/information submitted by the Bidder/Contractor is not genuine, SIVN shall
have full rights to cancel his Bid, forfeit the bid security and terminate the Contract, if
awarded.
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SECTION IV:
ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA
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SECTION IV: ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA

4.0 Bidder must meet the following Qualification Requirements:
4.1  General Eligibility Criteria

Bidders participating in the RfS will be required to meet the following eligibility criteria
(as applicable).

4.1.1 TheBidder shall be a Company as defined.

4.1.2 Bidding Consortium with one of the Companies as the Lead Member. Consortium
shortlisted and selected based on this RfS has to necessarily form a Project Company and
get it registered under the Companies Act, 2013 prior to signing of PPA, keeping the
origina shareholding of the Bidding Consortium unchanged. In case applications for
multiple Projects have been made by a Consortium, separate Project Companies can be
formed for each Project. For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby clarified that the
shareholding pattern of the Project Company shall be the identical to the shareholding
pattern of the Consortium as indicated in the Consortium Agreement (Format 7.5).

4.1.3 A foreign company can aso participate on standalone basis or as a member of consortium
a the RfS stage. In case of foreign company participating on standalone basis and its
selection as successful Bidder, it has to form a “Specia Purpose Vehicle” (SPV), i.e. an
Indian Company registered under the Companies Act, 2013 as its subsidiary Company,
with at least 51% shareholding in the SPV, before signing of PPA. In case a Foreign
Company is selected as the successful Bidder, it shall comply with all the laws and
provisions related to Foreign Direct Investment in India.

In case the foreign company participating as a member of consortium, Clause 4.1.7 of the
RfS shall be applicable.

4.1.4 In line with the O.M. issued by the Department of Expenditure, Ministry of Finance, vide
No. 7/10/2021-PPD(1) dated 23.02.2023 and subsequent amendments and clarifications
thereto, the Bidder shall meet the following criteria for its bid to be considered for
evaluation under the RfS.

i) Any bidder from a country which shares aland border with India will be eligible to bid
in this tender only if the bidder is registered with the Competent Authority (as defined
in the OM as referred above).

i) Any Bidder (including an Indian Bidder) who has a Specified Transfer of Technology
(ToT) arrangement with an entity from a country which shares aland border with India
will be eligible to participate in this RfS only if the Bidder is registered with the
Competent Authority under the referred OM.

i) “Bidder” in this reference, means any person or firm or company, including any
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member of a consortium, every artificial juridical person not faling in any of the
descriptions of bidders stated hereinbefore, including any agency branch or office
controlled by such person, participating in this tender.

iv) “Bidder from a country which shares a land border with India” for the purpose of this
clause, means:

a) An entity incorporated, established or registered in such a country; or

b) subsidiary of an entity incorporated, established or registered in such a country; or

c) An entity substantially controlled through entities incorporated established or
registered in such a country; or

d) An entity whose beneficial owner is situated in such a country; or €) An Indian
(or other) agent of such an entity; or

e) A natural person who is a citizen of such a country; or

f) A consortium where any member of the consortium falls under any of the above.

v) “Beneficial owner” for the purposes of Clause 4.1.4(iv)-(d) above will be as defined in
the referred OM, including subsequent amendments and clarifications thereto.

vi) In support of the above, the Bidder shall be required to submit necessary Undertaking,
as per Format 7.8/7.8A of the RfS.

vii) Other provisions of the referred OM dated 23.02.2023, except Sl. 17 of the OM, will
also be applicable for this tender. Any interpretation of the above clauses will be made
in line with the referred OM, including subsequent amendments and clarifications
thereto.

4.1.5 Limited Liability Partnership (LLPs) firms are not eligible for participation.

4.1.6 A Bidder which has been selected as Successful Bidder based on this RfS can aso
execute the Project through a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) i.e. a Project Company
especialy incorporated/acquired as a subsidiary Company of the successful bidder for
setting up of the Project, with at least 51% shareholding in the SPV which has to be
registered under the Indian Companies Act, 2013, before signing of PPA. Multiple SPVs
may also be utilized for executing more than one Project.

4.1.7 Any consortium, if selected as Successful Bidder for the purpose of supply of power
to SIVN, shall incorporate a Project company with equity participation by the Members in
line with consortium agreement (to be submitted along with the response to RfS) before
signing of PPA with SIVN, i.e. the Project Company incorporated shall have the same
shareholding pattern as that indicated in the Consortium Agreement given at the time of
submission of response to RfS. This shall not change till the signing of PPA and thereafter
the combined shareholding of the Consortium Members in the SPV/Project Company
shall not fal below 51% at any time prior to O1 (one) year from the SCSD, except with
the prior approval of SIVN.
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4.1.8 The Bidder or any of its Affiliates should not be a wilful defaulter to any lender, and

4.1.9

the Bidder & any of its Affiliate including any Consortium Member & any of its Affiliate,
their directors should not have been barred or included in the blacklist by any government
agency or authority in India, the government of the jurisdiction of the Bidder or Members
where they are incorporated or the jurisdiction of their principal place of business, any
international financial institution such as the World Bank Group, Asian Development Bank,
African Development Bank, Inter-American Development Bank, Asian Infrastructure
Investment Bank etc or the United Nations or any of its agencies. The Bidder shall submit
an_undertaking to this effect. In the event the HPG/HPD is in default to the
lender(s), lenders shall be entitled to undertake “Substitution of Promoter” in
concurrence with the Procures.

For avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that the fully owned subsidiary Company as
mentioned in Clauses 4.1.3 and 4.1.6 above should be an immediate subsidiary of the
bidder, without any intermediaries involved. The following illustrations are provided to
clarify the same

Scenario 1
Bidder
ﬂ Min. 51 % shareholding
Entity A (Project Company / SPV)
Scenario 2

Bidder

u Min. 51 % (or any other %) shareholding

Entity A (Intermediary)

Min. 51 % shareholding

Entity B (Project Company / SPV))

As per the RfS, only Scenario 1 is permissible in case of projects being implemented
by SPVs.
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4.2

421

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

4.2.5

4.2.6

4.3

43.1

Technical Eligibility Criteria

Under this RfS, it is proposed to promote only commercially established and
operational technologies to minimize the technology risk and to achieve timely
commissioning of the Projects. The Bidder may indicate regarding the selection of
technology and its details at the time of submission of bids in the prescribed Format 7.9.
However, the Successful Bidder has to confirm the selection of technology in line with the
above at the time of Financial Closure. The technology proposed at the time of submission
of response to RfS can be changed at the time of Financial Closure

In order to ensure only quality systems are installed, and in order to bring-in advantage
of latest development/Models, the type certified wind turbine models listed in Revised List
of Models and Manufactures (RLMM) issued by MNRE as updated until the SCSD of the
projects will be allowed for deployment under the Scheme.

The provisions as contained in the O.M. dated 10.03.2021 issued by MNRE on the
subject “Approved Models and Manufacturers of Solar Photovoltaic Modules (Requirement
of Compulsory Registration) Order, 2019-Implementation-Reg.” and its subsequent
amendments and clarifications issued until the bid submission deadline, shall be
applicable for this RfS. The modules used in the Projects under this RfS should have
been included in the List-1 under the above Order, valid as on the date of invoicing of such
modules.

The wind power projects will be developed as per the Guidelines issued by the
Government of India for development of Wind Power Projects. For solar modules and
balance of systems, the technical guidelinesissued by the Government of India from time
to time for grid connected Solar PV systems and the technical guidelines prevalent at the
time of commissioning of the Project, will be followed.

The Bidder is required to undertake to furnish evidence of meeting the above criteria in
line with provisions of Clause 6.12 of RfS. The undertaking shall be submitted as per
enclosed Format 7.9.

The Projects shall also comply with the criteria for power supply as detailed in Clause
6.7 (Power Supply by the HPG) of the RfS.

Financial Eligibility Criteria

Net-Worth

i) The Net Worth of the Bidder should be equa to or greater than INR 1.226
CroressMW (Rs. 1,22,60,000/MW) of the quoted capacity, as on the last date of
previous Financial Year, i.e. FY 2022-23 or as on the day at least 7 days prior to the
bid submission deadline.
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In case the audited Annual accounts for FY: 2022-23 or for the period during FY
2023-24 for which Net Worth is submitted, is not available, bidder(s) shall submit
Net Worth Certificate from a practicing Chartered Accountant/Statutory Auditor to
demonstrate fulfilment of above criteria.

i) The net worth to be considered for the above purpose will be the cumulative net-
worthof the Bidding Company or Consortium, together with the Net Worth of those
Affiliates of the Bidder(s) that undertake to contribute the required equity funding
and PBG/POI in case the Bidder(s) fail to do so in accordance with the RfS.

iii) Net Worth to be considered for this clause shall be the total Net Worth as
caculated in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and any further
amendments thereto.

4.3.2 Liquidity

In order to ascertain that the Bidder has sufficient means to manage the fund requirements
for the Project, the Bidder shall be required to demonstrate at least one of the following
parameters:

i) A minimum average annua turnover of INR 1.839 CroresMW (Rs.
1,83,90,000/MW) of the quoted capacity during the last three Financial years
ending on 31.03.2023, which should be evidenced by Audited Baance Sheet
along with Profit & Loss account or a certificate issued by a practicing Chartered
Accountant. In case the audited Annual accounts for FY: 2022-23 is not available,
bidders shall submit Annual turnover certificate for FY: 2022-23 from a practicing
Chartered accountant/Statutory Auditor to demonstrate fulfilment of above criteria
It is hereby clarified that “Other Income” as indicated in the annual accounts of the
Bidder shall not be considered for arriving at the annual turnover.

1) Internal resource generation capability, in the form of Profit Before Depreciation
Interest and Taxes (PBDIT) for a minimum amount of INR 36.78 Lakhs /MW
(Rs.36,78,000/MW) of the quoted capacity, as on the last date of previous FY,
2022-23.In case the audited Annua accounts for FY: 2022-23 is not available,
bidders shall submit PBDIT Certificate from a practicing Chartered
Accountant/Statutory Auditor to demonstrate fulfilment of above criteria.

iii) In-principle sanction letter from the lending institutions/ banks of the Bidder,
committing a Line of Credit for a minimum amount of INR 76.625 Lakhs/MW
(Rs.76,62,500/MW) of the quoted capacity, towards meeting the working capital
requirement of the project quoted under this RfS. Such letter can also be obtained by
the Affiliate(s) of the Bidder.

4.3.3 The Bidder may seek qualification on the basis of financial capability of its Affiliate(s)
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for the purpose of meeting the qualification requirements as per Clauses 4.3. 1 and 4.3.2
above. In case of the Bidder being a Bidding Consortium, any Member may seek
gualification on the basis of financial capability of its Affiliate(s). In such cases, the Bidder
shall be required to submit Board Resolutions from the respective Affiliate(s),
undertaking to contribute the required equity funding and Performance Bank
Guarantees/POI in case the Bidder(s) fail to do so in accordance with the RfS. In case of
non-availability of the Board Resolution as required above, a letter from the
CEO/Managing Director of the respective Affiliate(s), undertaking the above, shal be
required to be submitted and the requisite Board Resolution from the Affiliate(s) shall be
required to be submitted prior to signing of PPA.

4.3.4 For the purposes of meeting financial requirements, only latest unconsolidated audited
annual accounts shal be used. However, audited consolidated annua accounts of the
Bidder may be used for the purpose of financial requirements provided the Bidder has at
least twenty six percent (26%) equity in each Company whose accounts are merged in the
audited consolidated account and provided further that the financial capability of such
Companies (of which accounts are being merged in the consolidated accounts) shall not be
considered again for the purpose of evaluation of any other response to this RfS.

4.35 A Company/Consortium would be required to submit annual audited accounts for the
last three financial years ending on 2022-23, along with net worth, annual turnover and
PBDIT certificate (as applicable) from a practicing Chartered Accountant/Statutory Auditor
to demonstrate fulfilment of the criteria. In case of foreign companies, the Bidders shall be
required to submit the annual audited accounts for the last respective financial years as
per the general norm in the country where the Bidder or its Affiliate(s) is/ are located.

Note: In case of foreign Bidders, in the event the Bidder is unable to furnish the
audited annual accounts for the previous financial year as per the prevalent norm in the
respective country, the Bidder shall submit the annual audited accounts of the last three
financia years for which the audited accounts are available excluding previous financia
year. This, however, would be acceptable, subject to the condition, that the last date of
response to this RfS fals on or within the deadline for completion of audit of annua
accounts of companies, as stipulated by the laws/rules of the respective country, and the
Bidder shall submit the corresponding documentary evidence against the same. In case the
annual accounts are submitted in a language other than English, a certified English
trandlation from an approved trandator shall be required to be submitted by the Bidder.

4.3.6 For meeting the above financial digibility criteria, if the data is provided by the Bidder in
aforeign currency, equivalent Indian Rupees of Net Worth and other financial parameters
will be calculated by the Bidder using Reserve Bank of India’s reference rates prevailing on
the date of closing of the accounts for the respective financial year.

4.3.7 In case of any currency for which RBI reference rate is not available, Bidders shall
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4.3.8

convert such currency into US Dollar (USD) as per the exchange rates certified by their
banker prevailing on the relevant date and used for such conversion. After such conversion,
Bidder shall follow the procedure/ submit document as elaborated above.

In case the response to RfS is submitted by a Consortium, then the financia
requirement (both the Net-Worth and Liquidity requirements) to be met by each Member of
the Consortium shall be computed in proportion to the equity commitment made by each
member in the Project Company.

For example, if two companies A and B form a Consortium with equity participation in
70:30 ratio and submit their bid for a capacity of 250 MW, then, total Net-Worth to be met
by the Consortium is Rs. 1.839 Crores x 250MW = Rs. 459.75 Crores. Minimum
requirement of Net-Worth to be met by Lead Member A would be minimum Rs. 321.825
Crores and to be met by Consortium Member B would be Rs. 137.925 Crores. Similar
methodology shall be followed for computation of liquidity requirement

Note: Wherever applicable, audited accounts for the last three financial years ending
on 31.03.2023 will be required to be submitted for meeting the qualification
requirements. In case the audited Annual accounts for FY: 2022-23 is not available, bidder
shall submit Certificates issued by a practicing CA/Statutory Auditor for FY: 2022-23
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SECTION: V

BID EVALUATION AND SELECTION
OF BIDDERS
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SECTION V: BID EVALUATION AND SELECTION OF BIDDERS

5.0

5.1

511

512

5.1.3

5.14

5.15

Bid Evaluation and Selection of Successful Bidders:

Bid evaluation will be carried out considering the information furnished by Bidders as per
provisions of this RfS. The detailed evaluation procedure and selection of bidders are
described in subsequent clauses in this Section.

Evaluation of Technical Bids (Step 1)

The first envelope (Technical Bid submitted online) of only those bidders will be
opened whose required documents as mentioned in the RfS are received by SIVN. Bid
opening (online) will be done only after the deadline for submission of Bank Guarantee of
EMD.

Documents (as mentioned in the previous clause) received after the bid submission
deadline specified in the Bid Information Sheet shall be rgected and returned
unopened, if super- scribed properly with address, to the bidder.

SIVN will examine all the documents submitted by the Bidders and ascertain meeting
of digibility conditions prescribed in the RfS. During theexamination of the bids, SIVN
may seek clarificationg/additional documents to the documents submitted etc. from the
Bidders if required to satisfy themselves for meeting the eligibility conditions by the
Bidders. Bidders shall be required to respond to any clarifications/additional documents
sought by SIVN within 07 (seven) days from the date of such intimation from SJVN.
All correspondence in this regard shall be made through email/ISN-ETS portal only. It
shall be the responsibility of the Bidder to ensure that the email id of the authorized
signatory of the Bidder is functional. The Bidder may providean additional email id of the
authorized signatory in the covering letter. It shall be the sole responsibility of the
Bidders to remove all the discrepancies and furnish additional documents as requested.
SJIVN shall not be responsible for rejection of any bid on account of the above.

The response to RfS submitted by the Bidder shall be scrutinized to establish Techno-
Commercial eligibility as per the RfS.

Deter mination of responsiveness

i) SIVN will examine the Techno-commercial Bids to determine whether they are
complete, whether EMD/Bid Security Declaration, RfS Document Fee (if required) and
Bid-Processing fee have been furnished, whether the bidder has submitted supporting
certificates’”documents  justifying the qualifications/requirements, whether the
documents have been properly signed, whether al the requisite declaration,
undertakings have been furnished and whether the Technical bids are in order. SIVN
may waive any minor informality, non-conformity or irregularity in a bid that does not
constitute a materia deviation and that does not prejudice or affect the relative ranking
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of any Bidder as aresult of the evaluation of Bids, pursuant to these Clauses.

i) Prior to the detailed evaluation, the SIVN will determine whether each Bid is of
acceptable quality, is complete and is substantialy responsive to the RfS Document.
For purposes of this determination, a substantially responsive Bid is one that conforms
to al the terms, conditions and specifications of the RfS Document without material
deviations, objections, conditionality or reservations. A material deviation, objection,
conditionality or reservation is one (i) that affects in any substantial way the scope,
quality or performance of the Contract; (ii) that limits in any substantial way,
inconsistent with the RfS Document, SIVN’s rights or the successful Bidder’s
obligations under the Contract; or (iii) whose rectification would unfairly affect the
competitive position of other Bidders who are presenting substantially responsive bids.

iii) If a Bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the SIVN, and may not
subsequently be made responsive by correction or withdrawal of the nonconforming
deviation or reservation.

5.1.6 Non-ResponsiveBid

The electronic response to RfS submitted by the bidder along with the documents submitted
online to SIVN shall be scrutinized to establish “Responsiveness of the bid”. Each bidder’s
response to RfS shall be checked for compliance with the submission requirements set
forth in this RfS. Any of the following conditions shall cause the Bid to be “Non-
responsive”:

a) Non-submission of the requisite Cost of RfS and/or Bid Processing Fee as mentioned
in the Bid Information Sheet.

b) Responseto RfS not received by the due date and time of bid submission
¢) Non-submission of correct, valid and operative Pass-Phrases for both Technical and

Financial Bid (Price Bid) Parts after the deadline of Bid Submission, and before the
commencement of the Online Tender Opening Event (TOE) of Technical Bid

d) Any indication of tariff in any part of response to the RfS, other than in the financial
bid.
€) Non-submission of payment details against Cost of RfS and Bid Processing Fee.

f) Datafilled in the Electronic Form of Financial Bid (Second Envelope), not in line with
the instructions mentioned in the same electronic form.

0) Except for the scenario as per Clause 6.4.1 below, in case it is found that the Bidding
Company including Ultimate Parent Company/ Parent Company/Affiliate/Group
Companies have submitted more than one response to this RfS, then all these bids
submitted shall be treated as non-responsive and rejected.

h) Non-submission or partial submission of EMD in acceptable form along with response
to RfS.

i) Inany of the above cases, the bid shall not be considered for bid opening and evaluation
process. Further, in case of (h), such bidder will be debarred from participating in any of
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5.2

5.3
531

532

5.3.3

534

535

5.3.6

5.3.7

538

the tenders issued by SIVN, for a period of 6 (six) months, starting from the last date of
bid submission of thisRfS.

The Bidder(s) shal be declared as technically qualified provided that their bids are
substantially responsive and meet the requirements mentioned at Section-1V: Eligibility
Criteria and other terms and conditions as specified in this tender document. The Financial
Bids of only those Bidders will be opened who are Technically qualified as per the criteria
mentioned above.

Financial Bid Evaluation (Step 2)

In this step evaluations of Technically Qualified Bids shall be done based on the “First
Round Tariff”, quoted by the Bidder in the Electronic Form of Financial Bid. After this
step, the shortlisted bidders shall be invited for the Reverse Auction.

Second Envelope (containing First Round Tariff) of only those bidders shall be opened
whose technical bids are found to be qualified as per the RfS.

The Bidder including its Parent, Affiliate or Ultimate Parent or any Group Company
will have to submit a single bid (single application) quoting a single tariff in Indian
Rupee per kWh for the offered quantum of power applied for. The tariff has to be
guoted in Indian Rupee per kWh up to two places of decima only. If it is quoted with
more than two digits after decimal, digits after first two decimal places shall be ignored.
(For e.g. if the quoted tariff isINR 2.337, then it shall be considered as INR 2.33).

In this step, evaluation will be carried out based on tariff quoted by Bidders.

On completion of technical bid evaluation, if it is found that only one or two Bidder(s)
isare eligible for the next stage, opening of the financia bid of the Bidder(s) will
be at thediscretion of SIVN. Thereafter, SIVN will take appropriate action as deemed fit.

If the first-round tariff quoted is same for two or more Bidders, then all the Bidders with
same tariff shall be considered of equal rank/ standing in the order.

All Bidders with same tariff shall be digible for reverse auction round (provided their rank
isequal to or less than nth Bidder as mentioned in Clause 5.4.2 of the RfS.

Ranking of bidders after Financial Bid Evaluation: Following illustrates an example of
ranking of bidders after financial bid opening and evaluation.

Bidder Submitted Financial Bid Ranking
Bl R 2.10 (Tariff in ¥/ kWh) L1
B2 R 2.20 (Tariff in %/ kWh) L2
B3 R 2.30 (Tariff in ¥/ kWh) L3
B4 R 2.30 (Tariff in ¥/ kWh) L3
B5 R 2.43 (Tariff in ¥/ kWh) L4
B6 R 2.60 (Tariff in ¥/ kWh) L5
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54
54.1

54.2

B7 % 2.65 (Tariff in 3/ KWh) L6
B8 % 2.69 (Tariff in 3/ KWh) L7
B9 Z 2.70 (Tariff in 3/ KWh) L8

Reverse Auction (Step 3)

The reverse auction for the total tendered capacity shal be conducted on the portal
https.//www.bharat-€el ectronictender.com, on the day as intimated by SIVN to the eligible
bidders. Rules of the auction process are brought out below, and are also contained
in Annexure-B of the RfS. As part of submission of their response to RfS, the Bidders shall
submit the scanned copy of Annexure-B of the RfS duly signed and stamped by the
Authorized signatory, as an acceptance of the provisions contained therein.

The Tota eligible bidders for the reverse auction shall be decided as mentioned

below: Assuming
T = Tota Technically Qualified Bidders, and

Sk = Cumulative capacity till the ‘k’th serial number bidder (not the ‘k’th rank
bidder) after ranking is done in ascending order from L1 onwards

SE = (i) In case ST < 1500MW, SE=0.8 X ST

(Eligible (i) In case ST > 1500 MW, SE = 0.8 X ST subject to maximum
Capacity for  |eligible capacity being 1500 MW.

award

Total eligible Bidders for e-Reverse Auction

i) In case (0.8 X ST) < 1500 MW: dl the techno-commercially qualified bidders whose
financial bids are in line with the RfS provisions, will be shortlisted for e-RA.
Accordingly, the no. of bidders shortlisted for e-RA, i.e., “n” = “T”.

ii) In case (0.8 X ST) >1500 MW: The lowest ranked bidder, i.e., the bidder quoting the
highest tariff (the “H1 bidder”) shall be eliminated at this stage, and the remaining
Technicaly qualified bidders whose financial bids are in line with the RfS provisions,
will be shortlisted for e-RA.

Accordingly, the no. of bidders shortlisted for e-RA, i.e., “n” = “T”-1

Note:

i) Incasemorethan onebidder isranked as*“H1” bidder, i.e, such biddersareat the
sametariff, all such bidderswill be eliminated at this stage

i) The above elimination will take place subject to the condition that the total bid
capacity after such elimination remains more than 1500 MW and the minimum
number of shortlisted bidders for e-RA, after elimination at this stage, remains 3.
In the contradictory scenario, no elimination will take place at this stage
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http://www.bharat-electronictender.com/

For e.g. (Shortlisting of Bidders for reverse auction):

Scenario-1: Total bid capacity of techno-commercially shortlisted bidders = ST=5950MW

Technically

S. | qualified Capacity (0.8x Shortlisted
No. | Bidder | Rak | vw) | T | SE sn | ™ | Bidders

1 B3 L1 750 B3

2 B5 L2 500 B5

3 Bl L3 600 Bl

4 B4 L3 500 B4

5 B2 L4 550 10 1200 | 1200 9 B2

6 B6 L5 750 MW MW B6

7 B7 L6 500 B7

8 B8 L7 550 B8

9 B9 L8 650 B9
10 B10 L9 600

*n = 10-1 = 9 as per the above formula.

Upon shortlisting of bidders for e-RA, if it is found that more than the eligible bidders
shortlisted for e-RA have quoted the same tariff, ranking of bidders to be indicated in the e-
RA window shall be decided based on draw of lots.

Scenario-2: Total bid capacity of techno-commercially shortlisted bidders = ST=1500MW

Technically ;
S | qualified Capacity | T | SE | (08x | n Sg?:jt(;gt:d
No.| Bidder | R&K | (Mw) Sn)
1 B3 L1 300 B2
2 B2 L2 600 B3
1200 | 1200
3 Bl L3 200 4 MW MW 4 Bl
4 B4 L4 400 B4

*n = 4 as per the above formula

54.3 At least one week prior to reverse auction, an advance intimation regarding the date and
time of the reverse auction will be sent by e-mail to all the bidders whose technical bids
have been opened and found to be qualified. However, from this advance intimation it shall
not be construed by the bidders that they have been shortlisted for Reverse Auction.
Further, at least two hours before the scheduled start time of Reverse Auction, a system
generated email for invitation for Reverse Auction will be sent to al those bidders only
who have been shortlisted based on the criteria mentioned at Clause 5.4.2 above.
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5.4.4 Shortlisted bidders for Reverse Auction will be able to login into the ISN-ETS portal
of reverse auction 15 minutes before the start time of reverse auction

i) During the 15 minutes prior to start of reverse auction process, the respective tariff of
the bidder shall be displayed on its window.

i) The minimum decrement value for tariff shall be INR 0.01 per kWh. The Bidder can
mention its revised discounted tariff which hasto be at least 01 (One) Paisaless than its
current tariff.

iii) Bidders can only quote any value lower than their previous quoted tariff taking into
consideration the minimum decrement value mentioned in the previous clause.
However, at any stage, increase in tariff will not be permissible. Bidders can improve
their ranking by quoting the tariff lower than their last quoted tariff.

iv) During reverse auction, the Bidder shall not have the option of changing the total
capacity of power offered while quoting tariff during reverse auction.

V) In the bidder’s bidding window, the following information can be viewed by the bidder:

a) Itstariff astheinitial start price and there after last quoted tariff along with the
project capacity for which the Bidder is qualified.

b) The list of al the Bidders with their following details: Pseudo Identity, last
guoted tariff and project capacity

vi) The initial auction period will be of 60 (sixty) minutes with a provison of auto

extension by 8 (eight) minutes from the scheduled/ extended closing time. Such auto

extension shall be effected if by way of reduction in tariff, a Bidder causes a change in

its zona placement at that instant. The ‘zones’ are as defined below:

Green Zone: This zone consists of the Bidders who may be alocated their full quoted

Project capacity, subject to provisions of Clause 5.5, if the auction is closed at

that instant.

Orange Zone: This zone consists of the Bidders who may be allocated a part of their

full quoted Project capacity, subject to provisions of Clause 5.5, if the auction is closed

at that instant.

Red Zone This zone consists of the Bidders who will not be awarded their
quoted Project capacity, subject to provisions of Clause 5.5, if the auction is
closed at that instant.

Blue Zone: This Zone consists of the bidders who have submitted their bids with same
time stamping and same tariff. These bidders may or may not be allocated their full
or their partial capacity.

If no such change as described above is effected during the last 20 minutes of auction
period or extended auction period, then the reverse auction process will automatically
get closed. It may be noted that the green and orange coloured “zones” are indicative of
the possibility of the bidder being €eligible to be awarded its own quoted capacity
(partialy or fully), however, do not provide the guarantee of LoA being issued by SIVN
for the said capacity. L oA issuance will be solely governed by Clauses 5.5 & 5.6 below.
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5.5
551

5.5.2

553

Selection of Successful Bidders

Subsequent to conclusion of the e-RA process, the bidders in the “Green” and
“Orange” zones as per Clause 5.4.4(vi) above, will be listed in the increasing order
of the tariffs discovered at the end of e-RA.

The bidders who fal within the range of (and including) the lowest tariff (L1 tariff) + 2%
of the L1 tariff-hereinafter referred to as “the range”- will be declared as Successful
Bidders under the RfS, subject to the following conditions:

i)

In case the cumulative capacity shortlisted as per the range exceeds SE (capacity
eligible for award as per Clause 5.5.2), the list of Successful Bidders shall be limited by
SE.

In aborderlinei.e., the scenario wherein more than one bidder is eligible to be declared
as Successful Bidder at the highest tariff (the tariff at the end of the range), and the
cumulative capacity exceeds SE, time stamping of bidders shall be used to limit
allocation of cumulative capacity up to SE. In such cases, those bidders who are at the
same tariff, but they are ranked lower than the ones which fall within the cumulative
capacity limit of SE, will not be eligible to be declared as Successful Bidders.

In other words, in every possible scenario, the total capacity to be awarded under the
RfS shall be limited to SE.

iii) Time stamping- In case of atie among two or more Bidders (i.e. their last quoted tariff

being the same), they will be considered in the chronological order of their last quoted
tariff during the e-RA with preference to be given to that Bidder who has quoted his last
tariff during the e-RA, earlier than others.

iv) In the above casg, if the time of quote also becomes exactly same among the Bidders at

atie, then the ranking among these Bidders shall be done as follows:

e Step 1: Lowest rank will be given to the Bidder who has quoted the lowest in
Financial Bid (Electronic Form) and so on. If thereis also atie among any of these
bidders, then the following step (Step 2) will be followed.

e Step 2: Ranking will be done based on draw of lots

[lustration: Following example provides a possible illustration of the above methodology:

e L1 tariff discovered after e-RA: Rs. 2.50/kWh

e Therange (L1+2% of L1): Rs. 2.550/kWh
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Quoted Cumulative Tariff Qualified
Rank Capacity Capacity Time stamp (INR/KWHh) as Successful

(MW) (MW) Bidder

L1 100 100 NA 2.50 L1

L2 200 300 NA 251 L2

L2 100 400 NA 251 L2

L3 100 500 NA 2.53 L3

L4 200 700 NA 254 L4

L5 400 1100 16:00:01 2.55 L5

L5 300 1400 16:00:02 2.55 L5

L5 100 1500 16:00:03 2.55 L5

L6 200 1700 NA 2.56 L6

L7 300 2000 NA 2.60

Note: The allocation of cumulative project capacity shall be closed at SE. However,
in no case, shall the capacity of a single Project selected under this RfS, be less
than 50 MW, subject to provision of Clause 6.4 (Maximum Eligibility for
Contracted Capacity Allocation for a Bidder) of the RfS

In case the partial capacity offered to the last Successful Bidder as per Cl. 5.4.2 above,
is lower than 50% of the total quoted capacity by such Bidder, the Bidder shall have an
option to refuse such offered partia capacity, and the BG against EMD submitted by such
Bidder shall be returned along with those of the unsuccessful Bidders. Such refusal shall be
intimated to SIVN within 7 days of completion of e-RA and not later than 7 days of
issuance of LoAs by SIVN, failing which, the awarded capacity shall be deemed to be
accepted by the said Bidder.

In case the partial capacity offered to the last Successful Bidder as per Cl. 5.4.2 above, is
greater than or equa to 50% of the total quoted capacity by such Bidder, it shall be
mandatory for the last Bidder to accept the partia capacity offered against its quoted
capacity, subject to the total cumulative capacity awarded under the RfS not exceeding SE.
In case the last Successful Bidder refuses to accept such partial capacity offered by SIVN,
the Bank Guarantee(s) against EMD submitted by such Bidder shall be encashed by SIVN.

5.6 Issuanceof LOAS

5.6.1 At the end of sdlection process, Letters of Award (LoAs) will be issued to the
Successful Bidders discovered as above. The LoAs shall be awarded for the Contracted
Capacity as quoted by the respective successful bidder, or the partial capacity, as the case
may be. In case of a Consortium being selected as the successful Bidder, the LoA will be
issued to the Lead Member of the Consortium.

5.6.2 In case SIVN is unable to find buyers/off-takers for the tariffs as discovered after the
bidding process, SIVN reserves the right to annul the bid process without any financial
implicationsto any of the parties concerned. SIVN reserves the right to cancel any or all
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5.6.3

5.6.4

of the bids in view of higher tariff discovered after e-RA. In al cases, SIVN’s decision
regarding selection of Bidder through Reverse Auction or other- wise based on tariff or
annulment of tender process shall be final and binding on all participating bidders.

PPAs will be executed subsequent to signing of PSAs by SIVN. After the issuance of
LoA(s) for the cumulative awarded capacity, in case the total capacity of PSAs signed by
SIVN is lower than the cumulative awarded capacity, the cumulative PPA capacity to be
executed by SIVN will be reduced accordingly.

For a particular bidder, in case the finally modified capacity offered by SIVN for signing
of PPA is lower than the capacity for which the LoA was issued to the said Bidder, the
respective Bidder may choose to reject such modified capacity, and will be allowed to exit
the process without any liability to either party (i.e., SIVN or the Bidder), and the said
refused capacity will be offered to the next successful bidder as per the list of successful
bidders. In case such offered partial capacity for signing of PPA is less than 50 MW,
subject to provision of Clause 6.4 (Maximum Eligibility for Contracted Capacity Allocation
for aBidder) of the RfS., PPA will not be executed with such Bidder.
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SECTION VI:
CONDITIONS OF CONTRCAT
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6.1

6.2

6.2.1

SECTION VI: CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

Scope of Work

i) Under this RfS, the Hybrid Power Developer (HPD) shall be required to set up
ISTS connected Wind-Solar Hybrid Power Projects including the transmission network
up to the Interconnection/ Delivery Point, with the primary objective of supplying
Wind-Solar Hybrid Power to SIVN, at its own cost and as per the provisions of the RfS
and PPA.

i) Developers who have aready installed wind solar hybrid power plants or are in the
process of constructing such plants and have untied capacity may also participate in the
bid. In such case, they will be given the benefit of a longer period of PPA,
commensurate to the duration between the actual date of commencement of supply of
power and SCSD.

iii) Obtaining all clearances, permit, licenses including arrangement of land, installation and
ownership of the Project, connectivity to the Grid prior to SCSD shall be under the
scope of the HPD.

iv) The Projects to be selected under this scheme provide for deployment of RE
Power Projects. However, the selection of Projects would be technology agnostic.

Total capacity offered:

Selection of “Project Developer” or “Developer” or “Hybrid Power Developer
(HPD)” or “Hybrid Power Generator (HPG) for supply of Wind-Solar Hybrid Power for
total capacity of 1500 MW will be carried out through e-bidding followed by e-Reverse
Auction process.

Wind-Solar Hybrid Power Project Configuration:

i) The term “Project” shall have the meaning as defined in Section-Il of the RfS, and
shall refer to the Project Capacity or the Installed Capacity/Rated AC
Capacity as quoted by the bidder (at the time of bidding)/awarded to the Bidder
(after issue of LOA).

i) Wind-Solar Hybrid Power Projects are required to be designed for interconnection with
the ISTS substation at voltage level of 220kV or above.

iii) The minimum Project size of a single Hybrid Power Project shall be 50 MW to be
interconnected at an ISTS Delivery Point.

iv) Under this RfS, a Hybrid Power Project shall mean a Project comprising two
‘components’ - Solar and Wind component. The rated capacities of both the solar
and wind components shal be minimum 33% of the total Contracted Capacity, in
order to qualify the Project as a Hybrid Project under the Guidelines. It is further
clarified that the criteria of a solar/wind component meeting minimum 33% of the
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v)

Contracted Capacity of the Project will be examined based on the rated AC capacity
declared by the Bidder for the corresponding component of the Project. The sum of the
rated installed capacities of Solar and Wind power components as committed by the
Bidder/HPD shall be more than or equal to the Contracted Capacity.

For example, in case the Contracted Capacity of a Project is 100 MW, the rated
capacities of both Wind and Solar components shall be minimum 33 MW each.

Note: In the interest of utilizing the optimization potential offered by hybridization of
two components (Wind and Solar), the HPD is free to declare the rated Contracted
Capacity of the Hybrid Power Project irrespective of the rated capacities of the Solar
and Wind project components, and the same shall be considered as the Contracted
Capacity of the Hybrid Power Project. The same Contracted Capacity shall be entered
in the Covering Letter and shall be considered as the Contracted Capacity under the
PPA.

For avoidance of any doubt, it is clarified that the Contracted Capacity of the
Hybrid Project does not necessarily have to be the arithmetic sum of the rated
installed capacity of the two components. However, the requirements as indicated
above, regarding the minimum installed rated capacity of each of the components shall
be strictly adhered to, failing which, the Project shall not be eligible for commissioning
under the RfS.

The capacity (in MW) quoted by the Bidders in the Covering Letter (and the LoA
issued by SIVN) shall mean “Contracted Capacity”.

vi) A single Project component may however, also be sub-divided into a number of

‘blocks’, being set up at multiple locations, if required. The minimum voltage level for
a single block shall be 33 kV. These individual blocks shall be pooled at a minimum
voltage level of 33 kV, at a ‘pooling station’. It may be noted that the said pooling
station will have a different meaning than the Pooling Substation as defined in the RfS.
A single transmission line shall connect the above pooling substation to the ‘sub-
pooling’ substation as defined in Clause 6.6.

One of the possible configurations of a solar Project component having separate
locations for each block, isillustrated below, for elaboration:

Pr oj ect Capacity 50 MW

Block B1 20
MW (Wind
Project)

Block B1 30
MW (Solar
Project)

Sub Pooling S/S >33 kV

A 4

ISTS /S > 220 kV (Delivery Point)

It is reiterated that the ‘sub-pooling station’ as indicated above above, is different than
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the Pooling Substation as defined in the RfS. The Pooling Station as defined in the RfS
shall construe the following configuration:

Hybrid Power Project-
P2 (to be configured
upto the level prior to
the ISTS Substation, as
indicated above)

Hybrid Power
Project-P1 (to be
configured upto the
level prior to the ISTS

Substation, as

Metering at 132 kV and above

Metering at 132 kV and above

Pooling Station

A 4

ISTS /S > 220 kV (Délivery Point)

vii) The HPDs shall demonstrate the rated capacities of each component separately at
the input side of the Sub-Pooling Substation, in line with the Commissioning procedure
as notified by SIVN.

Important Note:

1) Bidders may note that the above configuration is for illustration purpose only and
Bidders are required to design their own configuration as per their
suitability/viability to meet the requirements stipul ated in the RfS).

2) In case of discrepancies with respect to the meaning of the terms as illustrated
above, with usage of the above terms in other clauses of the RfS, the above clauses,
i.e., Cl. 6.2.1 (i)-(vii) of the RfS shal prevail.

viii)  The Wind-Solar Hybrid Configuration will be submitted by the bidder at the time of
bid submission, and it shall remain unchanged until the issuance of LoA. The above
configuration can be changed till the time of Financial Closure. Also, any change
in delivery point(s) is /are allowed upto Financial Closure of the Project. Provided
that any extension in SCSD on account of such change (s) in configuration / delivery
point / project location shall not be granted. Implications of any delay in obtaining
connectivity and subsequently, compliance with financial closure/commencement of
supply of power on account of the above, will be borne by the HPD. However,
subject to provision of Clause no. 4.2.1, the HPD is alowed to increase/instal
additional RE generating capacity and subsequent to the above deadline/beyond SCSD
for the purpose of repowering and/or increase the quantum of Renewable Energy
beyond the leve initially committed. In case the rated capacities of the RE components
are increased subsequent to the above deadline/beyond SCSD and such addition of RE
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Capacity leads to any additiona transmission/other charges upon Procurer, as per the
applicable regulations, then such additional transmission/other charges shall be borne
by the HPD

6.2.2 Not Used.

6.2.3 HPD shal combine the RE generating system for ensuring the supply of Wind-Solar
Hybrid Power and ensuring the performance criteria stipulated in the RfS

6.3 Clearances Required from the State Gover nment and Other Local Bodies

6.3.1 The Hybrid Power Developers (HPDs) are required to obtain al necessary clearances
and permits as required for setting up the Hybrid Power Projects, including but not limited
to the following:

i) No Objection (NOC) / Environmental clearance (if applicable) for the Project.
ii) Forest Clearance (if applicable) for the land for the Project.

iii) HPDs setting up projects in vicinity of Air Force bases/aerodromes, are advised to apply
for necessary MoD clearances within 90 days of Effective Date of PPAs and forward the
copies of application to SIVN within 07 days of filing the applications.

iv) In case of Projects being set up in the States of Gujarat & Rajasthan, the HPD shall abide
by applicable Supreme Court Orders and MNRE’s Guidelines on “Retrofitting of
transmission lines and wind turbines to avoid bird collision in Great Indian Bustard
(GIB) habitats of Rgjasthan & Gujarat”, vide OM No. 238/2/2019-Wind dated 22nd Feb
2019, and subsequent amendments and clarifications thereof.

V) Any other clearances as may be legdly required, in order to establish and operate the
Project.

6.3.2 The above clearances, as applicable for the Project, will be required to be submitted to
SIVN prior to commencement of supply of power from the Project, if sought by SIVN. In
case of any of the clearances as indicated above being not applicable for the said Project,
the HPD shall submit an undertaking in this regard, and it shall be deemed that the HPD
has obtained all the necessary clearances for establishing and operating the Project. Any
consequences contrary to the above shall be the responsibility of the HPD. The HPD shall
also comply with al the laws, regulations, orders and procedures issued by the appropriate
authority, applicable for setting up and implementing the Project.

6.3.3 The HPD shall be required to follow the applicable rules regarding project registration
with the State Nodal Agency in line with the provisions of the applicable
policies/regulations of the State where the Projects are being located. It shall be the
responsibility of the HPD to remain updated about the applicable charges payable to the
State Nodal Agency (SNA) under the respective State Solar Policy.

6.3.4 The HPD should apply for all the necessary approvals, permits and clearances not more
than 90 days from the Effective Date of the PPA, which shall be complete in all respects,
incorporating the clarifications/changes as required by the concerned authorities.

6.3.5 The above timeline shall be adhered to, in order to examine cases where the HPD faces
delay in grant of the necessary approvals and permits, for a period substantialy greater than
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6.4

6.4.1

6.4.2

6.4.3

6.4.4

6.5
6.5.1

6.5.2

6.5.3

the standard period of grant of approval by the respective organizations.

Maximum Eligibility for Contracted Capacity Allocation for a Bidder

Following conditions shall be applicable to the Bidders for submission of bids against
this RfS:

The minimum quantum of power that can be offered by the Bidder shall be 50 MW and
the maximum quantum of power shall be 750 MW. The total cumulative capacity of power
to be awarded under this RfS shall be 1500 MW.

A Bidder, including its Parent, Affiliate or Ultimate Parent or any Group Company shall
submit a single bid offering a minimum quantum of Contracted Capacity of 50 MW and a
maximum quantum of 750 MW, in the prescribed formats. The Contracted Capacity shall
be quoted in multiple of 10 MW only.

Note: In case a common Company/Companies directly or indirectly hold(s) more than 10%
but less than 26% shareholding in more than one Bidder participating in the RfS, each of
such Bidders will be required to submit the Disclosure as per Format 7.8A. In al other
cases, Format 7.8 will be applicable.

The total capacity to be allocated to a Bidder including its Parent, Affiliate or Ultimate
Parent or any Group Company shall be up to 750 MW.

The evaluation of bids shall be carried out as described in Section-V of the RfS. The
methodology for Allocation of Projectsis elaborated in Section-V of the RfS.

Subject to the exception as per Clause 6.4.1 above, multiple bids from same company
including its Parent/ Ultimate Parent/Affiliates/Group Companies shall make al the bids
submitted by the group invalid.

RE /Hybrid Project L ocation:

The RE Projects can be located anywhere in India. For a single Project, the RE
generation components, if any, may either be co-located, or may be located at different
locations. The different components of “Wind-Solar Hybrid RE Power” i.e. solar and
wind can be connected with ISTS network at different ISTS sub- stations. However, Project
location(s) should be chosen taking cognizance of the provision as per Clause 6.6 of the
RfS.

The term “RE Project” / “Hybrid Project” shall have the meaning as defined in Section-2 of
the RfS, and shall refer to the Project capacity as quoted by the bidder (at the time of
bidding)/awarded to the Bidder (after issue of LOA).

In case the HPD wishes to set up more than one Project, then the Projects would need to be
physically identifiable with separate injection point, control systems and metering
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arrangement.

6.5.4 It may be noted that the offered RE Project may be relocated by the HPD until
financial closure. Implications of any delay in obtaining connectivity and subsequently,
compliance with financial closure/commencement of supply of power on account of the
above, will be borne by the HPD. In case any change in project location by the HPD during
the project construction period results in any modification in the GNA to be taken by the
Buying Entity, any additional charges/ penalties payable by the Buying Entity in this
regard shall be borne by the HPD. However, such location(s) should be chosen taking
cognizance of the provision as per Clause 6.6 of the RfS.

6.6 Connectivity with the Grid at I nterconnection Point/Delivery Points:

6.6.1 The Project should be designed for interconnection with the ISTS in accordance with the
prevailing CERC regulations in this regard. For interconnection with the grid and metering,
the HPD shall abide by the applicable Grid Code, Grid Connectivity Standards, Regulations
on Communication System for transmission of electricity and other regulations/procedures
(as amended from time to time) issued by Appropriate Commissions and Central Electricity
Authority (CEA). Minimum voltage level for interconnection at the ISTS shall be 220 kV.
Different components of Hybrid power i.e., solar and wind, can be connected with the grid
at different ISTS sub-stations.

6.6.2 Theresponsibility of getting the ISTS connectivity shall entirely be of the HPD and shall be
at the cost of the HPD, in line with applicable regulations. Such availability of transmission
system being dynamic in nature, the Bidder has to ensure actual availability of power
injection/evacuation capacity at an ISTS substation. The transmission of power up to the
point of interconnection where metering is done for energy accounting, shall be the
responsibility of the HPD at its own cost. In case an HPD is required to use Intra STS to
bring RE power at ISTS point, it may do so as per rule and regulations prescribed by the
respective SERC in this regard. The maintenance of transmission system up to the
Interconnection Point(s) shall be responsibility of the HPD, to be undertaken entirely at its
cost and expense.

6.6.3 The arrangement of connectivity can be made by the HPD through a transmission line upto
the Interconnection Point at ISTS. The entire cost of transmission including cost of
construction of line, wheeling charges, SLDC/Scheduling charges, SOC, MOC,
maintenance, losses etc. and any other charges from the Project up to and including at the
Interconnection Point at ISTS will be borne by the HPD. Arrangements shall be put in place
prior to commissioning of project as regards the methodology for billing these expenses
directly to the Buying Entities.

6.6.4 The HPD shal be required to follow the Detailed Procedure as issued by CERC/CTU
under the General Network Access under the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission
(Connectivity and General Network Access to the inter-State Transmission System)
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Regulations, 2022, as well as other Regulations issued by CERC/CEA as amended from
time to time. It is further clarified that the Entities (HPD and Buying Entity) asindicated in
the Detailed Procedure issued under the above Regulation, will be responsible for their
respective obligation as notified in the Detailed Procedure, irrespective of the provisions
of the RfS, PPA and PSA.

6.6.5 The Bidders are free to choose the ISTS substations for Interconnection of the Project to
the Grid on a pan-India basis. While doing so, the Bidders shall apply due diligence while
choosing the proposed substation, and may choose their substations from any one of the
following options:

i) Existing substations having available margin as indicated by the respective substation
owner.

i) Existing substations/ substations under construction where augmentation is under
process or plans for augmentation have been announced.

iii) Substations approved under the updated plan made available by the CTU on its website,
subject to availability of requisite margin for grant of connectivity.

Bids indicating substations outside the above three choices will be liable for rgjection.

Note In case Bidder has already secured connectivity at any substation (s)
specified under Clause 6.6.5, bid indicating such substation(s) shall also be consider ed.

6.6.6 The transmission connectivity to the HPD may be provided by the CTU/STU, as the case
may be, prior to commissioning of the project on the request of the HPD, to facilitate
testing and alow flow of infirm power generated into the grid to avoid wastage of power.

6.6.7 Metering arrangement of each Project shall have to be adhered to in line with relevant
clause of the PPA. Two or more Projects can be connected to a common pooling substation
from which the pooled power can be transferred to the CTU substation through a common
transmission line subject to the following conditions,

i) Acceptance of such an arrangement by CTU/ RLDC.

i) Energy injected by each Project will be recorded and jointly signed by respective HPDs
and copies of the same will be submitted to SIVN/STU/CTU as required.

iii) The energy accounts are divided and clearly demarcated for the power supplied by the
Project and are issued by the STU/SLDC/RLDC/RPC concerned.

iv) In case of Pooling substation, losses in the transmission line between the Pooling
substation and the ISTS substation, shall be apportioned among the HPDs who share
such a Pooling arrangement, based on their monthly generation.

6.6.8 The HPD shall comply with CERC/SERC regulations on Forecasting, Scheduling and
Deviation Settlement, as applicable and are responsible for all liabilities related to
Connectivity. The scheduling of the power from the Project as per the applicable regulation
shall be the responsibility of the HPD and any financial implication on account thereof
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shall be borne by the HPD. For deviations from schedule, the DSM (Deviation Settlement
Mechanism) shall be applicable as per the prevailing regulations. The DSM charges at the
generator ends shall be settled by the HPD. In order to remove potential discrepancies and
ambiguities, the HPDs are hereby instructed that, as part of scheduling of power from the
Project, they will be required to punch-in their respective schedules and subsequent
revisions, by themselves, at the interfaces of al the RLDCs concerned for the corridor of
power flow, including the RLDC of the Buying Entity/ Discom, as per the Regulations in
force, under intimation to SIVN. SIVN may facilitate in identification of any discrepancy
and assist the HPD for its early rectification without any liability on SIVN. The HPD shall
be solely responsible for discrepancy identification and its rectification to avoid any
rejection/less payment of invoices.

6.6.9 Reactive power charges and charges against power drawn from grid as per
CERC/SERC regulations, shall be payable by HPD as per provisions of PPA. Pursuant
to Clause 6.6.8 above, the Buying Entity will be responsible for obtaining Genera
Network Access (GNA), all transmission charges and losses and any other charges as
applicable under the respective regulations beyond Delivery Point and up to the drawl
point.

6.6.10 The HPDs will be required to apply for connectivity at the identified substation, as
mentioned in the Covering Letter (Format 7.1), within 30 days of Signing of PPAs, and
shall furnish copies of the application, complete in all respect, to SIVN within 15 days of
date of filing of application. HPD shall also have to provide the copy of in-principle
grant of connectivity, final grant of connectivity, connectivity agreement/any other
agreement(s) signed with STU/CTU etc. within 15 days of issuance of letter by CTU /
signing of connectivity agreement, as the case may be, to SIVN.

The HPD has to follow the timelines mentioned in the GNA regulation with respect to
Connectivity. In case, connectivity has been revoked due to non-compliance of HPD, then
the same may be considered as HPD’s Event of Default and shall be dedt as per the
provision of PPA.

In case the HPD fails to obtain the connectivity at a Substation identified by the Bidder, the
same shall beimmediately notified by the HPD to SJVN.

6.7 Power Supply by the Wind-Solar Hybrid RE Power Developer:

6.7.1 Criteriafor Power Supply
a) The procurement shall be in power (MW) terms. The HPD shal supply the
contracted capacity of Wind-Solar Hybrid Power from ISTS- Connected Renewable

Energy (RE) Power Projects based on generating system(s) i.e. solar & wind for supply
of Hybrid Power.

b) The Bidders will declare the annual CUF for the contracted capacity at the time of
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6.7.2

d)

f)

Q)

submission of response to RfS in the Covering as per Format 7.1. The declared annual
CUF shall in no case be less than 30%. The HPDs will be alowed to revise the same
once within first year after Commencement of Supply of Power Date (CSD), subject to
condition that the revised annual CUF shall not be less than 90 % of the CUF initialy
guoted by the Bidder and the revised annua CUF shall in no case be less than 30%.
Thereafter, the CUF for the contracted capacity shall remain unchanged for the entire
term of the PPA. It shall be the responsibility of the HPDs, entirely at its cost and
expense set up adequate Hybrid Capacity as may be necessary to achieve the required
CUF. The HPDs shall maintain generation so as to achieve annual CUF within + 20
% and -10 % of the declared valuetill the end of the PPA duration of 25 years.

The criteria as mentioned at 6.7.1 (b) above will, however, be relaxable by SIVN
to the extent of non-availability of grid for evacuation which is beyond the control of
the HPDs. For the first year of operation of the project, the annual CUF shall be
calculated based on the first year after Commencement of Supply of Power Date (CSD)
of contracted capacity. Subsequently, the annual CUF will be calculated every year
from 1% April of the year to 31% March next year.

The Buying Entity shall, in accordance with Applicable Laws and Regulations
thereunder, issue instructions to the HPD for production of electricity and despatch
thereof to the Grid during such period and in such volume as it may specify in its
instructions. Provided that the Entity shall not ask for despatch in excess of the
declared Availability by the HPD, unless mutually agreed between the HPD and the
Utility.

The HPD shall plan the despatch of electricity and convey its availability for scheduling
thereof by the SLDC or RLDC, as the case may be, and shall supply electricity in
accordance with the provisions of the Grid Code and the Electricity Act, 2003 and
subsequent amendment thereto.

The scheduling and its punching thereof at different Regional Load Despatch Centres
(RLDCs) / State Load Despatch Centres (SLDCs) (including the injecting, intervening
and buyer SLDCs / RLDCs) shall be the responsibility of HPG only. The generated
energy shall be dispatched through scheduling of power by the buying utility.

It isto be noted that the summation of generation schedule of RE Power by the Procurer
from multiple sources and/or locations cannot be more than the Contracted Capacity
specified in the RfS or PPA, considering the applicable losses. The Generator may,
however, apply for connectivity and access (if applicable), in accordance with extant
Regulations.

Shortfall in Wind-Solar Hybrid RE Power Offered

a)

During the term of the PPA, if for any Contract Year, it is found that the HPD has not
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been able to supply minimum energy corresponding to the value of annual CUF within
the permissible lower limit of CUF declared by the HPD, on account of reasons
primarily attributable to the HPD, such shortfall in performance shall make the HPD
liable to pay the liquidated damages provided in the PSA (Power Sale Agreement) as
payable by SIVN to Buying Entity(ies) and shall duly pay such damages to SIVN to
enable SIVN to remit the amount to Buying Entity(ies) as per criteria mentioned below
at Clause 6.7.2 (b). This will, however be relaxable by SIVN to the extent of grid non-
availability for evacuation, which is beyond the control of the HPD.

b) In case of shortfall in the supply of energy corresponding to minimum CUF as specified
in Clauses 6.7.1 (b), for reasons attributable to HPD, the HPD shall be liable to pay to
the Procurer, penalty for such shortfall in availability and supply of energy. Penalty for
not meeting supply of energy shall be equal to one and a half times of PPA tariff for the
shortfall in number of units not supplied. An illustration for determination of
Liquidated Damages for the above-mentioned scenarios are mentioned in
Annexure-D. However, this compensation shall not be applicable in events of Force
Majeure identified under PPA with SIVN affecting supply of power by HPD. Such
compensation as recovered from the HPD shall be passed on by SIVN to the Buying
Entity.

c) The performance criteria as per Clause 6.7.1 above shall not be applicable for the
Contract Y ear ending on 31 March immediately after SCSD of the contracted capacity.

d) The detailed list of documents required for verification of energy supply and
performance of the Projects will be intimated to the Developers subsequent to
commissioning and commencement of supply of power. For each Contract Year, the
above data will be required to be submitted by the respective Developers to SIVN
within 30 days after expiry of the previous Contract Year, for verification of the
performance parameters for calculating applicable compensation on account of
shortfall.

€) The reference to the liquidated damages for shortfal to enable SIVN to remit the
amount to buying utility(ies) and the amount being equal to the damages payable by the
buying utility(ies) for not meeting RPO is only a measure of damage. It shall not be
construed that the damage is payable by HPD only if the buying utility(ies) are required
to pay damage for such not meeting of RPO or that the buying utility(ies) or the HPD
shall be required to prove or establish such payment of damage for not meeting the
RPO.

f) HPD shal agree that the methodology specified herein above for calculation of
liquidated damages payable by the HPD for shortfall in power offered is a genuine and
accurate pre- estimation of the actual loss that will be suffered by SIVN. HPD shall
further acknowledge that a breach of any of the obligations contained herein result in
injuries and that the amount of the liquidated damages or the method of calculating
the liquidated damages specified in this document is a genuine and reasonable pre-
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estimate of the damages that may be suffered by the SIVN in each case specified under
the PPA.

6.7.3 [Excess Generation

In case of availability of energy more than the maximum annual CUF, HPD will be free
to sell it to any other entity provided the first right of refusal will vest with the Procure(s).
The Procure(s) shall provide refusal within 15 days from the receipts of the request, beyond
which it would be considered as deemed refusal. In case the Procurer purchases the excess
generation, the same shall be purchased at PPA tariff.

The HPD may aso sell the power which was offered on day ahead basis to the Procurer
(within Contracted Capacity) but not scheduled by the Procurer, to any third party or
in power exchange without requiring NOC from the Procurer. However, it may be noted
that at any instance of energy supply from the Project, priority shall be accorded to meet the
energy requirements as per PPA, before selling any quantum of energy in the open market.
The HPD may repower the Project at any stage, if required in order to meet the generation
or availability requirement of this Project.

In case at any point of time, the power generated from the Wind-Solar Hybrid configuration
reached is higher than the Contracted Capacity and causes disturbance in the system at the
point where power is injected, the HPD will have to forego the excess generation and
reduce the output to the Contracted Capacity to ensure compliance with grid requirement.

Any instance of third-party sale of power from the Project by the HPD, while the demand /
contracted Capacity specified in the PPA remains unfulfilled, shall constitute a breach of
RPD’s obligations under the PPA and make the RPD liable for penalty @1.5 times of
extant market rate/lkWh (reference rate being the applicable rate on the Indian Energy
Exchange (IEX)) for the quantum of such sale.

6.8 Commencement of supply of Power:

HPD shall commence the supply of Wind-Solar Hybrid Power from the date as specified in
the PPA and as per the commencement of supply schedule specified at Clause 6.8.2 below.
In case, HPD set up new RE Project to supply Wind-Solar Hybrid RE Power under this
RfS, Commencement of supply of power / Commissioning from / of the Project shall be
carried out by the HPD in line with the procedure as per the PPA document. Project
commissioning and declaration of Commercial Operation Date (COD) shall be governed by
the Central Electricity Regulatory Commission (Indian Electricity Grid Code) Regulations,
2023, as amended from time to time.

It is clarified that SIVN shall bear no responsibility in declaration of commissioning/COD
of the Project. SIVN’s scope will be limited to verifying the installation of rated
capacity(ies) of the Project, with respect to the committed Installed Capacity as part of the
PPA. The date of onset of commercial offtake of power by SIVN/Buying Entity shall be
determined as the date of commencement of power supply under the RFS'PPA. Prior to
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declaration of commencement power supply, the HPD shall submit Commissioning
certificate for the corresponding Installed Capacity to SIVN as part of the requisite
documents.

6.8.1 Part Commencement of supply of Power:

Part Commencement of Supply of Power of the Project shall be accepted by SIVN subject
to the condition that the Minimum Capacity for acceptance of commencement of
supply of power shall be 50% of Project Capacity or 50 MW whichever is lower, without
prejudice to the imposition of penalty, in terms of the PPA on the part which has not yet
commenced supply of power. However, in case of inter-state project, minimum capacity for
acceptance of commencement of supply of power shall be at least 50 MW. The projects can
further commence supply of power in parts of at least 10 MW capacity; with last parts as
the balance capacity.

In case of part commencement of power supply under the PPA, it shall be mandatory to
demonstrate commencement of power supply from both solar and wind capacities in
proposed ratio on pro-rata basis, otherwise the Project shall not be considered to have
commenced power supply under the PPA. In other words, it is clarified that
commencement of supply of power of a single component or having a composition lower
than the above required percentage, shall not construe part-commencement of power
supply from the Hybrid Project.

Based on the declaration of commissioning/COD of Project components as submitted by
the HPD, Contracted Capacity to be declared as having commenced power supply under the
PPA (part/full) shall be calculated as follows:

Commissioned Capacity = Least of (4/S x C , WIB x C)

where,

C: Contracted Capacity (MW) awarded to the HPD;

S Rated capacity (MW) of Solar PV component as per LoA (or revised rated capacity
in line with provision of the RfS);

W: Rated capacity (MW) of Wind component as per LoA (or revised rated capacity in
line with provision of the RfS);

A: Installed capacity (MW) of Solar PV component; and

B: Installed capacity (MW) of Wind component.

However, the SCSD will not get altered due to part-commencement of supply of power.
Irrespective of dates of part or full commencement of supply of power, the PPA will remain
in force for the period specified in the bid. Irrespective of dates of part commencement of
supply of power, the PPA will remain in force for a period of 25 years from the
Scheduled Commencement of Supply Date or the date of commencement of full contracted
Capacity, whichever islater.
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6.8.2 Commencement of Supply Schedule and Liquidated Damages Not Amounting to
Penalty for Delay in Commencement of Supply

i) The Scheduled Commencement of Supply of power Date (SCSD) for the full
contracted capacity shall be the date as on 24 months from the Effective Date of the
PPA i.e. the date as on 24 months from the Effective Date of PPA.

i) The maximum time period alowed for commencement of supply of power for the full
contracted capacity with applicable liquidated damages, shall be limited to the date as
on 06 months from the SCSD or the extended SCSD (if applicable).

iii) In case of delay in commencement of supply of power for the full contracted capacity
beyond the SCSD until the date as per Clause 6.8.2.ii above, as part of the liquidated
damages, the total PBG amount for the contracted capacity shall be encashed on per-
day- basis and proportionate to the balance capacity for which supply of power not
commenced.

iv) In case commencement of supply of power for the full contracted capacity is
delayed beyond the date as per Clause 6.8.2.ii above, the Contracted Capacity / PPA
capacity shall stand reduced/amended to the project capacity that has commenced
supply of power within the period of SCSD plus 6 (six) months. The PPA for the
balance contracted capacity that has not commenced supply of power shal stand
terminated. Further, in such case, the Bidder/HPD shall be debarred from participating
in bidsissued by any procurer or any intermediary procurer for the following period:

a) For oneyear in case of first default
b) For not less than 2 years and not more than 3 years for second and any
subsequent defaults.

Starting date of the above debarment period shall be the date of debarment as
notified by SJIVN.

V) Itisto be noted that in case, HPD set up new RE Project to supply Wind-Solar Hybrid
RE Power under this RfS, commencement of supply of power/part supply of power of
the Project will not be declared until the HPD demonstrates possession of land in line
with Clause 6.14 (COD), in addition to the other conditions as per the Commissioning
Procedure. For part commencement of supply of power, portion of land on which the
part of the project is commissioned should be under clear possession of the HPD in
accordance with clause 6.14 of the RfS.

vi) The date of onset of commercial offtake of power by SIVN/Buying Entity shall be
determined as the date of commencement of power supply under the RES/PPA. Prior to
declaration of commencement power supply, the RPD shall submit COD certificate for
the corresponding Installed Capacity to SIVN as part of the requisite documents.
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6.8.3 Delay in commencement of supply of power on Account of Delay in GNA
Operationalization

6.8.3.1 The responsibility of obtaining General Network Access (GNA) shall be of the Buying
Entity prior to commissioning of the Project/commencement of supply of power. For sale of
power to SIVN from SCSD, the GNA is required to be obtained by the Buying Entity.
Subsequent to grant of connectivity, in case there is a delay in grant/operationalization of
GNA by the CTU and/or there is adelay in readiness of the ISTS substation at the Delivery
Point, including readiness of the power evacuation and transmission infrastructure of the
ISTS network until SCSD of the Project capacity (contracted capacity), and it is established
that:

i) The HPD has complied with the complete application formalities as per Clause
6.6.4 above and as per the Detailed Procedure as issued by the CTU,

i) The HPD has adhered to the applicable regulations/ procedures in this regard as
notified by the CERC/CEA, and

iii) The delay in grant of connectivity/GNA by the CTU and/or delay in readiness of the
ISTS substation at the Delivery Point, including readiness of the power evacuation and
transmission infrastructure of the ISTS network, is a factor attributable to the
CTU/transmission licensee and is beyond the control of the HPD;

The above shall be treated as delays beyond the control of the HPD and SCSD for such
Projects shall be revised as the date as on 60 days subsequent to the readiness of the
Delivery Point and power evacuation infrastructure and/or grant/operationalization of GNA.
Decision on requisite extension on account of the above factor shall be taken by SIVN.

6.8.3.2 In case of delay in commissioning of Project due to reasons beyond the reasonable control
of the HPD, SIVN may extend the SCSD after examining the issue on a case-to-case basis.
In case of change in Project location(s) by the HPD, extension requests under this clause
shall be dealt by SIVN on case-to-case basis. For avoidance of ambiguity, it is clarified that
for decisions made under this Clause, the phrase “change in Project location” or its similar
connotations, shall refer solely to change in Delivery Point(s) of the Project.

6.8.3.3 Further, in case of delay in commencement of power supply on account of reasons
solely attributable to the HPD, resulting in any liquidated damages/penalty levied on the
Buying Entity including Transmission charges under the GNA Regulations and/or
applicable regulation as notified by CERC, such damages/penalty shall be passed on to the
HPD.

6.8.4 Early Commencement of Supply of Power:

a) The HPD/HPG shall be permitted for full as well as part-commencement of power supply
from the Project even prior to the SCSD, subject to availability of connectivity and
Genera Network Access. Early commencement of power supply will be alowed solely at
the risk and cost of the HPD/HPG, and first right of refusal for offtake of such power will
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6.9

6.9.1

b)

vest with the Buying Entity. In case the Buying Entity refuses to buy such power, the right
of refusal shall vest with SIVN. In case Buying Entity/SIVN agrees to purchase power
from such early part/full commencement of power supply prior to SCSD, such power will
be purchased at the PPA tariff.

In case of multiple project components and if one or more such component (wind or solar)
is ready for injection of power into the grid, but the remaining component is unable to
commence supply of power, the Generator will be allowed to commence supply of power
from such component which is ready outside the ambit of PPA, with first right of refusal
for such power being vested with the End Procurer. Subsequent to refusal of such power
by the End Procurer, the right of refusal shall vest with the Intermediary Procurer. In case
the Procurer/ Intermediary Procurer decides to buy such discrete component(s) power
outside the PPA, such power shall be purchased at up to 75% of the PPA Tariff plus
SIVN’s trading margin for the applicable Contract Year or specific provisions in this
regard will be stipulated in the tender documents.

Following should be noted under this scenario:

i) First right of refusal for such power shall vest with Buying Entity and if agreed by
Buying Entity, power procurement from such component will be undertaken 75% of
the Applicable Tariff as per PPA. In case the same is procured through SIVN,
trading margin of 7 paise/unit will be applicable on such power procurement.

i) Subsequent to refusal of such power by the Buying Entity, the second right to
refusal shall vest with SIVN. In this case if SIVN buys it outside the PPA then the
same shall be bought at 75 % of the Applicable Tariff as per PPA. Trading margin
of 7 paise/unit will be applicable on such power procurement.

iii) The above scenario does not qualify under the provisions of Part commencement of
supply of power under the RfS, PPA and PSA. Thisis aspecia case wherein in case
aproject component is ready, the generation from such component is not wasted.

iv) The terms “SCSD” and “Commencement of supply of power” as per the RfS, PPA
and PSA will not be applicable for such component. Commissioning/injection of
power from such component will be alowed only if the same is alowed as per the
applicable regulations.

v) The above scenario will be applicable until the HPD is ready to commence supply
of power from the Project as per the provisions of “Early and/or Part
commencement of supply of power” from the Project.

In case SIVN does not agree to purchase such energy, early part/full commissioning of
the Project shall still be allowed and the HPD will be free to sell such energy to a third
party until SCSD or the date of commencement of procurement of power from the Project
as notified by SIVN, whichever is earlier. However, early part/ full commissioning of
the Project and subsequent energy procurement from the same shall be subject to the
approva of SIVN. Such intimation regarding consent to procure energy from early
commissioning shall be provided by SIVN within 15 days of receipt of the request
being made by the HPD, beyond which it would be considered as deemed refusal.

Performance Bank Guarantee (PBG)

Bidders selected by SIVN based on this RfS shall submit Performance Guarantee for a
vaue @ INR 30.65 LakhsMW (Rs. 30,65,000/MW) corresponding to the Contracted
Capacity for which PPA is being signed, prior to signing of PPA. It may be noted that
successful Bidders shall submit the Performance Guarantee according to the Format 7.3C
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6.9.2

6.9.3

6.9.4

6.9.5

6.9.6

6.9.7

6.9.8

6.9.9

with a validity period up to (& including) the date as on 9 months after the SCSD. On
receipt and after successful verification of the tota Performance Bank Guarantee in the
acceptable form, the BG submitted towards EMD shall be returned by SIVN to the
successful Bidder. It may be noted that PPA will be signed only upon successful
verification of the PBG submitted by the HPD. Electronic Bank Guarantee (e-BG) is aso
acceptable against PBG under this RfS

The PBG is required to be submitted in the name of the entity signing the PPA. In case of
PPA being eventually signed with the SPV incorporated/utilized by the successful bidder,
the PBG may be submitted in the name of the successful bidder at an earlier date, if the
bidder chooses to do so, and the same shall be replaced by the PBG issued in the name
of the SPV, prior to signing of PPA

The HPD shall furnish the PBG from any of the Scheduled Commercia Banks as listed on
the website of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and amended as on the date of issuance of bank
guarantee. Bank Guarantee issued by foreign branch of a Scheduled Commercial Bank is to
be endorsed by the Indian branch of the same bank or State Bank of India (SBI). In case of
the Project being implemented through a SPV incorporated by the successful bidder, the
PBG shall be furnished in the name of the SPV, except for the case as indicated in Clause
4.4.1(ii) of the RfS.

The format of the Bank Guarantees prescribed in the Format 7.3 A (EMD)/ 7.3 C (PBG)
shall be strictly adhered to and any deviation from the above Formats shall result in
rejection of the EMD/PBG and consequently, the bid. In case of deviations in the formats of
the Bank Guarantees, the corresponding PPA shall not be signed.

SIVN has agreed to accept the PBG in the form of an unconditional and irrevocable Bank
Guarantee instead of the cash deposit with the clear position intimated to the bidder that the
PBG shall be encashable for being appropriated by SIVN in terms of the guarantee as in the
case of appropriation of the cash deposit lying with SIVN.

The selected Bidder for the Project selected based on this RfS is required to sign PPA with
SIVN within the timeline as stipulated in Clause 6.11 of the RfS. In case, SIVN offers to
execute the PPA with the Selected Bidder and if the Selected Bidder does not submit the
requisite documents as per Clause 6.11 (Power Purchase Agreement (PPA)) of the RfS, or
does not meet eligibility criteria upon submission of documents, or does not execute the
PPA within the stipulated time period, then the Bank Guarantee equivalent to the amount of
the EMD shall be encashed by SIVN from the Bank Guarantee available with SIVN (i.e.
EMD or PBG) as liquidated damages not amounting to penalty, the selected Project shall
stand cancelled and the selected Bidder expressly waives off its rights and objections, if
any, in that respect.

The Bank Guarantees have to be executed on non-judicial stamp paper of appropriate value
as per Stamp Act relevant to the place of execution.

All expenditure towards execution of Bank Guarantees such as stamp duty etc. shall be
borne by the Bidders'HPDs. Any Bank Guarantee or amendment to be submitted as part of
the bidding process / contract execution, shall be effective only when the BG issuance
message is transmitted by the issuing bank through SFMS to State Bank of India, CAG
Branch, 5th Floor, Parswanath Capital Tower, Bhai Veer Singh Marg, Gol Market, New
Delhi-110001, IFSC code: SBIN0017313, Client Name: SJVN Ltd.

In case of Bank Guarantees issued by foreign branch of a Scheduled Commercia Bank, the
same is to be endorsed by the Indian branch of the same bank or SBI, and the endorsing
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bank would be required to provide the SFM S confirmation.

6.9.10 After the bidding processis over, SIVN shall release the Bank Guarantees towards EMD of
the unsuccessful Bidders within 15 days after the completion of e-Reverse Auction. The
PBG of HPDs shall be returned to them, within 45 days after successful commissioning of
their projects and commencement of supply of power for contracted capacity as per Terms
of PPA, after taking into account any liquidated damages due to delays in commencement
of supply of power as per Clause 6.8.2 and 6.8.3.1 of the RfS.

6.9.11 Payment on Order Instrument (POI):

As an dternative to submission of PBG as above, the HPD/HPG also has an option to
submit a letter of undertaking issued by either of the following three organizations, viz. (i)
Indian Renewable Development agency Limited (IREDA) or (ii) Power Finance
Corporation Limited or (iii) REC Limited. This Letter of Undertaking shall be issued as
“Payment on Order Instrument” (POI), wherein the POI issuing organization undertakes to
pay in all scenarios under which the PBG would be liable to be encashed by SIVN within
the provisions of RfS/PPA. Thisinstrument would have to be furnished as per Format 7.3 D
of the RfS, within the timelines as per Clause 6.9.1 above, for the amount and vaidity
period as per those Clause 6.9.1 above. In case the HPD /HPG chooses to submit POI,
delay in submission of the POl beyond the timeline stipulated at Clause above, will be
applicable in this case too.

The term “Performance Bank Guarantee (PBG)” occurring in the RfS shall be read as
“Performance Bank Guarantee” (PBG)/Payment on Order Instrument (POI)”

6.10 SuccessCharges & Payment Security Mechanism (PSM) Charges

6.10.1 Success Charges: The Selected Bidder shall have to pay INR 1.00 Lakh/ MW + 18% GST,
corresponding to the Contracted Capacity awarded, to SIVN towards administrative
overheads, coordination with State Authorities and others, DISCOM/STU/CTU, pre-
commissioning and commissioning expense. The payment has to be made by the HPD in
the form of DD/ Pay Order/ NEFT/ RTGS within 30 days of issuance of LOA or the date
a least 07 days prior to the date of signing of PPA (PPA signing date to be intimated by
SIVN), whichever is later. Any delay in depositing the said amount to SIVN as mentioned
above within the stipulated time shall attract late payment charges @18% per annum+18%
GST, levied on per day basis, on the total Success Charges, till (and including) the date of
payment of Success Charges, which shall not be later than the date of signing of PPA. PPA
shall only be signed after deposit of the Success Charges to SIVN. In case of delay in
making full payment of above delay charges, the amount paid, if any until the above
deadline, along with interest, shall be first reduced from the total amount due towards
the delay charges and interest amount (i.e. rate of interest as stated above). Further,
balance amount to be paid shall attract Interest rate @ one-year SBI MCLR rate /annum on
pro-ratabasis.
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6.10.2 Payment Security M echanism:

As part of the Payment Security Mechanism as brought out in the PPA, the HPD shall
undertake to pay PSM Charges @ Rs.0.02/kWh to SIVN, by offering a commensurate
discount in the monthly tariff payment being made by SJVN.

6.11 Power Purchase Agreement (PPA):

6.11.1 SIVN shall enter into Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with Bidders selected based on
this RfS. A copy of standard PPA to be executed between SIVN and the selected HPD is
available on ISN-ETS Portal and also on SJVN’s website. The PPA shall be signed within
30 days of the signing of Power Sale Agreement (s), if not extended by SIVN. Subsequent
extension in this timeline shall be finalized as mutually agreed by SIVN and the HPD. PPA
will be executed between SIVN and selected bidder or its SPV for the Project.

6.11.2 PPA will be executed between SIVN and the HPD as per the break up of the Project
Capacity awarded to the Bidder which shall remain unchanged until issuance of LOA.
Subsequent to issuance of LOA, the above configuration can be changed till the time of
Financial closure, subject to provisions stipulated in clause 6.2.1. Further at the time of bid
submission, for each Project, the bidder shall provide a tentative hourly generation profile
for a representative day for a single year, indicating tentative energy (MWh) and power
(MW) to be supplied under the PPA.

In addition to the above, the Successful Bidder shall also submit a detailed Schedule for the
Project execution prior to the signing of PPA. Broad details to be captured in the Schedule
are the land procurement, grid connectivity; order, supply and erection status of various
Project components; financial arrangement/ tie up etc.

Delay in meeting the project execution timeline on account of changes in the project
parameters from the data as submitted in the Covering Letter (Format 7.1), shall be at the
risk and cost of the Successful Bidder. The PPA(s) will be signed after signing of PSA(S)
for the respective Project(s).

In case any change in project location by the HPD during the project construction period
results in any modification in the GNA to be taken by the Buying Entity, any additional
charges/ penalties payable by the Buying Entity in this regard shall be borne by the HPD.

6.11.3 The PPAs shall be valid for a period of 25 years from the Scheduled Commencement of
Supply Date (SCSD) or the date of commencement of supply of full Project Capacity,
whichever is later. Any extension of the PPA period beyond 25 years shall be through
mutual agreement between the HPD, Buying Entity and SJVN.

6.11.4 The Performance Bank Guarantee as per Clause 6.9 above and Success Charges as per
Clause 6.10.1 above, shall be submitted by the HPD prior to signing of PPA. Before signing
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6.11.5

6.11.6

6.11.7

6.11.8

6.12

6.12.1

6.12.2

of PPA between SIVN and the HPDs, SIVN will verify the shareholding of the Project
Company aong with a copy of complete documentary evidence. If at this stage, it is found
that the documents furnished by the HPDs are false / misleading or misrepresented in any
way, then the provisions contained in this RfFS will be applicable.

Successful bidders will have to submit the required documents to SIVN within 40 days
from the date of issue of LOA. In case of delay in submission of documents beyond the
period as mentioned above, SIVN shall not be liable for delay in verification of documents
and subsequent delay in signing of PPA. Effective Date of the PPA shall be the date as on
30" day from the date of issue of LoA, or the date of signing of PPA, whichever is later.
Subsequent to expiry of the 30 day period after the issuance of LOA, in case SIVN intimates
to the Successful Bidder, a particular date as the date for signing of PPA, the specified date
shall become the Effective Date of the PPA, irrespective of the date of signing of PPA.

Back-to-back Power Sale Agreements (PSAS) in respect of al rights and obligation under
the PPA between the HPD and SIVN, will be executed by SJVN with the Buying Entity for
sale of power to Buying Entity, with the buying entity assuming all the obligations of SIVN
under the PPA. SJVN’s obligation to HPD under the PPA shall also be on the back- to-back
basis as provided in the PPA and the corresponding PSA.

The HPDs are free to operate their projects after expiry of the 25 years of PPA period if
other conditions such as land lease etc., permit. However, any extension of the PPA period
beyond 25 years shall be through mutual agreements between the HPD, SIVN and the
Buying Entities, as the case may be, as approved by the Appropriate Commission, provided
that the arrangements with the land and infrastructure owning agencies, the relevant
transmission utilities and system operators permit operation of the Project beyond the initial
period of 25 years.

Applicable Tariff: “Applicable Tariff” means the final quoted single tariff, which shall be
quoted for 25 years of term of the of PPA. The tariff shall be quoted at the delivery point.
The tariff shall be quoted specificaly as per the instructions laid out in the RfS.

Financial Closureor Project Financing Arrangements

For a Project size not more than (and including) 1000 MW, the Projects shall achieve
Financial Closure within 18 (eighteen) months from the Effective Date of the PPA.

At the stage of financial closure, the HPDs shal report 100% tie-up of Financing
Arrangements for the Projects. In this regard, the HPD shall submit a certificate/necessary
document from al financing agencies regarding the tie-up of 100% of the fundsindicated for
the Project, including arrangements of funds in the form of Equity. The HPD shall aso
submit the DPR of the Project, detailing out project configuration and proposed
commissioning schedul e of the Project.
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6.12.3 Checklist of documents to be submitted at this stage is provided at Annexure-C of the RfS.

6.12.4 In case of default in achieving above condition as may be applicable within the
stipulated time, SIVN shall be entitled to encash PBG/POI and shall remove the Project
from the list of the selected Projects, unless the delay is on account of factors not owing to
any action or inaction on the part of the HPD, or caused due to a Force Maeure as per
PPA. An extension can however be considered, on the sole request of HPD, on advance
payment of extension charges of INR 1000/- per day per MW. This extension will not have
an impact on the obligation of HPD to achieve commissioning by the Scheduled
Commissioning Date of the Project. Subsequent to the completion of deadline for achieving
financia closure, SIVN shall issue notices to the HPDs who are not meeting the
requirements of Financial Closure as per the RfS deadlines. The notice shal provide a
period of 7 business days to the respective HPDs to either furnish the necessary
documents or make the above-mentioned payment of Rs. 1,0000MW/day. In case of
non- submission of either-the requisite documents or the necessary amount upon expiry
of the above-mentioned notice period of 7 days-SIVN shall encash the PBG/POI of the
corresponding HPDs and terminate the PPA for the corresponding Project. The amount of
Rs. 1,000/MW/day shall be paid by the HPDs in advance prior to the commencement of the
said delay period and shall be calculated based on the period of delay as estimated by the
HPD. In case of the HPD meeting the requirements of Financial Closure before the last date
of such proposed delay period, the remaining amount deposited by the HPD shall be
returned by SIVN. Interest on account of delay in deposition of the above mentioned
charges or on any subsequent extension sought, shall be levied @ one year SBI MCLR rate
/annum on pro-rata basis. Any extension charges paid so, shall be returned to the HPD
without any interest on achievement of successful commissioning within the Scheduled
Commissioning Date, on pro-rata basis, based on the project capacity commissioned as on
Scheduled Commissioned Date.

6.12.5 The HPD will have to submit the required documents to SJVN at least 14 days prior to the
scheduled Financial Closure date. In case of delay in submission of documents mentioned
above, SIVN shal not be liable for delay in verification of documents and subsequent
delay in Financia Closure.

6.13 Land Arrangementsfor the Project

6.13.1 The HPD shall be entirely responsible for acquiring the land required for setting up
the project and SJVN shall not in any manner be responsible for the same.

6.13.2 The HPD shal submit documents/Lease Agreements to establish possession/right to
use 100% (hundred per cent) of the required land in the name of the HPD for a period
not less than the complete term of the PPA, on or before the SCSD. Wherever leasing of
private land is involved, the lease should allow transfer of land lease rights to the lenders or
Procurer, in case of default of the Solar Power Generator.
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6.13.3 The HPD shall submit a sworn affidavit from the authorized signatory of the HPD listing
the details of the land and certifying that total land required for the Project is under
clear possession of the HPD.

6.13.4 With respect to demonstration of land possession by the HPD, commissioning of the
Project will not be allowed until the demonstration of land possession by the HPD in terms
of this Clause and Clause 6.8.4 of the RfS. However, in case of delays in demonstrating
land possession by the HPD on account of Government delay (including but not limited to
delay in land use pattern change, and/or relaxation under respective State land ceiling Act,
and/or land lease permission from State Government/Authorities) or delay caused due to a
Force Mg eure as per PPA, SCSD shall be suitably extended.

6.14 Commercial Operation Date (COD) and Commencement of Supply Date
(CSD):

6.14.1 Commercial Operation Date (COD) shall be the date declared by the generating station after
undergoing a successful trial run as per IEGC grid code 2023 and amendments thereof, and
subject to fulfilment of other conditions, if any, of this PPA. In the case of a generating
station as a whole, the commercia operation date of the last unit of the generating station
shall be considered as the COD of the generating station. Further, Commencement of
Supply Date (CSD) shall be the date of commencement of supply of power of the
contracted capacity. The following milestone dates may therefore be observed and may fall
on separate dates.

a) Interconnection with Grid: This may be provided by the STU/ CTU/ DISCOM, on the
request of the HPD, even if the Project is only partially ready, to facilitate testing and
allow flow of power generated into the grid to avoid wastage of Power.

b) Commissioning of the Project: This will be on a date, when the project meets the
criteria defined for project commissioning. SIVN may authorize any individual or
committee or organization to declare the project commissioned on site.

6.14.2 Prior to commencement of power supply under the PPA, the HPD shall be required to
demonstrate installation and COD of rated capacities of Wind and Solar PV components on
pro-rata basis, pertaining to the Contracted Capacity (part/full) being proposed to
commence power supply. It is clarified that commissioning/COD of a single component or
having a composition lower than the above required percentage, shall not construe
commencement of power supply from the Hybrid Project.

6.14.3 Any energy produced and flowing into the grid before CSD shall not be at the cost of SIVN
under this scheme and developers will be free to make short-term sale to any organization
or individual. SIVN may agree to buy this power as a trader if they find it viable outside
this RfS.

6.14.4 The HPD shall submit requisite documents at least 30 days prior to trail run of the Project,
including but not limited to the following:
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6.15

6.15.1

6.15.2

1) Intimation regarding the proposed timeline for commencement of supply of power from
the Project.

i) Copy of CON-4 report submitted to CTU.

iii) CEI/CEIG (as applicable) report containing approval for all the components, including
modules, WTGs, inverters, transformers, Transmission system and protection system,
along with al annexures/attachments. It would be the responsibility of the HPD to
obtain the certificate.

iv) Approval of Metering arrangement/scheme from CTU/GRID INDIA/ any other
concerned authority as applicable

v) Plant Layout, Plant (AC & DC) SLD

vi) Affidavit certifying that the HPD has obtained for al the necessary approvals for
commencement of power supply from the Project, and indemnifying SIVN against any
discrepancies in the above details.

vii) Affidavit from the HPD certifying possession of land identified for the Project, bearing
the details of such land parcels where Project is located, and indemnifying SIVN
against any discrepanciesin the above details.

viii)  Documents to establish the compliance of technical requirement as per PPA/RSS.

iX) Invoices against purchase of the solar modules, WTGs, Inverters/PCUs, WMS, SCADA
and DC cables aong with the summary sheet containing the list of all the invoices,
inverters including details and number of items. Lorry Receipts for delivery of solar
modules, WTGs and inverters at site along with certified summary sheet by the
authorized signatory.

X) In addition to the above, the HPD shall provide coordinates of WTGs, KML files for
the Solar PV component (specifying each block), details of energy storage systems, if
any, RLMM/ALMM certificates (as applicable), insurance documents of Project etc.

Minimum Paid Up Share Capital to be Held by Project Promoter

The Bidder shall provide complete information in their bid in reference to this RfS about its
promoters and upon issuance of LOA, the HPD shall provide information about its
promoters and their shareholding in the Company before signing of PPA with SIVN.

No change in the controlling shareholding of the Bidding Company or Bidding
Consortium shall be permitted from the date of submission of response to RfS till the
execution of the PPA.

Following shall not be considered as change in shareholding as mentioned above:

i) Infusion of Fresh equity capital amongst the existing sharehol ders/promoters at the time
of Bid Submission to meet equity requirements.

i) Conversion of CCDs, CCPs etc. already issued to existing shareholders.

iii) Death, marriage, Divorce, minor attaining major (any legal heir who was minor at the
time of signing of PPA), insolvent, insane of existing shareholders.

iv) Transfer of shares within the members of Immediate Promoter Group only.
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v) Transfer of sharesto |IEPF.
vi) Issue of Bonus Shares

6.15.3 In case of the Successful Bidder itself executing the PPA, it shal ensure that its
promotors shall not cede control (Control shall mean the ownership, directly or indirectly,
of more than 50% of the voting shares of such Company or right to appoint maority
Directors) of the bidding company/consortium till 01 (one) year from the SCSD, except
with the prior approval of SIVN.

6.15.4 In case of Project being executed through SPVs: The Successful Bidder, if being a
single company, shall ensure that its shareholding in the SPV/ Project Company executing
the PPA shall not fall below 51% at any time prior to 01 (one) year from the SCSD, except
with the prior approval of SIVN. In the event the Successful Bidder is a consortium, then
the combined shareholding of the consortium members in the SPV/ Project Company
executing the PPA, shall not fall below 51% at any time prior to 01 (one) year from the
SCSD except with the prior approval of SIVN.

6.15.5 Any change in the shareholding after the expiry of 01 year after SCSD can be
undertaken under intimation to SIVN.
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SECTION VII:

FORMS& FORMATSFOR BID SUBMISSION
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Format 7.1

COVERING LETTER

(The Covering L etter should be submltted on the Letter Head of the Bidding Company/
Lead Member of Consortium)

Ref. No............... Date:

To

SIVN Limited
6" Floor, Tower-1, NBCC Office Complex, East Kidwai Nagar, New Delhi - 110 023

Subject: Responseto RfSNo. ........... dated .............. [{0] (P (Insert
title of the RfS)

Dear Sir/f Madam,

We, the undersigned................ [Insert name of the ‘Bidder’] having read, examined and
understood in detail the RfS including Qualification Requirements in particular, terms and
conditions of the standard PPA for supply of power for the Term of the PPA to SIVN, hereby
submit our response to RfS.

We confirm that in response to the aforesaid RfS, neither we nor any of our Ultimate Parent
Company/ Parent Company/ Affiliate/ Group Company has submitted response to RfS
other than this response to RfS, directly or indirectly, in response to the aforesaid RfS(as
mentioned in Format 7.8 under Disclosure) OR We confirm that in the response to the aforesaid
RfS, we have a Group Company who owns more than 10% but less than 26% in the bidding
company as well as other companies who may participate in this RfS, and accordingly, we have
submitted requisite undertaking as per Format 7.8A in this regard (strike out whichever is not
applicable).

We aso confirm that we including our Ultimate Parent Company/ Parent Company/ Affiliate/
Group Companies directly or indirectly have not submitted response to RfS for more than
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cumulative capacity of 1500 MW, including this response to RfS.

We are submitting application for the devel opment of following Project(s): -

Contracted Supply of Wind- L ocation(s) Inter-Connection
Capacity offered* | Solar Hybrid (Village, Tehsl, | point(s) Details

Power Configuration | Dist., State)

Solar PV component:
MW (AC), _ MWp
(DC) (DC/AC Ratio)
Wind power
component:__ MW

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

We give our unconditional acceptance to the RfS, dated[Insert date in dd/mmvyyyy],
standard PPA and PSA documents attached thereto, issued by SIVN. In token of our
acceptance to the RfS, PPA and PSA documents along with the amendments and clarifications
issued by SIVN, the same have been digitally signed by us and enclosed with the response
to RfS. We shall ensure that the PPA is executed asper the provisions of the RfS and
provisions of PPA and shall be binding on us. Further, we confirm that the supply of power
of full contracted capacity shall commence within the deadline as per Clause 6.8.2 of the RfS.
We further undertake that we shall demonstrate possession of 100% area ofthe identified
land, within the timelines as per the RfS.

Earnest Money Deposit (EMD):- (Pleaseread Clause 3.10 carefully beforefilling)

We have enclosed EMD of INR ............. (Insert Amount), in the form of Bank Guarantee
............. [Insert bank guarantee] dated [Insert date of bank guarantee/] as per Format
7.3A/7.3B from. [Insert name of bank providing bank guarantee issuing agency] and
valid up to... ...in terms of Clause No. 3.10 of this RfS. The total RE capacity for supply of
Wind-Solar Hybrid power offered by us is ............. MW [Insert cumulative capacity
proposed]. (Strike off whichever is not applicable)

We hereby declare that in the event our Project(s) get selected and we are not able to
submit Bank Guarantee of the requisite value(s) towards PBG, Success charge for the
selected Projects, within due time as mentioned in Clause Nos. 6.9 & 6.10 of this RfS on issue
of LoA by SIVN for the selected Projects and/ or we are not able to sign PPA with SIVN
within the timeline as stipulated in the RfS for the selected Projects, SIVN shall have the right
to encash the EMD submitted by us and return the balance amount (if any) for the value of
EMD pertaining to unsuccessful capacity.

We have submitted our response to RfS dtrictly as per Section VII (Forms and Formats for
bid submission) of this RfS, without any deviations, conditions and without mentioning
any assumptions or notes in the said Formats.

We hereby declare that during the selection process, in the event our bid happens to be the
last bid in the list of successful bids and SIVN offers a capacity which is greater than or equal
to 50% of our quoted capacity due to overall bid capacity limit, we shall accept such offered

capacity.
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6) Acceptance:- We hereby unconditionally and irrevocably agree and accept that the
decision made by SJVN in respect of any matter regarding or arising out of the RfS shall be
binding on us. We hereby expressly wave and withdraw any deviations from the
provisions of theRfS and all claimsin respect of this process.

We aso unconditionally and irrevocably agree and accept that the decison made by
SIVN in respect of award of Projects according to our preference order as above and in line
with the provisions of the RfS, shall be binding on us.

7) Familiarity with Relevant Indian Laws & Regulations.- We confirm that we have
studied the provisions of the relevant Indian Laws and Regulations as required to enable usto
submit this response to RfS and execute the PPA, in the event of our selection as Successful
Bidder.

8) In case of our selection as the Successful bidder under the scheme and the project being
executed by a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) incorporated by us which shall be our subsidiary,
we shall infuse necessary equity to the requirements of RfS. Further we will submit a Board
Resolution prior to signing of PPA with SIVN, committing total equity infusion in the SPV as
per the provisions of RfS.

9) We are submitting our response to the RfS with formats duly signed as desired by you in the RfS
online for your consideration.

10) It is confirmed that our response to the RfSis consistent with all the requirements of submission as
stated in the RfS, including al clarifications and amendments and subsequent communications
from SIVN.

11) The information submitted in our response to the RfS is correct to the best of our
knowledge and understanding. We would be solely responsible for any errors or omissions in
our response to the RfS.

12) We confirm that al the terms and conditions of our Bid are valid up to........... (Insert date
in dd/mm/yyyy) for acceptance [i.e. a period of 12 months from the last date of submission of
response to RfS].

13) Contact Person

Details of the representative to be contacted by SIVN are furnished as under:

Name e

Designation  ©......cciiiiii

Company e

Address ST

PhoneNOS. ...

MobileNos. ...

Fax Nos. e
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14) We have neither made any statement nor provided any information in this Bid, which to the
best of our knowledge is materially inaccurate or misleading. Further, all the confirmations,
declarations and representations made in our Bid are true and accurate. In case this is found
to be incorrect after our selection as Successful Bidder, we agree that the same would be
treated as a seller’s event of default under PPA and consequent provisions of PPA shall

apply.
Dated the........ _dayof................ ,20....
Thanking you,

Weremain,

Yoursfaithfully,

Name, Designation, Seal and Signature of Authorized Person in whose name Power of
Attorney / Board Resolution/ Declaration

RfS for selection of HPD for setting up of 1500 MW ISTS-connected Hybrid Power | Page 81 of 149
Projectsin Indiaunder TBCB (RfS No.: SIVN/CC- Delhi/REIA/2024/ HY BRID-2
TSC: SIVN-2024-TN000001




Format 7.2
FORMAT FOR POWER OF ATTORNEY

(Applicable Only in case of Consortiums)

(To be provided by each of the other members of the Consortium in favour of the Lead
Member)

(To be stamped in accordance with Stamp Act, the Non-Judicial Stamp Paper of Appropriate

Value)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT M/S ..o having its
registered office a ... v ocand M/s .
having its registered office at........................... , (Insert names and registered offices of al
Members of the Consortium) the Members of Consortium have formed a Bidding Consortium
named ............cooeeininn. (insert name of the Consortium if finalized) (hereinafter caled the
‘Consortium’) vide Consortium Agreement dated..........cooeeviiiininnnn.
............................................................................ and having agreed to
......................................................... appoint M/s...............ceeeiiiiinien.@ the  Lead
Member of the sad Consortium do hereby constitute, nominate and appoint
MIS i a company incorporated under the laws of ................... and
having its Registered) Head Officeat...............ccooeviviiininnnn. as our duly constituted

lawful Attorney (hereinafter called as Lead Member) to exercise all or any of the powers for
and on behalf of the Consortium in regard to submission of the response to RfS No.................

We also authorize the said Lead Member to undertake the following acts:

i) To submit on behalf of Consortium Members response to RfS.

ii) To do any other act or submit any information and document related to the above
response to RfS Bid.

It is expressly understood that in the event of the Consortium being selected as Successful Bidder,
this Power of Attorney shall remain valid, binding and irrevocable until the Bidding Consortium
achieves execution of PPA.

We as the Member of the Consortium agree and undertake to ratify and confirm all what so ever
the said Attorney/ Lead Member has done on behalf of the Consortium Members pursuant to this
Power of Attorney and the same shall bind us and deemed to have been done by us.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF M/S.......ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiin , a the Member of the Consortium
have executed these presents on this.......... day of under the Common Seal of our company.
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Seal of our company.
For and on behalf of Consortium Member

(Signature of person authorized by the board)

Name Designation:
Place:

(Signature, Name, Designation and Address of the person authorized by the board of the Lead
Member)

Attested

Lead Member in the Consortium shall have the controlling shareholding in the Company
as defined in Section-11, Definition of Terms of the RfS
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Format 7.3A
FORMAT FOR BANK GUARANTEE TOWARDSEARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT (EMD)

(To be stamped in accordance with Samp Act, the Non-Judicial Stamp Paper of Appropriate
Value)

Reference: .....c.oooveeeiiei .
Bank Guarantee NO.: ....vvvvveveeeeeeeannnnn. )

Dae: ...eeeeene.

In consideration of the [Insert name of the Bidder] (hereinafter referred to
as 'Bidder') submitting the response to RfS inter alia for “Selection of Hybrid Power
Developers for Setting up of 1500 MW ISTS- Connected Wind-Solar Hybrid Power Projects
in India under Tariff-based Competitive Bidding” of the cumulative capacity of.......... MW
[Insert cumulative Bid capacity/ Contracted Capacity proposed] for supply of power there from on
long term basis, in response to the RfSNo.___ datedissued by SJVN Limited (hereinafter referred
to as SIVN) and SIVN considering such response to the RfS of[Insert the name of the Bidder] as
per the terms of the RfS, the__ [Insert name & address of bank] hereby agrees unequivocaly,
irrevocably and unconditionally to pay to SIVN at [Insert Name of the Place from the addressof
SIVN] forthwith without demur on demand in writing from SIVN or any Officer authorized by it

in this behalf, any amount upto and not exceeding Rupess.................... [Insert amount not less
than that derived on the basis of Rs. 12.26 Lakhs per MW of Bid capacity / Contracted Capacity
proposed], only, on behalf of M/s [Insert name of the Bidder].

This guarantee shall be valid and binding on this Bank up to and including .....................
[insert date of validity in accordance with Clause No. 3.10 of this Rf§ and shall not be terminable
by notice or any change in the constitution of the Bank or the term of contract or by any other
reasons whatsoever and our liability hereunder shal not be impaired or discharged by any
extension of time or variations or aternations made, given, or agreed with or without our
knowledge or consent, by or between parties to the respective agreement.

Our liability under this Guarantee is restricted to INR................... (Indian Rupees only).  Our
Guarantee shall reman in forceuntil................. [insert date of validity in accordance
with Clause No. 3.10 of this Rf§. SIVN shall be entitled to invoke this Guarantee till......... [insert

date of validity in accordance with Clause No. 3.10 of this RfY.

The Guarantor Bank hereby agrees and acknowledges that the SIVN shall have a right to invoke
thisBANK GUARANTEE in part or in full, asit may deem fit.

The Guarantor Bank hereby expressly agrees that it shall not require any proof in addition to the
written demand by SJVN, made in any format, raised at the above mentioned address of the
Guarantor Bank, in order to make the said payment to SIVN.
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The Guarantor Bank shall make payment hereunder on first demand without restriction or
conditions and notwithstanding any objection by........... [Insert name of the Bidder] and/ or any
other person. The Guarantor Bank shall not require SIVN to justify the invocation of this BANK
GUARANTEE, nor shall the Guarantor Bank have any recourse against SIVN in respect of any
payment made hereunder.

This BANK GUARANTEE shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of India and the courts
at New Delhi shall have exclusive jurisdiction.

The Guarantor Bank represents that this BANK GUARANTEE has been established in such form
and with such content that it is fully enforceable in accordance with its terms as against the
Guarantor Bank in the manner provided herein.

This BANK GUARANTEE shall not be affected in any manner by reason of merger,
amalgamation, restructuring or any other change in the constitution of the Guarantor Bank.

This BANK GUARANTEE shall be a primary obligation of the Guarantor Bank and accordingly
SIVN shall not be obliged before enforcing this BANK GUARANTEE to take any action in any
court or arbitral proceedings against the Bidder, to make any claim against or any demand on the
Bidder or to give any notice to the Bidder or to enforce any security held by SIVN or to exercise,
levy or enforce any distress, diligence or other process against the Bidder.

This BANK GUARANTEE shall be effective only when the Bank Guarantee issuance messageis
transmitted by the issuing Bank through SFMS to State Bank of India, CAG Branch, 5" Floor,
Parswanath Capita Tower, Bha Veer Singh Marg, Gol Market, New Delhi-110001 IFSC
code: SBIN0017313, Client Name: SJVN Ltd.

Notwithstanding anything contained hereinabove, our liability under this Guarantee is restricted to
INR............... (Indian  Rupess............. Only) and it shal reman in force

We are liable to pay the guaranteed amount or any part thereof under this Bank Guarantee only if
SJIVN serves upon us awritten claim or demand.

Power of Attorney No.: .....
For

[Insert Name and Address of theBank] .......................

Contact Details of the Bank:
E-malil 1D of the Bank:
Banker's Stamp and Full Address.

Dated this................. dayof................... b 200
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Format /3B

FORMAT OF PAYMENT ON ORDER INSTRUMENT TO BE ISSUED BY
IREDA/REC/PEC (IN LIEU OF BG AGAINST EMD)

NO....oovviiiei (D [

SIVN Ltd,

Registered

Reg: M/S.iviiieinnnnn. (insert name of the Bidder) — I ssuance of Payment on Order | nstrument

for an amount of Rs. ...............
Dear Sir,

1) It is to be noted that M/s.___ (insert name of the POl issuing Agency)
(‘IREDA/REC/PFC’) has sanctioned a non-fund based limit loan of Rs. ...................
(Rupees ...........c...... only) to M/s............... under the Loan Agreement executed
oN............. to execute Renewable Energy Projects.

2) At the request of M/s___, on behalf of_ (insert name of the Bidder), this Payment on Order
Instrument (POI) is issued for an amount of Rs....... (Rupess...... (in words)). This Payment
on Order Instrument comes into force immediately.

3) In consideration of the .............. [Insert name of the Bidder] (hereinafter referred to as
'‘Bidder") submitting the response to RfS inter aliafor “Selection of Hybrid Power Developers
for Setting up of 1500 MW ISTS- Connected Wind-Solar Hybrid Power Projectsin India
under Tariff-based Competitive Bidding” of the capacity of .......... MW [Insert Bid
capacity / Contracted Capacity proposed] for supply of power there from on long term basis, in
responseto theRfSNo.............. dated ............ issued by SIVN Limited (hereinafter referred
to as SIVN) and SIVN considering such response to the RfS of ......... [insert the name of
the Bidder] as per the terms of the RfS, the _ [insert name & address of
IREDA/PFC/REC] hereby agrees unequivocally, irrevocably and unconditionally to pay to
SIVN at [Insert Name of the Place from the address of SIVN] forthwith without demur on
demand in writing from SIVN or any Officer authorized by it in this behalf, any amount upto
and not exceeding Rupess................... [Insert amount not less than that derived on the
basis of Rs. 12.26 Lakhs per MW of Bid capacity / Contracted Capacity proposed], only, on
behalf of M/s [Insert name of the Bidder].

4) In consideration of the above facts, IREDA/REC/PFC, having its registered office
a............ , agrees to make payment for the sum of Rs........... lakhs (in words........... ) to
SJIVN on the following conditions:

a) IREDA/REC/PFC agrees to make payment of the above said amount unconditionaly,
without demur and without protest within a period of___ days of receipt of request from
SIVN within the validity period of thisletter as specifiedherein;

b) The commitment of IREDA/REC/PFC, under this Payment of Order Instrument will have
the same effect as that of the commitment under the Bank Guarantee issued by any Public
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5)

d)

f)

Q)

h)

Sector Bank and shall be enforceable in the same manner as in the case of a Bank
Guarantee issued by a Bank and the same shall be irrevocable and shall be honoured
irrespective of any agreement or its breach between IREDA/REC/PFC or its constituents
notwithstanding any dispute that may be raised by the against SIVN;

The liability of IREDA/REC/PFC continues to be valid and binding on IREDA/REC/PFC
and shall not be terminated, impaired and discharged, by virtue of change in its
constitution and specific liability under letter of undertaking shall be binding on its
SUCCESSOrs or assignors,

The liability of IREDA/REC/PFC shall continue to be vaid and binding on
IREDA/REC/PFC and shall not be terminated/ impaired/ discharged by any extension of
time or variation and aternation made given or agreed with or without knowledge or
consent of the parties (SIVN and Bidding Party), subject to the maximum extent of amount
stated herein and IREDA/REC/PFC is not liable to any interest or costs etc;

This Payment on Order Instrument can be invoked either partialy or fully, till the date of
validity;

IREDA/REC/PFC agrees that it shal not require any proof in addition to the written
demand by SIVN made in any format within the validity period. IREDA/REC/PFC shall
not require SIVN to justify the invocation of the POI against the SPV/HPD, to make any
claim against or any demand against the SPV/HPD or to give any notice to the SPV/HPD;
The POI shall be the primary obligation of IREDA/REC/PFC and SJVN shall not be
obliged before enforcing the POI to take any action in any court or arbitral proceedings
against the SPV/HPD;

Neither SIVN isrequired to justify the invocation of this POl nor shall IREDA/REC/PFC
have any recourse against SIVN in respect of the payment made under letter of
undertaking.

Notwithstanding anything contrary contained anywhere in this POI or in any other documents,
this POl is and shal remainvalid upto_and IREDA/REC/PFC shal make payment
thereunder only if a written demand or request israised within the sad date and to the
maximum extent of Rs.............. and IREDA/REC/PFC shall in no case, be liable for any
interest, costs, charges and expenses and IREDA’SYREC’s/PFC’s liability in no case will
exceed more than the above amount stipul ated.

Thanking you
Y ours faithfully For and on behalf of

M/S. teiireeeeeininnneeenns

(Name of the POI issuing Agency)
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Format 7.3 C
FORMAT FOR PERFORMANCE BANK GUARANTEE (PBG)

(To be submitted Separately for each Project)

(To be stamped in accordance with Samp Act, the Non-Judicial Stamp Paper of
Appropriate Value)

Reference: .....oovve
Bank Guarantee NO.: ....vvvveeeeeeeeeeannn )

Date: .cooevveeiiieeeeeeaaen,

In consideration of the.............................. [Insert name of the Bidder] (hereinafter referred to
as ‘selected Hybrid Power Developer' or ‘HPD’) submitting the response to RfS inter alia for
................................. [Insert title of the RfS] of the capacity of..............MW, at
............ [Insert name of the place], for supply of power there from on long term basis, in
response to the RfS dated............ issued by SIVN Limited (hereinafter referred to as SIVN)
and SIVN considering such response to the RfS of.................... [Insert name of the Bidder]
(which expression shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning thereof include its executers,
administrators, successors and assignees) and selecting the Project of the RE Power Developer and
issuing Letter of Award No. ..................... L0 (Insert Name of selected
RE Power Developer) as per terms of RfS and the same having been accepted by the selected HPD
resulting in a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to be entered into, for purchase of Power [from
selected RE Power Developer or a Project Company, M/S.................o....i. {a Special Purpose
Vehicle (SPV) formed for this purpose}, if applicable].

As per the terms of the RfS, the............... [Insert name & address of Bank] here by agrees
unequivocally, irrevocably and unconditionally to pay to SIVN at [Insert Name of the Place from
the address of the SIVN] forthwith on demand in writing from SIVN or any Officerauthorised by it
in this behalf, any amount up to and not exceeding Indian Rupeses........................ [Total
Vaue] only, onbehaf of M/s................ [Insert name of the selected Solar Power
Devel oper/Project Company]

This guarantee shall be valid and binding on this Bank up to and including............. and shall not
be terminable by notice or any change in the constitution of the Bank or the term of contractor by
any other reasons whatsoever and our liability hereunder shall not be impaired or discharged by
any extension of time or variations or aternations made, given, or agreed with or without our
knowledge or consent, by or between parties to the respective agreement.

Our liability under this Guarantee is restricted to INR.................... (Indian Rupees
Only).
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Our Guarantee shall remain in force until................ SIVN shall be entitled to invoke this
Guaranteetill ..........

The Guarantor Bank hereby agrees and acknowledges that SIVN shall have a right to invoke this
BANK GUARANTEE in part or in full, asit may deem fit.

The Guarantor Bank hereby expressly agrees that it shall not require any proof in addition to the
written demand by SIVN, made in any format, raised at the above mentioned address of the
Guarantor Bank, in order to make the said payment to SIVN.

The Guarantor Bank shall make payment hereunder on first demand without restriction or
conditions and notwithstanding any objection by.................. [Insert name of the selected RE
Power Developer/ Project Company as applicable] and/ or any other person. The Guarantor Bank
shall not require SIVN to justify the invocation of this BANK GUARANTEE, nor shal the
Guarantor Bank have any recourse against SIVN in respect of any payment made hereunder

This BANK GUARANTEE shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of India and the
courts at New Delhi shall have exclusive jurisdiction

The Guarantor Bank represents that this BANK GUARANTEE has been established in such form
and with such content that it is fully enforceable in accordance with its terms as against the
Guarantor Bank in the manner provided herein.

This BANK GUARANTEE shall not be affected in any manner by reason of merger,
amalgamation, restructuring or any other change in the constitution of the Guarantor Bank.

This BANK GUARANTEE shall be a primary obligation of the Guarantor Bank and accordingly
SIVN shall not be obliged before enforcing this BANK GUARANTEE to take any action in any
court or arbitral proceedings against the selected RE Power Developer/ Project Company, to make
any claim against or any demand on the selected RE Power Developer/ Project Company or to give
any notice to the selected RE Power Developer/ Project Company or to enforce any security held
by SIVN or to exercise, levy or enforce any distress, diligence or other process against the selected
RE Power Developer/ Project Company, diligence or other process against the selected Solar
Power Developer / Project Company.

This BANK GUARANTEE shall be effective only when the Bank Guarantee issuance message is
transmitted by the issuing Bank through SFMS to State Bank of India, CAG Branch, 5th Floor,
Parswanath Capital Tower, Bhai Veer Singh Marg, Gol Market, New Delhi-110001 IFSC code:
SBIN0017313, Client Name: SIVN Ltd.

The Guarantor Bank acknowledges that this BANK GUARANTEE is not persona to SIVN and
may be assigned, in whole or in part, (whether absolutely or by way of security) by SIVN to any
entity to whom SJIVN is entitled to assign its rights and obligations under the PPA.

Notwithstanding anything contained hereinabove, our liability under this Guarantee isrestricted
toINR................. (Indian Rupess................. Only) and it shall remaininforceuntil ............
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We are liable to pay the guaranteed amount or any part thereof under this Bank Guarantee only if
SJIVN serves upon us awritten claim or demand.

Signature: ............o.oeeel
Name:

Power of Attorney No.:

For

ceeveeeee [ INSEFt Name and Address of the Bank]

Contact Details of the Bank:

E-mail ID of the Bank:
Banker's Stamp and Full Address. Dated this............... dayof ............ 20, ...

Witness:

Signature

Name and Address

Signature

Name and Address
Notes:

1. The Stamp Paper should be in the name of the Executing Bank and of appropriate value.

2. The Performance Bank Guarantee shall be executed by any of the Scheduled Commercial
Banks as listed on the website of Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and amended as on the date of
issuance of Bank Guarantee. Bank Guarantee issued by foreign branch of a Scheduled
Commercia Bank is to be endorsed by the Indian branch of the same bank or State Bank of
India (SBI).
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Format 7.3 D

FORMAT OF PAYMENT ON ORDER INSTRUMENT TO BE |SSUED BY
IREDA/REC/PEC (IN LIEU OF PBG)

SJVN Ltd.......

........................ Registered

Reg: M/Siciiiiiiiiiiiiniinicnnnnnnn. (insert name of the PPA signing entity) (Project No.
............. (Insert project ID issued by SIVN) — Issuance of Payment on Order
Instrument for an amount of Rs. ...ccvveininenaen.

Dear Sir,

1) The Ministry of New and Renewable Energy, Government of India vide its letter dated 12

March 2020 has decided that to facilitate the promotion of solar and wind power
development and implementation of the project by the Solar and Wind Power Devel opers who
have entered into financing and funding agreements with IREDA/REC/PFC, the security by
way of PBG in the form of Performance Bank Guarantee given by the Developers be alowed
to be substituted by Letter of Undertaking/ Payment on Order Instrument issued by Non-
Banking Finance Companies under the control of the Ministry of New and Renewable Energy
and Ministry of Power. SIVN and other nodal agencies appointed by the Government of India
with whom the power developers have entered into Power Purchase Agreement may accept
the same in place of PBG. The Ministry of New and Renewable Energy vide letter dated
12.03.2020 has, inter-alia, decided as under:

After carefully examining the matter, the Ministry have decided as follows:

i) SECI or NTPC or any other implementing agency on behalf of MNRE (henceforth
called implementing agencies) may release the Performance Bank Guarantee (PBG) of
any project if RE developers are able to replace the same with Letter(s) of Undertaking to
pay in case situation of default of RE developer in termsof Power Purchase Agreement
(PPA) arises, from Indian Renewable Energy Development Agency Limited (IREDA) or
Power Finance Corporation Limited (PFC) or REC Limited (REC), the three non-banking
financial ingtitutions under Ministry of New & Renewable Energy (MNRE)/ Ministry of
Power (MoP). These three financial institutions - IREDA or PFC or REC may issue such
Letter(s) of Undertaking to pay only after securing their financial interests taking into
account the security(ies) available with them as per their policy and after due diligence.
These non-banking financial institutions would ensure that the security(ies) available
with them are enough to cover full risk/ or exposure, which may arise on account of
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issue of such Letter(s) of Undertaking. Such Letter(s) may be termed as "Payment on Order
instrument” and will have same effect as that of a Bank Guarantee issued by any public
sector bank. This "Payment on Order instrument” would have terms and conditions
similar to that of any Bank Guarantee given by any public sector bank and would
promise to pay the implementing agencies ondemand within stipulated time.

i) RE developers can seek such Letters(s) by offering due security to the above mentioned
three non-banking financial institutions mentioned above (IREDA, PFC & REC) for
seeking replacement of their Bank Guarantees already pledged with the implementing
agencies.

iii) For future projects, RE developers would be at liberty to either pledge Bank Guarantee(s)
or Letter(s) of Undertaking as stated above towards Performance Bank Guarantee.

iv) The above decisions may be treated as amendments to the respective Standard Bidding
Guidelines (SBG) (solar/wind) and notified accordingly.

V) Implementing agencies shall not accept the instrument of 'Letter of Undertaking' as
described above or in any other form, from any other non- banking financial institutions or
bank, except IREDA, PFC & REC

2) It isto be noted that M/s...................... (insert name of the POI issuing Agency)
(‘'REDA/REC/PFC”) has sanctioned a non-fund based limit loan of Rs............. (Rupess.....
only) to M/s................... under the Loan Agreement executed on........... to execute

Renewable Energy Projects.

3) Attherequestof M/s............... , on behalf of (insert name of the SPV), this Payment on Order
Instrument (POI) for an amount of Rs..................... (Rupess................ (in words)).
This Payment on Order Instrument comes into force immediately.

4) In consideration of the..................... [Insert name of the Bidder] (hereinafter referred to as
selected RE Power Developer') submitting the response to RfS inter alia for selection of
Contracted Capacity of MW, at................. [Insert name of the place] under RIS for
(insert name of the RfS), for supply of power there from on longterm basis, in response
to the RfS dated... issued by SIVN Ltd (hereinafter referred to as SIVN) and SIVN
considering such response to the RfS of  [insert the name of the selected RE Power
Developer] (which expression shall unless repugnant to the context or meaning thereof include
its executers, administrators, successors and assignees) and selecting the RE Power Project of
the RE Power Developer (HPD) and issuing Letter of Award NO ..................... to (Insert
Name of selected RE Power Developer) as per terms of RfS and the same having been accepted
by the selected HPD resulting in a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) to be entered into, for
purchase of Power [from selected RE Power Developer or aProject Company, M/s ..............
{a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) formed for this purpose}, if applicable]. As per the terms of
the RfS, the ................. [insert name & address of IREDA/PFC/REC] hereby agrees
unequivocally, irrevocably and unconditionally to pay to SIVN at [Insert Name of the Place
from the address of the SIVN] forthwith on demand in writing from SIVN or any Officer

authorized by it in this behalf, any amount up to and not exceeding Rupess.......... [Tota
Value] only, on behalf of M/s................. [Insert name of the selected RE Power Devel oper
/ Project Company].
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5) In consideration of the above facts, IREDA/REC/PFC, having its registered office at
.......... , agrees to make payment for the sum of Rs..............Iakhs (in words.........) to
SIVN on the following conditions:-

a) IREDA/REC/PFC agrees to make payment of the above said amount unconditionally,
without demur and without protest within a period of days of receipt of request from
SIVN within the validity period of this|etter as specified herein;

b) The commitment of IREDA/REC/PFC, under this Payment of Order Instrument will have the
same effect as that of the commitment under the Bank Guarantee issued by any Public Sector
Bank and shall be enforceable in the same manner as in the case of a Bank Guarantee issued
by a Bank and the same shal be irrevocable and shal be honoured irrespective of any
agreement or its breach between IREDA/REC/PFC or its constituents notwithstanding any
dispute that may be raised by the against SIVN;

c) Theliability of IREDA/REC/PFC continues to be valid and binding on IREDA/REC/PFC
and shal not be terminated, impaired and discharged, by virtue of change in its congtitution
and specific liability under letter of undertaking shall be binding on its successors or assignors,

d) Theliability of IREDA/REC/PFC shall continue to be valid and binding on IREDA/REC/PFC
and shall not be terminated/ impaired/ discharged by any extension of time or variation and
alternation made given or agreed with or with out knowledge or consent of the parties (SIVN
and Bidding Party), subject to the however to the maximum extent of amount stated herein and
IREDA/REC/PFC isnot liable to any interest or costs tc.;

€) This Payment of Order Instrument can be invoked either partidly or fully, till the date of
validity;

f) IREDA/REC/PFC agrees that it shal not require any proof in addition to the written demand
by SIVN made in any format within the validity period. IREDA/REC/PFC shall not require
SIVN to justify the invocation of the POI against the SPV/HPD, to make any claim against or
any demand against the SPV/HPD or to give any notice to the SPV/HPD,;

g) The POI shal be the primary obligation of IREDA/REC/PFC and SIVN shall not be obliged
before enforcing the POI to take any action in any court or arbitral proceedings against the
SPV/HPD;

h) Neither SIVN is required to justify the invocation of this POl nor shal IREDA/REC/PFC
have any recourse against SIVN in respect of the payment made under letter of undertaking.

6) Notwithstanding anything contrary contained anywhere in this POI or in any other documents,
this POl is and shall remainvaid upto................. and IREDA /REC/ PFC shall make
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payment thereunder only if awritten demand or request is raised within the said date and to the
maximum extent of Rs................. and |IREDA/REC/PFC shall in no case, be liable for any
interest, costs, charges and expenses and IREDA’S/REC’s/PFC’s liability in no case will
exceed more than the above amount stipul ated.

Thanking you
Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of

M/s............ (Name of the POI issuing agency)
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Format 7.4
FORMAT FOR BOARD RESOLUTIONS

The Board, after discussion, at the duly convened Meeting on.................... [Insert date], with
the consent of al the Directors present and in compliance of the provisions of the Companies
Act,1956 or Companies Act 2013, as applicable, passed the following Resolution:

1) RESOLVED THAT Mr/ Ms................... , be and is hereby authorized to do on our behalf,
all such acts, deeds and things necessary in connection with or incidental to our response to RfS
vide RfS No............... for................ (insert title of the RfS), including signing and

submission of all documents and providing information/ response to RfS to SIVN Limited
(SIVN), representing us in al matters before SIVN, and generally dealing with SIVN in all
matters in connection with our bid for the said Project. (To be provided by the Bidding
Company or the Lead Member of the Consortium)

2) FURTHER RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 or
Companies Act, 2013, as applicable and compliance thereof and as permitted under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, approva of the Board be and is
hereby accorded to invest total equity in the Project. (To be provided by the Bidding
Company)

[Note: In the event the Bidder is a Bidding Consortium, in place of the above
resolution at Sl. No. 2, the following resolutionsareto be provided]

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 or
Companies Act, 2013, as applicable and compliance thereof and as permitted under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, approval of the Board be and is hereby
accorded to invest (-----%) equity [Insert the % equity commitment as specified in Consortium
Agreement] in the Project. (To be provided by each Member of the Bidding Consortium
including Lead Member such that total equity is 100%)

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT approval of the Board be and is hereby accorded to participatein
consortium with M/s .................... [Insert the name of other Members in the Consortium] and
Mr/ Ms........ccooennnn. , be and is hereby authorized to execute the Consortium Agreement. (To be
provided by each Member of the Bidding Consortium including Lead Member)

And

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT approva of the Board be and is hereby accorded to contribute
such additional amount over and above the percentage limit (specified for the Lead Member in
the Consortium Agreement) to the extent becoming necessary towards the total equity share in the
Project Company, obligatory on the part of the Consortium pursuant to the terms and conditions
contained in the Consortium Agreement dated................... execute by the Consortium as per
the provisions of the RfS. [To be passed by the Lead Member of the Bidding Consortium]
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Certified True Copy

(Signature, Name and Stamp of Company Secretary)

Notes:

1) This certified true copy should be submitted on the letterhead of the Company, signed by the
Company Secretary/ Director.

2) The contents of the format may be suitably re-worded indicating the identity of the entity
passing the resolution.

3) This format may be modified only to the limited extent required to comply with the local
regulations and laws applicable to a foreign entity submitting this resolution. For example,
reference to Companies Act, 1956 or Companies Act, 2013 as applicable may be suitably
modified to refer to the law applicable to the entity submitting the resolution. However, in such
case, the foreign entity shall submit an unqualified opinion issued by the legal counsel of
such foreign entity, stating that the Board resolutions are in compliance with the applicable
laws of the respective jurisdictions of the issuing Company and the authorizations granted
therein are true and valid.
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Format 7.5
FORMAT FOR CONSORTIUM AGREEMENT

(To be stamped in accordance with Stamp Act, the Non-Judicial Stamp Paper of Appropriate
Value)

THIS Consortium  Agreement  (“Agreement”) executed on  this............... Day
(o] JU R Two Thousand............. between M/s .............. [Insert name of Lead
Member] a Company incorporated under the laws of and having its Registered Office at
(hereinafter called the “Member-1”, which expression shall include its successors, executors
and permitted assigns) and M/s................. a Company incorporated under the laws of
and having its Registered Office at..................... (hereinafter called the “Member-2”, which
expression shall include its successors, executors and permitted assigns), M/s............. a
Company incorporated under the laws of................... and having its Registered Office
... (hereinafter called the “Member-n”, which expression shall include its

successors, executors and permitted assigns), [ The Bidding Consortium should list the details of all
the Consortium Members] for the purpose of submitting response to RfS and execution of Power
Purchase Agreement (in case of award), against RES No.............. dated ............ issued by
SIVN Limited (SIVN) a Company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013, and having its
Registered Office at 6th Floor, Tower-1, NBCC Office Complex, East Kidwai Nagar, New Delhi -
110023

WHEREAS, each Member individually shal be referred to as the “Member” and all of the
Members shall be collectively referred to as the “Members” in this Agreement.

WHEREAS SJVN desires to purchase Power under RfS for.................. (insert title of the
RfS);

WHEREAS, SIVN had invited response to RfS vide its Request for Selection (RfS)

WHEREAS the RfS stipulates that in case response to RfS is being submitted by a Bidding
Consortium, the Members of the Consortium will have to submit a legally enforceable
Consortium Agreement in aformat specified by SIVN wherein the Consortium Members have to
commit equity investment of a specific percentage for the Project.

NOW THEREFORE, THISAGREEMENT WITNESSTH AS UNDER:

In consideration of the above premises and agreements all the Members in this Bidding
Consortium do hereby mutually agree as follows:

1) We, the Members of the Consortium and Members to the Agreement do hereby unequivocally
agree that Member-1 (M/s............. ), shal act as the Lead Member asdefined in the RfS
for self and agent for and on behaf of Member-2, ,Member-n and to submit the response to
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the RfS.

2) The Lead Member is hereby authorized by the Members of the Consortium and Members to the
Agreement to bind the Consortium and receive instructions for and on their behalf.

3) Notwithstanding anything contrary contained in this Agreement, the Lead Member shall dways
be liable for the equity investment obligations of al the Consortium Members i.e. for both its
own liability aswell asthe liability of other Members.

4) The Lead Member shall be liable and responsible for ensuring the individual and collective
commitment of each of the Members of the Consortium in discharging all of their respective
equity obligations. Each Member further undertakes to be individually liable for the
performance of its part of the obligations without in any way limiting the scope of collective
liability envisaged in this Agreement.

5) Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the share of each Member of the Consortium in the
issued equity share capital of the Project Company is/shall be in the following proportion:

Name Per centage
Member1 |
Member2 ...l
Membern [
Total 100%

We acknowledge that after the execution of PPA, the controlling shareholding (havingnot less
than 51% of the voting rights and paid up share capital) in the Project Company developing the
Project shall be maintained for a period of 01 (one) year after Commencement of Supply Date
(CSD).

6) The Lead Member, on behalf of the Consortium, shall inter alia undertake full responsibility for
liaising with Lenders or through interna accruals and mobilizing debt resources for the Project,
and ensuring that the Seller achieves Financial Closure in terms of the PPA.

7) In case of any breach of any equity investment commitment by any of the Consortium
Members, the Lead Member shall be liable for the consequences thereof.

8) Except as specified in the Agreement, it is agreed that sharing of responsibilities as aforesaid and
equity investment obligations thereto shal not in any way be a limitation of responsibility of the
Lead Member under these presents.

9) It is further specifically agreed that the financia liability for equity contribution of the Lead
Member shall not be limited in any way so as to restrict or limit its liabilities. The Lead Member
shall be liable irrespective of its scope of work or financial commitment.
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10) This Agreement shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the Laws of India and
courts at New Dehi adone shall have the exclusive jurisdiction in all matters relating thereto and
arising thereunder.

11) It is hereby further agreed that in case of being selected as the Successful Bidder, the Members do
hereby agree that they shall furnish the Performance Guarantee in favour of SIVN in terms of the
RfS.

12) It is further expressly agreed that the Agreement shall be irrevocable and shall form an integra
part of the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) and shall remain vaid until the expiration or early
termination of the PPA in terms thereof, unless expressly agreed tothe contrary by SIVN.

13) The Lead Member is authorized and shall be fully responsible for the accuracy and veracity of the
representations and information submitted by the Members respectively from time to time in the
responseto RfS.

14) It is hereby expressly understood between the Members that no Member at any given point of
time, may assign or delegate its rights, duties or obligations under the PPA except with prior
written consent of SIVN.

15) This Agreement

a) has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of each Member hereto and congtitutes the
legal, valid, binding and enforceable obligation of each such Member;

b) sets forth the entire understanding of the Members hereto with respect to the subject matter
hereof; and

c) may not be amended or modified except in writing signed by each of the Members and with
prior written consent of SIVN.

16) All the terms used in capitals in this Agreement but not defined herein shall have the meaning as
per the RfS and PPA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Members have, through their authorized representatives, executed
these present on the Day, Month and Y ear first mentioned above

FOr M/S.ciieiieiiiiniinnnnnnnn. [Member 1]

(Signature, Name & Designation of the person authorized vide Board Resolution Dated............. )
Witnesses:

Signature: Signature:

Name: Name:

Address: Address:
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Witnesses:

Signature: Signature:
Name: Name:
Address: Address:

Signature and stamp of Notary of the place of execution
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Format 7.6

FORMAT FOR FINANCIAL REQUIREMENT

(This should be submitted on the Letter Head of the Bidding Company/ Lead Member of
Consortium)

To

SJVN Limited
6th Floor, Tower-1, NBCC Office Complex, East Kidwai Nagar, New Delhi - 110 023

Sub: Responseto RfSNo............. dated........... for .o

Dear Sir/ Madam,

We certify that the Bidding Company/Member in a Bidding Consortium is meeting the financial
eligibility requirements as per the provisions of the RfS. Accordingly, the Bidder, with the support
of its Affiliates, (strike out if not applicable) is fulfilling the minimum Net Worth criteria, by
demonstrating a Net Worth of Rs............... Cr. (... inwords) as on the last date of Financia
Year 2022-23 or as on the date at least 7 days prior to the bid submission deadline (Strike our
wherever not applicable).

This Net Worth has been calculated in accordance with instructions provided in Clause 4.3.1 of the
RfS.

Exhibit (i):  Applicablein case of Bidding Company

For the above calculations, we have considered the Net Worth by Bidding Company and/ or its
Affiliate(s) as per following details:

f Biddi Name of Affiliate(s) Relationship with )
Nameof Bidding | \hose net worth isto | Bidding Company* | Net Worth (in Rs.
Company be considered Crore)

Company 1
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Total

*The column for “Relationship with Bidding Company” isto be filled only in case the financial
capability of Affiliate has been used for meeting Qualification Requirements. Further,
documentary evidence to establish the relationship, duly certified by a practicing company
secretary/ chartered accountant is required to be attached with the format.

Exhibit (i1): Applicable in case of Bidding Consortium (To be filled by each Member in a
Bidding Consortium separately) Name of Member: [Insert name of the
Member]

Net Worth Requirement to be met by Member in Proportion to the Equity Commitment:
................. Crore (Equity Commitment (%) * Rs. .................. Crore)

For the above calculations, we have considered Net Worth by Member in Bidding Consortium and/
or its Affiliate(s) per following details:

Name of Affl?:?ar\?ee(g)f Relationship | Net  Worth CorEr%Liltl:r){mt Committed
Consortium whose net with Bidding | (in Rs. (in %age) in Net Worth
b - C * Crore) A (in Rs
Member worth isto be | ~ompPany Bidding '
Company considered (If any) Consortium Crore)
Company 1
Total

* The column for “Relationship with Bidding Company” is to be filled only in case the
financial capability of Affiliate has been used for meeting Qualification Requirements. Further,
documentary evidence to establish the relationship, duly certified by a practicing company
secretary/chartered accountant is required to be attached with the format.

Further, we certify that the Bidding Company/ Member in the Bidding Consortium, with the
support of its Affiliates, (strike out if not applicable) is fulfilling the minimum Annual
Turnover Criteria, by demonstrating an Annua Turnover of INR............. (oo in words)
asonthe end of Financial Year 2022-23 or as on the day at least 7 days prior to the bid
submission deadline (choose one). (Strike out if not applicable)

Exhibit (i):  Applicablein case of Bidding Company

For the above calculations, we have considered the Annual Turnover by Bidding Company and/
or its Affiliate(s) as per following details:

- Name of Affiliate(s) : . . Annual
Name of Bidding whose Annual Relationship with Turnover

Company Bidding Company*

RfS for selection of HPD for setting up 0f 1500 MW ISTS-connected Hybrid Power | Page 102 of 149
Projectsin Indiaunder TBCB (RfS No.: SIVN/CC- Delhi/REIA/2024/ HY BRID-2
TSC: SIVN-2024-TN000001




Turnover isto be
considered

(In Rs.Crore)

Company 1

Total

*The column for “Relationship with Bidding Company” is to be filled only in case the
financial capability of Affiliate has been used for meeting Qualification Requirements. Further,
documentary evidence to establish the relationship, duly certified by a practicing company
secretary/chartered accountant is required to be attached with the format.

Exhibit (ii): Applicable in case of Bidding Consortium (To be filled by each Member in a

Bidding Consortium separately) Name of Member: [Insert name of the
Member]

Annua Turnover Requirement to be met by Member in Proportion to the Equity Commitment:
Crore (Equity Commitment (%) * RS. .................. Crore)

For the above calculations, we have considered Annual Turnover by Member in Bidding
Consortium and/ or its Affiliate(s) as per following details:

Name of
e o sty || SO | P
consortium | Annual \(/:wt o "9 Turnover (in | (in %age) in | Turnover (in
o Turnover s I?rxpany Rs. Crore) Bidding Rs. Crore)
Company to be( ny) Consortium

considered
Company 1

Total

* The column for “Relationship with Bidding Company” is to be filled only in case the financial
capability of Affiliate has been used for meeting Qualification Requirements. Further, documentary
evidence to establish the relationship, duly certified by a practicing company secretary/chartered
accountant is required to be attached with the format.

Further, we certify that the Bidding Company/ Member in the Bidding Consortium, with the
support of its Affiliates, (strike out if not applicable) is fulfilling the minimum Profit Before
Depreciation Interest and Taxes (PBDIT) criteria as mentioned in the RFS, by demonstrating a
PBDITof INR .......... (in words) as on the end of Financia Y ear 2022-23 or as on the day at least
7 days prior to the bid submission deadline. (Strike out if not applicable)

Exhibit (i):  Applicablein case of Bidding Company
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For the above calculations, we have considered the PBDIT by Bidding Company and/ or its
Affiliate(s) as per following details:

Name of Affiliate(s) PBDIT (in
Name of Bidding whose Relationship with R
Company PBDIT isto be Bidding Company* Cror
considered ore)
Company 1
Total

*The column for “Relationship with Bidding Company” is to be filled only in case the financial
capability of Affiliate has been used for meeting Qualification Requirements. Further, documentary
evidence to establish the relationship, duly certified by a practicing company secretary/chartered
accountant is required to be attached with the format.

Exhibit (ii): Applicablein case of Bidding Consortium

(To befilled by each Member in a Bidding Consortium separately) Name of Member: ....... [Insert
name of the Member]

PBDIT Requirement to be met by Member in Proportion to the Equity Commitment:
INR............... Crore (Equity Commitment (%) * RS. .................... Crore)

For the above calculations, we have considered PDBIT by Member in Bidding Consortium and/ or
its Affiliate(s) as per following details:

Name of Name of Relationship Equity
Consortium | Affiliate(s) with Bidding | PDBIT (in Commitment | Proportionate
M ember whose Company* Rs. Crore) (in%age) in | PBDIT
Company PBDIT isto | (If Any) Bidding (inRs.Crore)
be considered Consortium
Company 1
Total

* The column for “Relationship with Bidding Company” is to be filled only in case the financial
capability of Affiliate has been used for meeting Qualification Requirements. Further, documentary
evidence to establish the relationship, duly certified by a practicing company secretary/chartered
accountant is required to be attached with the format

(Signature & Name of the Authorized Signatory) (Signatureand Stamp of CA)
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Member ship No.
Regn. No. of the CA’s Firm:

Date:
Note:

a Along with the above format, in a separate sheet on the letterhead of the Chartered

Accountant’s Firm, provide details of computation of Net Worth and Annual Turnover duly
certified by the Chartered Accountant.

b. Certified copies of Balance sheet, Profit & Loss Account, Schedules and Cash Flow
Statements are to be enclosed in complete form along with all the Notes to Accounts.

c. In case of the Bidder choosing to meet the Liguidity criteria through an In-principle

sanction letter, such document shal be separately submitted by the bidder as part of the
bidder’sResponse to RfS.
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FORMAT 7.7
UNDERTAKING

(To be submitted on the letterhead of the Bidder)

We, hereby provide this undertaking to SIVN Limited, in respect to our response to RfS vide
RfSNo................. dated.............. ythat M/s ... (insert name of the Bidder), or
any of its Affiliates is not a wilful defaulter to any lender, and that there is no major litigation
pending or threatened against M/s (insert name of the Bidder) or any of its Affiliates which
are of a naturethat could cast a doubt on the ability or the suitability of the Bidder to undertake
the Project.

(Name and Signature of the Authorized Signatory)
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Format 7.8

FORMAT FOR DISCLOSURE

(To be submitted on the Letter Head of the Bidding Company/ Each Member of Consortium)

DISCLOSURE
Ref.No.............cooeei DAl .ot
From:.................... (Insert name and address of Bidding Company/ Lead Member of
Consortium)
Tel #
Fax#:
E-mail address#
To
SIVN Limited
6th Floor, Tower-1, NBCC Office Complex, East Kidwai Nagar, New Delhi - 110 023
Sub: Response to RESNO..................... datedfor ...........ooooiiiiiiin

Dear Sir/ Madam,

We hereby declare and confirm that only we are participating in the RfS Selection process for the
RfSNo.................. dated................ and that our Parent, Affiliate or Ultimate Parent or any
Group Company with which we have direct or indirect reationship are not separately
participating in this selection process.

We further declare and confirm that in terms of the definitions of the RfS, M/s.................
(enter name of the Promoter/Promoters) is/are our Promoter(s), and has’have a direct/indirect
Control in the bidding company as per the Companies Act 2013. No other entity has a
direct/indirect control in the bidding company except the entity(ies) mentioned above.

We further declare that the above statement is true & correct. We undertake that if at any stageit is
found to be incorrect, in addition to actions applicable under the RfS/PPA including but not
limited to cancellation of our response to this RfS and LOA/PPA as applicable, we, i.e.
MIS oo (enter name of the bidding company/member in a consortium), including
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our Parent, Ultimate Parent, and our Affiliates shall be suspended/debarred from participating in
any of the upcoming tenders issued by SIVN for a period of 2 years from the date of default as
notified by SIVN.

We also understand that the above is in addition to the penal consequences that may follow from
the relevant laws for the time being in force.

We further declare that we have read the provisions of Clause 4.1.4 of the RfS, and are complying
with the requirements as per the referred OM dated 23.02.2023 except SI.17 of the OM, including
subsequent amendments and clarifications thereto. Accordingly, we are aso enclosing necessary
certificates (Annexure to this format) in support of the above compliance under the RfS. We
understand that in case of us being selected under this RfS, any of the above certificates is found
fase, SIVN shall take appropriate action as deemed necessary.

We further declare that we are fully aware of the binding provisions of the ALMM Order and the
Lists(s) thereunder, while quoting the tariff in RfSfor.......... (Enter the name of the RfS).

We further understand that the List-1 (Solar PV Modules) of ALMM Order, Annexure-1 of the OM,
issued by MNRE on 10th March, 2021 will be updated by MNRE from time to time. We also
understand that the Modules to be procured for this project, shall be from the List-1 of the ALMM
Order applicable on the date of invoicing of such modules.

We also further understand and accept that we shall be liable for penal action, including but not
limited to blacklisting and invocation of Performance Bank Guarantee, if we are found not
complying with the provisions of ALMM Order, including those mentioned above.

Datedthe....................... dayof.................... , 20........

Thanking you,

Weremain, Yoursfathfully,

Name, Designation, Seal and Signature of Authorized Person in whose name Power of
Attorney/ Board Resolution/ Declaration
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Format 7.8 A

FORMAT FOR DISCLOSURE

(To be submitted on the Letter Head of the Bidding Company/ Each Member of Consortium)

(To be submitted by all such biddersin which a common Company/companies directly/indirectly
own(s) more than 10% but less than 26% shareholding)

DISCLOSURE

E-mail address#

To
SIVN Limited
6th Floor, Plate-B, NBCC Office Block Tower-1, East Kidwai Nagar, New Delhi - 110 023

Sub: Responseto RFSNo........................ dated ................. for.................

Dear Sir/ Madam,

We hereby declare and confirm that in terms of the definitions of the RfS, M/s....................
(enter name of the common shareholder) is our Group Company, and has a direct/indirect
shareholding of less than 26% in the bidding company. M/s................... (enter name of the
common shareholder) also holds directly/indirectly less than 26% shareholding in other
Companies which may participatein thisRfS, i.e. RfSNo. ..........

We undertake that M/s....................... (enter name of the above common shareholder) is not
a party to the decision-making process for submission of response to thisRfSbhy M/s...............
(enter name of the bidding company/member in the consortium). We further undertake that
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while undertaking any action as part of our response to RfS, we are not complicit with other such
bidders participating in this RfS, in which M/s.................. (enter name of the common
shareholder) haslessthan 26% direct/indirect shareholding, if any.

We further declare and confirm that in terms of the definitions of the RfS, M/s_ (enter
name of the Promoter/Promoters) is/are our Promoter(s), and has/have a direct/indirect Control in
the bidding company as per the Companies Act 2013. No other entity has a direct/indirect
control in the bidding company except the entity (ies) mentioned above

We further declare that the above statement is true & correct. We undertake that if at any stage it is
found to be incorrect, in addition to actions applicable under the RFS/PPA including but not limited
to cancellation of our response to this RfS and LoA/PPA as applicable, we, i.e. M/s_(enter name of
the bidding company/member in a consortium), including our Parent, Ultimate Parent, and our
Affiliates shall be suspended/debarred from participating in any of the upcoming tenders issued by
SIVN for aperiod of 2 years from the date of default as notified by SIVN

We also understand that the above is in addition to the penal consequences that may follow from
the relevant laws for the time being in force.

We further declare that we have read the provisions of Clause 4.2.4 of the RfS, and are complying
with the requirements as per the referred OM dated 23.02.2023 except Sl. 11 of the OM,
including subsequent amendments and clarifications thereto. Accordingly, we are also enclosing
necessary certificates (Annexure to this format) in support of the above compliance under the RfS.
We understand that in case of us being selected under this RfS, any of the above certificates is
found false, SIVN shall take appropriate action as deemed necessary.

We further understand that the List-1 (Solar PV Modules) of ALMM Order, Annexure-1 of the
OM, issued by MNRE on 10th March, 2021 will be updated by MNRE from time to time. We aso
understand that the Modules to be procured for this project, shall be from the List-I1 of the ALMM
Order applicable on the date of invoicing of such modules.

We aso further understand and accept that we shall be liable for penal action, including but not
limited to blacklisting and invocation of Performance Bank Guarantee, if we are found not
complying with the provisions of ALMM Order, including those mentioned above.
Datedthe........................ dayof................... ,20........

Thanking you,

Weremain,

Y ours faithfully,

Name, Designation, Seal and Signature of Authorized Person in whose name Power of Attorney/
Board Resolution/ Declaration.
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Annexureto Format 7.8/7.8A

DECLARATION

RESTRICTION ON PROCUREMENT FROM CERTAIN COUNTRIES: MoF OM No

7/10/2021-PPD(1) dated 23.02.2023

(To be submitted on the Letter Head of the Bidding Company/ Each Member of Consortium)

Fax#:

E-mail address#

To
SIVN Limited

6th Floor, Plate-B, NBCC Office Block Tower-2, East Kidwai Nagar, New Delhi - 110 023

Sub: Response to the RFSNO........cccovvveivniennenne. dated ......

Dear Sir/ Madam,

Thisiswith reference to attached order No. OM no. 7/10/2021-PPD(1) dated 23.02.2023 issued by

Department of Expenditure, MoF, Govt of India.

We are hereby submitting the following declaration in this regard:

"l have read the clause regarding restrictions on procurement from a bidder of a country which
shares aland border with Indig; | certify that this bidder is not from such a country or, if from such
acountry, has been registered with the Competent Authority. | hereby certify that this bidder fulfils
al requirementsin thisregard and is eligible to be considered. Where applicable, evidence of valid

registration by the Competent Authority shall be attached].”
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We further declare that the above statement is true & correct. We are aware that if at any stageit is
found to be incorrect, our response to the tender will be rejected.

Datedrthe............ day of

Encl: OM dated 23.02.2023, as referred above

Name, Designation, Seal and Signature of Authorized Signatory
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Format 7.9
FORMAT FOR TECHNICAL CRITERIA

(This should be submitted on the Letter Head of the Bidding Company/ Lead Member of
Consortium) (To be Submitted Separately for each Project)

Fax#
E-mail address#

To

SIVN Limited
6th Floor, Plate-B, NBCC Office Block Tower-1, East Kidwai Nagar, New Delhi - 110 023

Sub: Responseto RFSNO. .........coviiniits dated................ for.................

Dear Sir/ Madam,

We hereby undertake to comply with the requirements stipulated under Clause 4.2 of RfS
Document (Technical Eligibility Criteria).

We hereby undertake to certify in line with Clause 6.12 under the title “Financial Closure” that the
following details shall be furnished within 18 (eighteen) months/ 24 (twenty four) months (strike
off whichever is not applicable) from Effective Date of the PPA.

1) Evidence of achieving complete-tie-up of the Project Cost through internal accruals or through
aFinancing Agency.

2) DPR of the Project, detailing out project configuration and proposed commissioning schedule
of the Project.

3) Any other details sought as per the checklist communicated by SIVN Failure or delay on our
part in achieving the above conditions shall constitute sufficient grounds for actions as per the
provisions of the RfS

Datedthe........................ dayof..................... ,20....

Thanking you,
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Name, Designation, Seal and Signature of Authorized Person in whose name Power of Attorney/
Board Resolution/ Declaration
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Format 7.10

DECLARATION BY THE BIDDER FOR THE PROPOSED WIND-SOLAR HYBRID

CONFIGURATION
(To be Submitted on the letterhead of the Bidder)

Name of Bidding Company/ Lead Member of
1 Bidding Consortium

L ocation(s) of Wind-Solar Hybrid RE Power
components

3 |Contracted Capacity proposed | MW

4 |Wind-Solar Hybrid Power Project Configuration breakup

i) |Installed Capacity of Solar Component

i) [Installed Capacity of Wind Component

Committed Annual CUF for the offered
capacity to be suppliedin% [

6 |Power supply profile of offered capacity to this Formet)

(To be enclosed as Annexure

7 Brief about the proposed Technology

Dated the......... day of............ ,20....
Thanking you,
Y ours faithfully,

Encl.:

Hourly generation profile for a representative day for a single year, indicating tentative
energy (MWh) and power (MW) to be supplied under the PPA, as required under Cl 6.11.2.
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Forimat 7.12

PRE CONTRACT INTEGRITY PACT

Benween

SIVN Limited, 2 company meotporaizd wunder the relevan! law in the matter and baving itz
registered office a0 SHAKTT SADAN, SHANAN, F.0O. SANJATLL, SIIIMLA, HE-171006
hercirafter retemed io as “The STVM™ which expression shall mean and include, unless the cinlexl
ntherwize requires. his successors 1 office and assigns of the Firsd Part,

And
M e e w company? liom! individual (statws of the company)
conatinied in aceordance with the relevanl law in the mater and having its regisiercd oftisc
Al represented by Sho L hereinafter referred to s M The
BidderContractor” which expression shall mean and include, unlzss dhe context athemwise requires,
hiz suecessors and peomitled wssigns of the Second Part.

WHEREAS the 5IVN propeses 1o procurs under laid down organi-ativnal peecedures, contracl's
tor RIS for selection of HPTY fir setting up of 150 MW 15TS-connected Yind-Solar Hyhrid
I'ower Projects in India under Tar-Based Compelitive Bidding” (Mamc of the worly poods!
services) and the RidderContractor s willing 1o otfer apainst NUT Moo RS Nooo SI¥VNACC-
el REIA 2L HYERID-2 TSC: 50V N-202 41T NHHAHIL

W, THERETORE,

Tus avaid all lorms of corruplicn by follewing o system rhat iz fait. transparent and free [oom any
influsnce’prejudiced dealings pror to, dunng and subsequent to the pumeney of the comlract o be
antered nte witl & wicw 10i-

Coabling (e 3JVN 10 obtan the desnad said (work! geods' servipes) at @ compeldive poce m
confonnity with the defined specificaions by avoiding the high cost and the distarlianary irnpact of
cotruplion on public procurement, and

Enabling the Biddes(s)*Contractaris) to absiain from bribang or indulging in any cormuplpractics in
otder o secure the coniract by providing assurance 1o dhem thal their compettors wall alzo abstain
from briking and other cormupl practices and the SFVN will commil 0 prevent commuplion. o any
torm, by s olTicials by Following ransparent procedires,

LA Commibnents of the SJ¥YN

1.1 The %J%™ underiakes that no official of the SN, conpecled direclly or iodirecly wide Qw
contract, will demand, take s promuese (or o sceep, dirsclly or theouph mtennediaries, any
bribe, consilemion, gill, mward, Tavour o any material o ioonacerial benefic or any other
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advanmiage from the Bidder Contractir, either Tor themselves o for any person, eogomsaldion or
thicd pamy related W the comtact in exclonge fr oo advantape i the bidding procees, hid
evalualion:, comieactiog or inplementation process related wo the contacl.

|2 The STWVN will, during the pre-conUact slaee. beat 4l the BiddersContraclons alike, and will
provide wooall the Bidders®Contractors the same information and wall nod provides any such
information to any particular Bidder Contractor which could afford an advaniage to that
particular BidderContractor m <ompanson to other Bidder='Contractors.

L3 Al the officials of the SIVIS wall repon te the appropriste Aatheriy any aiemped or
completed breaches of the above commitments as well a5 any substantial suspicion of such a
hreach.

.4 Tn cwse any soch preceding miscooduct oo the part ol sach oaflicialis) 15 mepoeted by the
Fidduerle the 5PN with full and verfiable (el and the same is prima facie Gund to be comeet
by the SIVN, necassary disciplinaty proceadings, or any other action ag deemed 1it, mcluding
crinikal proceedings miay be nitiaed by the SN o Independenl Externa] Monitor and soch
a person shall be debtarred from funthor dealngs relared 1o the contract process. 1o sueh a case

while an cnquity 15 being conducted by the SIS the procecdings under the cnacract waonld ot
b stalled,

2.0 Commitnients of the Bidders) Consultantis)

The Biddelds)Conttactot(sh vonmnits isell o take all measwes pecessary 10 prevenl carrupt
praciices. untain means and illegal aotivities during anyr siage of it bd or during @y pre- contract
of post-contrast siage m order o sceune the conract ot im funherance to secure 1t and 1n particular
commil self to the following:-

2.1 The Bidder(svComractor(sy will not offer. directly or throueh inermediancs. any  bribe,
rilt, consideralion, reward, {avour, any malenal ot immaterial benehil or other sdvantage,
commession, [ees, hrokerage or indocement oo any afficial o the STYM, connectad direcily or
indimectly with the badding, priscess, wr o any pecsm, orpaniaation or third parly relaled 4 e
comltacl i exchange for oany  advantage m the bidding, evalwation, cootracliong  and
inplementation of the conlracl.

1.
12

Che BudderContraclor further omderiskes that i1 has il given, ollered or prmmised W piove,
diectly vr indirecily any Bk, wifl considecation, rewand, favour, any material or nnmaleral
buenelic oo athoer wdvantage, cornmissien, tees, brokerage or mducement o any eliicial ot Lhe
SIVH ar oiheraise m procuring the Contract or forbearing o do or baving dooe any act in
telation to the obimning or exccution of the contract or aoy other conteact with SJYM tol
shorwing or torbearnne to show favoeur o disfavor 10 any person n ralation to the conttact or
any other contract with SV,

i
"

3 The Bidded s ontractan(s) shull disclose the name and address of agents and reprosentatives
and Tnochizn Biddens )T ootracrom =) shall diselose ther foreign principals or associHies.
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2.4 The Bidder(s ) onlruclor) shall disclose the payments o be mads by them w o apentahiokers
ar ary dther intermediare, in connection with this bidsconteact.

13 The Bidder, either while presenting the bid or duwrme pre-contract negoations or helure
stpnino Ow contract. shall disclose any payments he bas made. 15 comumatted oo Intends we
make to officals of the SIVN or their tamily members. apents, brokers or sny other
mtermediaries in conneceion with the contract and the details of services agreed npon for such
payments.

2.6 The Bidder Comowetor will oot solluds with +ther pomies interssied inothe confrag! wimpair the
transpacency, [Eimess and propress ol the bidding process, hid evalualion, contracting and
imnpile mentation ol the conlrdl.

L7 The RBaddecContractor will aot accept any advantapge in exchanpe for any commupl practice,
onafaie rocans and illepal aolivitics.

2.8 The Budder Contiactor shall not wse impropecly, for pueposes of compention o petsonal wain,
oF pass on to others, any infonmation provided by the S31¥H as pain of the business relationship,
rogarding plans. fechnical proposals and hosiness details, including information comtained in
clectrenic dak carmior. The BidderControctor al=o undertakes w excreise duc and adequate core
lest any =nch infirmation s divalged.

2.9 The Pidder(s) A nsntracton(s) comuwmits to refoain from giving any esmplaimt directly or through
any cither manner wilhent supparling i wilh Tull ansd venlahle Lucs.

210 The Tilders W Conlrachansy shall nol msiigale rocamse Lo instipale sy thind person to
cammil uny s Lhe astions menlioned abowe.

211 I ke DidderContraclor vr any emplovee ol the BidderiContraclon tr any persion acling on
behalt of the BidderContractor, either directly or indirectly, 15 a relative oF any of the otfficers
of the SI¥M, or aliernatively, i any melative of an officer of e SI¥N has {imancial
wtcrestistake in e Biddes(spContractoes) finm (exchuding Pubbe Ltd. Company listed oo
Stock Exchange), the same shall ke disclosed bw the BidderContractar at e time of filling of
Leruler

The tonm 'relative” for this purpoese would be as defined o Section 2(77) of the Compaties
At 03,

212  The Bidder{s)'Contractor{s) shall not lend to or bormow any moncy from or cnlcy inte any
monelary dealinges or trapsactions. direetly or indiccctly, with any emplovee of the 8JWVN.

213 The Biddsr'supplicr shall follow all niles and repulations of India imeluding statwiory
reguirements fike minmmum wages, ESHT and EFPE.

A4 Previous Transeression

3.1 Badders 1o deschose any (ranspressinns wilth any other company that may mpinge on the anti-
comuplion prnape. The date of such transgression, for the purpose of disclosure by the
bidders in this repard, wawld be lhe dale on which cognience of the said temspression ws
ke by the compelent authorily. The perigd for whiche soch Imnsgressaonis) esare o be
teported by the bidders shall be the last three vears o be ceckonsd from date of bud
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submission, The vansorescionic). for which cognizance was taken before the said pernod ol
three vears. bl ar: pending conclusinn, =hall also be reporied by the hublers.

1.2 The Didder apgrees that of it makes incorrcet s@tement on this subjoct, Bidder con he
disqualitied trom the tendst process or the contract, 1F already awarted, ¢an be terminated for
auch rcason.

4.0 Earnest Money (Security Deposit]

The provision regarding Farnest Meney™ecurty Deposit as detailed in the Notice Inviling
Teoder (K11 and Instruction to Bidders (ITE)} saction of the Bid Documcent is 10 be refomed.

5.0 Samcfinns for Vidletions

5.0 Amy bregch of the aluresand poovisicns by the Baddec Condracter ar any ane employed by noor
acting on its behall shall entitle the BIYN 0 ke aclon as per the procedues mentioned in the
“Guwidelines on Banning of Business Dealings™ attached as Annex- A and initiatz all or any
wie of the followinge actions, wherever required:-

b To immediately disgualify the bidder and call off the pre contract procecdings withoot
asgipnine any TeRs0on o ging e compensaling o the Bidder Contracesr. Howeower, the
prosecdings with the other Bidder(s )/Contractarns) would comlinue.

itk The Famest bMoney Deposil (m pre-conlracl slagep andéior Secooly Deposil Perlisomance
Rund {alter the contruel s Signed) sholl stand focfeited cither flly or partially, as decided
by the 3JY N and the 5PV M shall not be required to assign any reason Lhereof.

und To inunediately cancel the contract, of aleeady signed, without giviog Ay compehsation 1o
the Contractor. The Bidder Contracior shall be lisble o pay compensation [or ary loss ov
damage m the 3IVN rosalting from such cancellalion/resnission and the ST shall he
entilled o dedoet the amount e payahle [rom the money (<) doe W the Biddec Conlrucior.

i) Toencash the Raok giacaetee. in order o eecover the dees if any by the 5TYN, along with
milerast a3 per the provision of contrc.

vl To debar ihe Biddee/Contractor from participating in fwinre bidding processes of SJIVN, as
per provicion: of “CGrudelines on Bating of Buziness Dealings™ (Anncx-A), which may be
further cxtended at the diseretion of the STW,

w1} To tecower all sums: paid 1n vielation of thiz Paet by Bidder(s) A ontraciot(s) 1o any
middlemnn or agenl or broker with s view 1o securing the conlract

vipIn coges where imevooable Tetlers of Credit have been recetved in respecl ol any contract
signed by the ST with the Bidder! Contractor, the sane still oot be opsoaed/operaled.

vill} Feefeilure of Pertarmance Security in case of a decision by the SI1VHN o forfeit the
sine W ioot assipnine amy tedson for imposine sanction o violation ol this Mact.

5.2 The 8J¥HM will bu vntitled o tidks all v sy ol the avlods ioeitoned ol pasa 5.7 00 b (i) o
this Fact alzo an the Commission by the BidderContosctor or any one cmplowved by il or acting
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on its hehalt {whether with or withowl the knowledge of the BiddeeCantractor). of an ollence
as defined in GFR. Chapler 1X of the Indan Panal Code. 1360 or Prevention of Comruplian At
IVEE vr any orher starutc enacted for preventien of cormuption in 5% NS country.

3.3 The decizien of the SJ¥HN 10 the effect that & breach of the provisiens of this Pact has been
conunirted by the Bidder 7 Contractor shall be final and conclwiive oo the Budder {Contractor,
However, the PidderContractr can approasch the Tndepeodent Batemal Moniloo( sy appomted
for the purposes wl this Pact.

&.0 Independent External Monitor(s)

f.] The SIWM has wppeointed Independent Eriemal Mooitees) (hereinafion 1efemed 1o a8 Muonilurs)
Ior this Pact.

6.2 The task of the Monitors shall be 1o revicw independently and objectively. whether and to what
ext2nt the paries comply with the obligatons under this Facs.

6.3 The Monuors shall not be subject to maractions by the coprescntatives of the partics and
perform their funstions nevtrally and mdependently.

.4 Both the paries aceept that the komitors have the right wp access sl the documents relating o
the projestpracurement for which a complaint or issog i caised belons them, includige minules
ol meelionrs, The oghl o access cecords should only be Hmited o the extane abaoloely
necessary (1 nvesligae the ishue relaled 1o the sobyect ender contract.

B35 A s as the hanitar molices, o has ceason o believe, a vielation of this *act, e will 8o
intenm CMOCEQMD of SIVEN and request 51N to discontinue ot lake cotrective action or
o 1ak: other relevant actien. The Monitor can on this regard  submit noo-binding
recommedations. Beovond this the Mormitor has no right 10 demand from the parties that they
act ina specilic manner. refrain from action or telerate action.

.6 The Bidder s ontractor st accepts that the bMonitor has the tight w aceess without testriction,
o all Froject docamentation of the 5P ineloding that prisvided by the BidderContracoor. The
Bileler Contracier will also grant the Monior, upon his regquest and demgonstration of 2 walid
inleresl, onresineled and uneondilional access o b progect docomentotoon. The 2me 15
apphicable e Subcontractneia). The Bonitor shall be voder contraceaal obdipation to treat the
infurcmation and docwnents of the BidderContractor’Subcontmacton’s) wilh contidentiality,

6.7 The SIWN will provide to the Monior sufficient mlomuation abont all meetings ameng the
parties related to e project provided such meetinpgs could have an impoect on the conizactuzl
relations between the parlies. The parties will otfer to the Bonitor the option 1o participate in
such mectings as and when roquieed.

.4 The Monuor will submit a writien report to the CMIVCEOMD of SIWH within 30 days from
thedate of referenze o miimation to hime by the S1VMAidder and should the oceasiom snse,
wihmit propasals for comecling prohlemang sioaliemns,

% The word *bonior” would nzhude hoth singular and plural.

G910 In the event of 8 dispute botween the manapgement amid b contracir relaed e thise
contrats wers wlegoity pact 15 applicable, in case both the pactiss aggeee, they oy oy ke seale
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the dispote through mediation before the panel of IEM:z in a tme bound manber. In case the
dispute remaing narcsolved even afler mediaion by the pangl of TEMs, STV may ke further
actirn as per the lerms and conditions ol Confract, Fxapenses on dispale nesoloton shall oe
eyually shared by both the parties.

T.0 Facilitation of Investigation

To the evenl ol 8 dispute between lhe managemenl snd the confractor related o thise contracts
wiere inlegnly pact i oapplcable, joocwss hatbe e parties agree, they toay iy W seitle e dispete
thrcugh rediation bebone tie pane] of LERS moa e bound mamer. In case the dispule remgins
urresalvad even after mediation v the panel of IEMs, SIVIN may toke further action as per the
ierms And conditions of Contraet, Expenszes on dispute mesolution shall be cqually shared by baoth
the parties.

g0 1 .aw and Place nl Jurisdictpon

This Fact 15 subJect 10, e, (5 e Country) Law. The place of perfonnance
amd panschctien 35 the Registered OfTice of the 5TVN, The atbhiration clause provided i the tender
docurmenlicotract shall nut be applicable foc any issoefdispooe arising onder Inleprivy Pact.

9.0 Other Legal Actions

9.1 The gcticns stipulaed i fus Dtepeily Pact are withoul prejudics u any olher legal action that
may tollow in accordance with O provisions of the exiant law in feree reloling to any civil or
criminal proccedings.

9 2 Changes and supplements as well as tenmnination notice need o e made in writing,

Y3 1§ the Copsultant 15 a paninership or a consorum or o joinr venture, this pact muost be signed by
all paniners 4 the consomiwmjoinl yemue.

10.0  Validity

1.1 The validity of ihis Tntegrly Pact shell be from date of its signing and cxend upta 5 vears
af the camplete execoation of the contract 0 the salislacion of both the 51V and the
BidderConsullantSeller. including wamady feriod, whichever is later. Tn case BIDOTER ix
unzuwceessful, this Integrity Paet shall expine after six months feoom the date of the signiog ol the
contract or six months from the date of opening of price bids, whichever iz earlier.

102 Should ong or several provisions of this Pact tuen oue to be invalid, the cemainder of this
Pact shall remain valul In this case, the partizs wilt stoeec o come e an agreemand 1o their
arginal indentimn.

1l Narties hereby sigpo this otepnty Pactal L 0m
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SIVN ‘ o VA e,

tame: Manish Kumal‘ F.':mth \a "'.:-,'.: g 7
Desipnation:  Dhy [T!n-:r,al M&q.g.gm{'["&?}
REIA

Place: Menw Dl

Dale: . 4 = i_\.

{] Bogy .,J W pd
ey
2 ASHTILY Yhbav
(/o LTUN

CAuthornscd Forsong

(Name ol the Peram)
Cresienation

Winesy1 ..

Cwanme annd :nidreqs]n

(Mame and address)
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1.0

240

2.1

x3

2.4

2.5

2.0

Guidelines on Banning of Business Dealings

Introduslion

SV deals wilh Ageneies viz. parties! contrmelons! supphers! bidders, whoe are expected
to adept cthics of highest standards and a vere high depree of integriee. conumiments and
sipcerily lvwanls the work woderlaken. Ir s ool i e iotetest of STYN w0 deal with
Agencics whe commit deception. fraud or atwer resconduct 1n the tendenng process,

Fince banming of business dealings mvalves civil consequences for an Agcncy concerned, it
i invumbent that adequate opportunity af hearing i= provided and the explanation, if
tendered. 15 considered before passing any ordzr m this regard keeping in view the facts and
ciecunstances of the casc.

Scope

The Tulucmatien fur Ridders? [nstruction to Bidders and cven the General Conditions of
Conlrael (GCC) o SIVN geoerally provide that SJ% N shall have the rights 1o remove from
list of approved suppliers ¢ conteacters oF 0 ban business dealings T any Ayency has been
tound to bave comunitted miscondwet or frand or anything upethicel not expeeted Trom a
Treputed contTachor,

The procedure of {1} Feowoval of Agoney frim the 1ast ol approved suppliees £ contraclons;
{i1) Snzpcnsion and (1) Banning «f Bosiness Tealing with Agencies, has bean lald doswno
in these gupdelimes,

These guidelines shall-apply o all the Projects’ Power Staticis’ Kepgional Olfices’ Lialson
DMees ol BT mcludiog ils subsidianes and 1¥s.

It 35 clarilied tht these guidehnes do not deal with the poor perfonmance of the contractovs!
Apencias,

The hanning shall e with prospective effec e furure business dealings,

Definitions

Inn 1hese Guldelings, unless the context othereise regqmmes:

i}

L)

Lii]

Ef% lor

“Party ¢ Contractor / Sapplicr ¢ Bidders™ shall mean und include a public lioated cornpany
ar a private limiled company, a peint Venlore, Coonsortion. HUE, a fom whether eegistored or
nol, an individual, eooperative society or an associalion of & gZroup ot persons engaged o any
soomnerce, rade, industry, ote. “larfy 7 Contractor’ Supplicr / Bidder” i the context of these
owdelines iz indicaled as *Acchoy,

“Umnir™ shall mean the Project’ Power Staliond Reglonal D1Dee Timson OMce.,
“Competent Anthority™ and * Appellade Authonéy® shall mean the follod g
The concerned Thirector shall be the 'Competert Awlhorine” tor the pupose of these
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gailelines,
ML shall be the A ppellate Authorite® i respest of such cases.

1wl “lovestigating Committee™ shall mean any (HOverCommilee appointed by Compeicni
Auharity 13 condoct investigation.

1 “List of approved Agencies viz Parhes J Contractors [ Suppliers’Bidders chall mean e
CHlcer Commillee appointed by Competan Authocty to condust investigation.

4.0 Initiation of Banmning / Suipension

Action {or banning fSsuspension business dealings withe any Agency shall De badtivled by
lhe deparimenti cesponsible for iovitatiion of bids after nciicing the imepularities oc
mizcunduct on e par of Asxency concerned. Bezides the concemed depattment, Vigilance
Depautnient of ¢ach Unit’ Corporate Y igilanee may also be competent o initisuesuch action,

S0 Suspensinn of Business Dealingy.

51 I the vondoct of oy Agency dealing with S1WN iz wnder wrvestigation, the Compeenc
Authority mayr consider whether the allegations (under investigation) arc of 3 scrious nanne
and whether pending myestigalion, it would be advizsable (o continue business deahing with
the Agency. If the Competent authonty, afer consideranon of the malier meluding the
recommendation of the Investigating Conumttes, 1 anyv, degides that it weald me be inthe
intercsl 1o continue business dealings pending onvestigalion, 1 mey fospend  business
tlealngs with the Agency. The arder of sospension woald operate for a period oot oo
than xix months and may be comomunicated o the Agency as alse to the Inovestipatmg
Commaties. The Investigating Cormprittes wuay ensure that their mvestigationis conpletad
and whole pracess of Hral order is over within such period. Hewever, iF investigations Hre
nol completed in s months limé, the Competent Aunthoriy may ¢xiend the penod aof
guspension by another thece months, dunng which penod the imvestiganons most he
completed.

LA
=d

.2 The order of suspension shall be commmunicatsd w o all Depanments] Hesds of 3TN
(mmeliding 1its subzidianes and JVs) and Heads ol the Units. Dunng the period ad
sispenston, no husiness dealing may be held with the &gency.

A% Ax faroas possible, the exigting comiracis] with the Agency may continue onless fhe

Compelent Aathority, baving repard br the circurmstanees of e case. decudes otherwise.

54 T the Apency concemned asks for detaled reasons ol sospension, (he Apency may he

infyrmed  [hol s conduct 5 under nvestigation. o ool pecessary to enter mto

comespondence or argument with the Agency at thiz siage.

55 Iis not necessary o give any show-canse nolice or personal hearing to the Agency betors
Hauing the ardet of suspetision.
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0.4}

il

50

f.1

n

i)

{=round on which Banning of Business Dealings can be initiated:

If the securily consideration, including questions of Tovalty af the Ageneyr 1o 81VN so
WALrams:

If the director sonmer of the Ageocy, propretar or pacner af the Tim, i« convicted by o
Cowtt of Law for offences involviong mwral Wwepituds in celativn it business dealings wilh
the Governunent or any other public sector enterprizes, dueing the last three years

If businezs dealings with the Ageocy have been banoed by the Deparlmenl of Power.
Giovernment of India and the relevant goverrunent department of STVM s Countey.

If the Ageney has resoned (o corrupt, fraudulent practices including misrepressniation of
Fucis;

If the Apency vses inimidation £ threatening or brings ondue ouside pressute on SIS or
s oIl for sceeprancs ! performances of ths job und<r the contact;

I the Apency misuses the prenmses ot factluies of SV, Farcefully accupies or damages
RIS properties  mchading lemd, water resourees, forcsts S ecs of tampers with
docurnentgirecords ae. (Mole: The exumples given sbove are only ilusteative and net
exhavative. The Competent Authority may decide 1o ban business dealing for any good and
sufticent reason.

Eanning of Business Dealings

A idecision o ban business dealings with any Agency shall apply througheal STV
toncluclion i1ts subsidianes Wy

There will he an Invesligating Commitze copsisting of officers not below the cank of
ACGKDHOM (oo Indenting: Thivision, Finsnee, Taw and Contracis Member  frem
departnent cesponsible for invilation of Bids shall ke dhe convenet of the commitiee. The
finetions of the cormunities shall, inter-ulia inelulde:

poma-facic case for bamung cxiss, iF not, sead back the case 10 the Cornpetent Autbuorly .
To recommend for s al show-canse notice 16 the Agency by the concatned wnit'division
as per clavse #1.

u1) To examine the reply to show.cause notice and call the Apency lor persomal hearng, if

reegpuiresl.

v} Te submil tinal recommendations to the Competent Awtharity for banning or otherwize,

Removal from List of Approved Agencics - Suppliersf Contractors, £k

1f the Compstont Authonty decid=ss that the chaege apainst the Agency 15 ol a minor nelure,
1L may issue a show-case nolice 35 to why the name of the Agency should nor be rennved
trom the List of appooved Agencics - Supplicrs £ Connactors, cic,
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The eltect of such an order would e that the Ageney wonld not be gualilied Tor competing
in e Tender Enquines or Limided Tender Enguunes Wl the penod roentioméd m the
older.

Past performance o the Apeocy raay be token into account while processing approval of the
Compeient Aotbocidy foc awand of the contrast.

Shw—zose Midkoe

In cise where the Competonr Authonity decides that achion against s Agency = called for,
& Shoye-caus2 notice has to be issoed 1o the Aponey, Swnement comtanming the impatslon of
tnissonduct or mishebavior may be pppended 4y the show-canse ootice and the Apency
should be asked 12 submit within 15 days 3 wrillen stelemenlt in s delense.

If the Apchcy wquests for inspection of any relevanl document i pedsession ol 51V
noeeseary facilivy for inspection of docurnents road be provided.

The Competent Authoerily mey contuler and pass an appropriate speaking order:
w]  Tor edooerating the Apeney if the chaeges are not established:
L1 Forremoving the Agency from the list of approved Suppliers £ Conlaclors, ste.

cl For banning the hozingsy dealing with e Agency.

[F 1 deades 1o ban business deabings. the period for winch the ban somid be operative may
Fr= menlicmesd.

Appeal againsl the Declsion of the Com petent Authority

The Apency mayv te an appeal aganst the ovder of the Competent Authonty banming
tusiness dealing atc. T2 appeal shall be filed o Appellate Authoniy. Such an appeal shall
be proforred within one monmth from the date of recoipt of the order hanning business
dealwg, etc.

Appellate Authomty would consider the appeal and pass appropriate order which shall be
communicated 1o the Ageney g5 well 35 the Competent Authonny.

Circulation of the names of Agencies wilh whom Business Deallngs have been banned

The concermned ooit shall fonward the pome and details of the Apency (icsy banned to
TT& SE Divisien of SNV s Corporate Office for displaving the same on STV wehsate,

Comerate Coobzets Departrend shalb also forward the name and detaits of the Agency{ies)
banned to the Ministry of Power. Gol beaides forwarding the: name and detanls e the
controctsprocuremend proup of alk CPS1s of power seclor.
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FORM OF DECLARATION OF ELIGIBILLITY
UNBERTAKING

17 We, b, wAMame of Bidder) hereby cenafy that T we have not
been bmmed de Ilsted hlacl-. hste-d ’dcham‘d from bwsiness Wy any PSUN S Govl. Department
durtng last 03 {threey vears on the grounds menlionesd In para & of Ouidelines an banning of
Business dealing (Anmmex-A 1 Pre-Contract Integrity Pact) of Temder Document.

(Seal & signature of the Bidder)

RE5 for zclection of HED for sctting wp of1500 MW ISTS—connested Hybrid Power
Projects w lndia under THEE (TS Noa: SIVNAOC- DelhifELAZ024) TYBRID-2
TEC: SNV -2024-THOOKKEH
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Format 7.13
FORMAT FOR SUBMISSION OF FINANCIAL BID

(The Covering Letter should be submitted on the Letter Head of the Bidding Company/ Lead
Member of Consortium)

Ref.No. .......... Datel ..............

Fax#:
E-mail address#

To

SIVN Limited

6th Floor, Plate-B, NBCC Office Block

Tower-1 ,East Kidwai Nagar, New Delhi -110 023

Sub:  Responseto RfSNo............ dated................ for........... .

Dear Sir/ Madam,

We,....ooooiiie i (Insert Name of the Bidder) enclose herewith the Financial Proposal for
selection of my/ our firm for................... number of Project(s) for a cumulative capacity
of......... MW in India as Bidder for the above.

I/We agree that this offer shall remain valid for a period of 12 months from the due date of
submission of the response to RfS and such further period as may be mutually agreed upon.

Datedthe................ _dayof....... ,20....

Name, Designation, Seal and Signature of Authorized Person in whose name
Power of Attorney/ Board Resolution/ Declaration

Notes:
1) For each substation identified, there can be only one tariff for all the projects applied for. If
the bidder quotes two tariffs or combination thereof for the projects for a single substation,
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then the bid shall be considered as non- responsive.

2) If the bidder submits the financial bid in the Electronic Form at ETS portal not in line with the
instructions mentioned therein, then the bid shall be considered as non- responsive.

3) Tariff requirement shall be quoted as a fixed amount in Indian Rupees only. Conditional
proposal shall be summarily rejected.

4) In the event of any discrepancy between the values entered in figures and in words, the
values entered in words shall be considered.

5) Tariff should be in Indian Rupee up to two decimal places only
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Format 7.14

PRELIMINARY ESTIMATE OF COST OF HYBRID PROJECT COMPLEMENTED
Bid Capacity / Contracted Capacity: ............. MW

Location: .,

Bidder may use any format to provide the break-up.

Dated the.............. day of........... ,20....

Thanking you,
Weremain,

Y ours faithfully,

Name, Designation, Seal and Signature of Authorized Person in whose name Power of
Attorney/ Board Resolution/ Declaration.
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Annexure-A

TECHNICAL PARAMETER OF PV MODULE AND VARIOUS OTHER

COMPONENTS FOR USE IN GRID CONNECTED SOLAR POWER PLANTS

The Project selected under the RfS shall strictly adhere to the Centra Electricity Authority
(Technical Standards for Connectivity to the Grid) Regulations, 2007, as amended vide the Central
Electricity Authority (Technical Standards for Connectivity to the Grid) (Amendment)Regulations,
2019, and subsequent amendments and clarifications.

All components of the PV plant shall be in accordance with technical specifications given in
relevant 1S/ |IEC Standards. The design and commissioning also shal be as per latest IS IEC
standards. The following are some of the technical measuresrequired to ensure quality of the
major components used in grid connected solar power Projects.

1. SPV MODULES

a. The SPV modules used in the grid solar power Projects must qualify to the latest
edition of any of the following IEC PV module qualification test or equivalent BIS

standards.

Crystalline Silicon Solar Cell Modules

Thin Film Modules
Concentrator PV modules

IEC 61215
IEC 61646
IEC 62108

b. In addition, SPV modules must qualify to IEC 61730 for safety qualification testing at
1000 V DC or higher. The modules to be used in a highly corrosive atmosphere
throughout their lifetime must qualify to IEC 61701

2. POWER CONDITIONERS/ INVERTERS

The Power Conditionersg/Inverters of the SPV power plants must conform to the latest edition
of 1EC/ equivalent Indian Standards as specified below:

Efficiency Measurements

IEC 61683

Environmental Testing

|EC 60068-2/ IEC 62093

Electromagnetic Compatibility (EMC)

IEC 61000-6-2, IEC 61000-6-4 & other
relevant parts of IEC 61000

Electrical Safety

IEC 62103/ 62109-1& 2

Anti-lslanding Protection

|[EEE1547/1EC 62116/ UL 1741 or equivalent
BIS Standards

3. OTHER SUB-SYSTEMS/ COMPONENTS

Other subsystems/ components used in the SPV Power Plants (Cables, Connectors, Junction
Boxes, Surge Protection Devices etc.) must also conform to the relevant international/national
Standards for Electrical Safety besides that for Quality required for ensuring Expected Service
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Life and Weather Resistance. It is recommended that the Cables of 600-1800 Volts DC for
outdoor installations should comply with the BS EN 50618:2014/2pfg 1169/08.2007 for
service life expectancy of 25 years.

4. AUTHORIZED TEST CENTRES

The PV modules/ Power Conditioners deployed in the Power Plants must have valid test
certificates for their qualification as per above specified IEC/ BIS Standards by one of the
NABL Accredited Test Centres in India. In case of module types like Thin Film and CPV/
equipment for which such Test facilities may not exist in India at present, test certificates from
reputed ILAC Member body accredited Labs abroad will be acceptable.

5. WARRANTY

e PV modules used in grid connected solar power plants must be warranted for peak output
wattage, which should not be less than 90% at the end of 10 years and 80% at the end of
25 years.

e Themodules shall be warranted for at least 10 years for failures due to material defects
and workmangship.

e Themechanical structures, electrical works and overall workmanship of the grid solar
power plants must be warranted for aminimum of 5 years.

e Thelnverters PCUs installed in the solar power plant must have a warranty for 5 years.

6. IDENTIFICATION AND TRACEABILITY

Each PV module used in any solar power Project must use a RF identification tag. The
following information must be mentioned in the RFID used on each module (This can be inside
or outside the laminate, but must be able to withstand harsh environmental conditions):

i) Name of the manufacturer of PV Module

i) Name of the Manufacturer of Solar cells

iii) Month and year of the manufacture (separately for solar cells and module)

iv) Country of origin (separately for solar cells and module)

v) |-V curve for the module at Standard Test Condition (1000 W/m2, AM 1.5, 250C)

vi) Wattage, Im, Vm and FF for the module

vii) Unique Serial No. and Model No. of the module

viii) Date and year of obtaining IEC PV module qualification certificate

iX) Name of the test lab issuing IEC certificate

x) Other relevant information on traceability of solar cells and module as per 1SO 9000

Site owners would be required to maintain accessibility to thelist of Module IDs along with the
above parametric data for each module.

7. PERFORMANCE MONITORING

All grid solar PV power projects must install necessary equipment to continuously measure
solar radiation, ambient temperature, wind speed and other weather parameters and
simultaneously measure the generation of DC power as well as AC power generated from
the plant. They will be required to submit this data to Procurer and MNRE or any other
designated agency on line and/or through a report on regular basis every month for the entire
duration of PPA. In this regard they shall mandatorily also grant access to Procurer and MNRE
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or any other designated agency to the remote monitoring portal of the power plants on a
24X7 basis.

8. SAFE DISPOSAL OF SOLAR PV MODULES

The developers will comply with the requirements under Hazardous & other Waste
(Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016, as amended from time to time, as
applicable. They will also ensure that all Solar PV modules and ESS components, if any, from
their plant after their ‘end of life’ (when they become defective/ non-operational/
nonrepairable) are disposed of in accordance with the “e- waste (Management and Handling)
Rules, 2011” notified by the Government and as revised and amended from time to time.

9. CAPACITY OF SOLAR PV PROJECTS

1) The rated capacity to be installed shall be considered as minimum DC Arrays Capacity
and maximum AC Capacity at the delivery point as described below:

Solar PV Minimum DC Arrays| ,,. . Maximum AC
Sr. NO. | project Capacity | Capacity to be Minimum Reted Capacity Limit at
Bid installed Inverter Capacity Delivery point
1 50 MW 50 MW 50 MW 50 MW

Higher DC capacity arrays so as to achieve AC capacity limit as mentioned above for
scheduling at the delivery point in compliance to Article 4.4 “Right to Contracted
Capacity& Energy” of the PPA is allowed.

ii) For commissioning of the Project, capacity of DC arrays instaled shall be considered in

multiple of 10 MW per unit. In case of part commissioning of 50 MW Project, each unit
shall be required to have minimum 10 MW DC Arrays Capacity be installed.

iii) Provisions of Article 4.6.1 of the PPA with HPD shall apply for the capacity not
commissioned by the scheduled commissioning date.

iv) If generation a any time exceeds the maximum permissible AC capacity at delivery
point, the excess generation during that period shall not be considered under PPA.
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A X— A2
COMMISSIONING PROCEDURE

Commissioning Procedure for the Project selected under the RfS shall be intimated by SIVN in

due course of time.
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Annexure - B

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONSTO BIDDERSFOR eTENDERING AND REVERSE
AUCTION

GENERAL

The Special Instructions (for e-Tendering) supplement ‘Instructions to Bidders’, as given in these
RfS Documents. Submission of Online Bidsis mandatory for this RfS.

e-Tendering is a new methodology for conducting Public Procurement in a transparent and secured
manner. Now, the Government of India has made e-Tendering mandatory. Suppliers/ Vendors will
be the biggest beneficiaries of this new system of procurement. For conducting electronic
tendering, SIVN Limited (SJVNI) has adopted a secured and user friendly e-tender system
enabling bidders to Search, View, Download tender document(s) directly from the e-tendering
portal of M/s Electronic Tender.com (India) Pvt. Limited https.//www.bharat-
electronictender.com through ISN-ETS. This portal is based on the world’s most ‘secure’ and
‘user friendly’ software from Electronic Tender®. A portal built using Electronic Tender’s software
isaso referred to as Electronic Tender System® (ETS).

Benefits to Suppliers are outlined on the Home-page of the portal.

INSTRUCTIONS

Tender Bidding Methodology:

Sealed Bid System

Single Stage Two Envelope

Auction

The seadled bid system would be followed by an ‘e-Reverse Auction’

Broad Outline of Activitiesfrom Bidder’s Perspective:

1) ProcureaClass Il Digital Signing Certificate (DSC).

2) Register on Electronic Tender System® (ETS)

3) Create Marketing Authorities (MAS), Users and assign roles on ETS. It is mandatory to create
a least one MA

4) View Notice Inviting Tender (NIT) on ETS

5) For thistender -- Assign Tender Search Code (TSC) toaMA

6) Download Official Copy of Tender Documents from ETS. Note: Official copy of Tender
Documents is distinct from downloading ‘Free Copy of Tender Documents’. To participate in
atender, it ismandatory to procure official copy of Tender Documents for that tender.

7) Clarification to Tender Documentson ETS
a. Query to SIVN (Optional)
b. View response to queries posted by SIVN
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8) Bid-Submissionon ETS
9) Respond to SIVN Post-TOE queries
10) Participate in e-Reverse Auction if invited

For participating in this tender online, the following instructions are to be read carefully. These
instructions are supplemented with more detailed guidelines on the relevant screens of the ETS.

Digital Certificates

For integrity of data and authenticity/ non-repudiation of electronic records, and to be compliant
with IT Act 2000, it is necessary for each user to have a Digital Certificate (DC), also referred to as
Digital Signature Certificate (DSC), of Class I, issued by a Certifying Authority (CA) licensed by
Controller of Certifying Authorities (CCA) [referhttp:/mwww.cca.gov.in].

Registration

To use the Electronic Tender® portal https.//www.bharat-el ectronictender.com, vendors need to
register on the portal. Registration of each organization is to be done by one of its senior persons
who will be the main person coordinating for the e-tendering activities. In ETS terminology, this
person will be referred to as the Super User (SU) of that organization. For further details, please
visit the website/ portal, and click on the ‘Supplier Organization’ link under ‘Registration’ (on
the Home Page), and follow further instructions as given on the site. Pay Annual Registration Fee
as applicable.

After successful submission of Registration details and payment of Annual Registration Fee, please
contact ISN-ETS Helpdesk (as given below), to get your registration accepted/ activated.

Important Note:

1) Interested bidders have to download official copy of the RfS & other documents after login
into the etendering Porta of ISN-ETS https.//www.bharat- electronictender.com. If the
official copy of the documents is not downloaded from e- tendering Portal of ISN-ETS within
the specified period of downloading of RfS and other documents, bidder will not be able to
participate in the tender.

2) To minimize teething problems during the use of ETS (including the Registration process), it
is recommended that the user should peruse the instructions given under ‘ETS User-
Guidance Centre’ located on ETS Home Page, including instructions for timely registration
on ETS. The instructions relating to ‘Essential Computer Security Settings for Use of ETS
and ‘Important Functionality Checks’ should be especially taken into cognizance.

Please note that even after acceptance of your registration by the Service Provider, to respond to a
tender you will also require time to complete activities related to your organization, such as
creation of users, assigning roles to them, etc.

ISN-ETS/ Helpdesk |
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Customer Support: +91-124-4229071, 4229072

Telephone/ Maobile ( From 1000 HRS to 1800 HRS on all Working Days i.e.
Monday toFriday except Gover nment Holidays)
Email-1D Support@isn-ets.com [Please mark CC.

support@el ectroni ctender .com]

Some Bidding Related Information for this Tender (Sealed Bid)
The entire bid-submission would be online on ETS (unless specified for Offline Submissions).
Broad outline of submissions are as follows:

» Submission of Bid-Parts
= Envelope | (Technical-Bid)
= Envelopell (Financial-Bid)
» Submission of digitally signed copy of Tender Documents/ Addendum

In addition to the above, the bidders are required to submit certain documents physicaly offline
also as per Clause 3.14.1 of the RfS, failing which the technical bids will not be opened.

Note: The Bidder should also upload the scanned copies of all the above mentioned original
documents as Bid-Annexures during Online Bid-Submission.

Internet Connectivity

If bidders are unable to access ISN-ETS’s e-tender portal or Bid Documents, the bidders may
please check whether they are using proxy to connect to internet or their PC is behind any firewall
and may contact their system administrator to enable connectivity. Please note that Port SSL/ 443
should be enabled on proxy/firewall for HTTPS connectivity. Dia-up/ Broad and internet
connectivity without Proxy settings is another option.

SPECIAL NOTE ON SECURITY AND TRANSPARENCY OF BIDS

Security related functionality has been rigorously implemented in ETS in a multidimensional
manner. Starting with 'Acceptance of Registration by the Service Provider', provision for security
has been made at various stages in Electronic Tender’s software. Specifically, for Bid Submission,
some security related aspects are outlined below:

As part of the Electronic Encrypted® functionaity, the contents of both the ‘Electronic
Forms® and the ‘Main-Bid’ are securely encrypted using a Pass-Phrase created by the Bidder
himself. Unlike a ‘password’, a Pass-Phrase can be a multi-word sentence with spaces between
words (e.g. | love this World). A Pass-Phraseis easier to remember, and more difficult to break. It
is mandatory that a separate Pass-Phrase be created for each Bid-Part. This method of bid-
encryption does not have the security and data-integrity related vulnerabilities which are inherent
in e-tendering systems which use Public-Key of the specified officer of a Buyer organization for
bid-encryption. Bid-encryption in ETS is such that the Bids cannot be decrypted before the
Public Online Tender Opening Event (TOE), even if there is connivance between the concerned
tender-opening officers of the Buyer organization and the personnel of e-tendering service
provider.
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CAUTION: All bidders must fill Electronic Forms® for each bid-part sincerely and carefully, and
avoid any discrepancy between information given in the Electronic Forms® and the corresponding
Main-Bid. For transparency, the information submitted by a bidder in the Electronic Forms® is
made available to other bidders during the Online Public TOE. If it is found during the Online
Public TOE that a bidder has not filled in the complete information inthe Electronic Forms®, the
TOE officer may make available for downloading the corresponding Main-Bid of that bidder at
the risk of the bidder. If variation is noted between the information contained in the

Electronic Forms® and the ‘Mai n-Bid’, the contents of the Electronic Forms® shall prevail.

In case of any discrepancy between the values mentioned in figures and in words, the value
mentioned in words will prevail.

The bidder shall make sure that the Pass-Phrase to decrypt the relevant Bid-Part is
submitted into the ‘Time Locked Electronic Key Box (EKB)’ after the deadline of Bid
Submission, and before the commencement of the Online TOE of Technical Bid. The process
of submission of this Pass-Phrase in the ‘Time Locked Electronic Key Box’ is done ina secure
manner by first encrypting this Pass-Phrase with the designated keys provided by SIVN.

Additionally, the bidder shall make sure that the Pass-Phrase to decrypt the relevant Bid-Part is
submitted to SIVN in a sedled envelope before the start date and time of the Tender Opening
Event (TOE).

There is an additional protection with SSL Encryption during transit from the client-end
computer of a Supplier organization to the e-Tendering Server/ Portal

PUBLIC ONLINE TENDER OPENING EVENT (TOE)

ETS offers a unique facility for ‘Public Online Tender Opening Event (TOE)’. Tender Opening
Officers, as well as, authorized representatives of bidders can simultaneously attend the Public
Online Tender Opening Event (TOE) from the comfort of their offices.

Alternatively, one/ two duly authorized representative(s) of bidders (i.e, Supplier
organization) are requested to carry a Laptop with Wireless Internet Connectivity, if they wish to
come to SIVN’s office for the Public Online TOE, if applicable for the RfS.

Every lega requirement for a transparent and secure ‘Public Online Tender Opening Event
(TOE)’, including digital counter-signing of each opened bid by the authorized TOE- officer(s) in
the simultaneous online presence of the participating bidders’ representatives, has been
implemented on ETS.

As soon as a Bid is decrypted with the corresponding ‘Pass-Phrase’ as submitted by the bidder
himself during the TOE itself, or as per alternative methods prescribed in the Tender Documents,
salient points of the Bids (as identified by the Buyer organization) are simultaneously made
available for downloading by all participating bidders. The tedium of taking notes during a manual
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‘Tender Opening Event’ is therefore replaced with this superior and convenient form of ‘Public
Online Tender Opening Event (TOE)’.

ETS has a unique facility of ‘Online Comparison Chart” which is dynamically updated as each
online bid is opened. The format of the chart is based on inputs provided by the Buyer for each
Bid-Part of a tender. The information in the Comparison Chart is based on the data submitted by
the Bidders. A detailled Technica and/ or Financial Comparison Chart enhances Transparency.
Detailed instructions are given on relevant screens.

ETS has a unique facility of a detailed report titled ‘Minutes of Online Tender Opening Event
(TOE)’ covering al important activities of the ‘Online Tender Opening Event (TOE)’. This is
available to all participating bidders for ‘Viewing/ Downloading’, as per the NIT configured by
the bidding agency.

There are many more facilities and features on ETS. For a particular tender, the screens
viewed by a Supplier will depend upon the options selected by the concerned Buyer.

OTHER INSTRUCTIONS

For further instructions, the vendor should visit the home-page of the portal hitps://www.bharat-
electronictender.com, and go to the User-Guidance Center

The help information provided through ‘ETS User-Guidance Center’ is available in three
categories — Users intending to Register/ First-Time Users, Logged-in users of Buyer
organizations, and Logged-in users of Supplier organizations. Various links (including links for
User Manuals) are provided under each of the three categories.

Important Note: It is strongly recommended that al authorized users of Supplier organizations
should thoroughly peruse the information provided under the relevant links, and take appropriate
action. This will prevent hiccups, and minimize teething problems during the use of ETS.

SEVEN CRITICAL DO’S AND DON’T SFOR BIDDERS

Specifically, for Supplier organizations, the following 'SEVEN KEY INSTRUCTIONS for
BIDDERS must be assiduously adhered to:

1) Obtain individual Digital Signing Certificate (DSC or DC) of Class Il well in advance of
your tender submission deadline on ETS.

2) Register your organization on ETS well in advance of the important deadlines for your first
tender on ETS viz ‘Date and Time of Closure of Procurement of Tender Documents’ and ‘L ast
Date and Time of Receipt of Bids’. Please note that even after acceptance of your registration
by the Service Provider, to respond to a tender you will also require time to complete activities
related to your organization, such as creation of -- Marketing Authority (MA) [ie a department
within the Supplier/ Bidder Organization responsible for responding to tenders|, users for one
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or more such MAs, assigning roles to them, etc. It is mandatory to create at least one MA. This
unique feature of creating an MA enhances security and accountability within the Supplier/
Bidder Organization

3) Get your organization's concerned executives trained on ETS well in advance of your first
tender submission deadline on ETS.

4) For responding to any particular tender, the tender (i.e. its Tender Search Code or TSC) has to
be assigned to an MA. Further, an ‘Official Copy of Tender Documents’ should be procured/
downloaded before the expiry of Date and Time of Closure of Procurement of Tender
Documents. Note: Official copy of Tender Documents is distinct from downloading ‘Free
Copy of Tender Documents’. Officia copy of Tender Documents is the equivaent of
procuring physical copy of Tender Documents with official receipt in thepaper-based manual
tendering system.

5) Submit your bids well in advance of tender submission deadline on ETS (There could be last
minute problems due to internet timeout, breakdown, etc.)

Note: Bid-submission in ETS can consist of submission of multiple bid- components, which
vary depending upon the situation and requirements of the Buyer. Successful receipt of abid in
an etendering scenario takes place if al the required bid- components are successfully
‘received and validated’ in the system (ETS) within the scheduled date and time of closure of
bidding (On some ETS screens, this is also referred to as ‘Last Date and Time of Receipt of
Bids’). ETS/ Service Provider is not responsible for what happens at an end-user’s end, or
while a submission made by an end-user is in transit, until the submission is successfully
‘received and vaidated’ in ETS. When a bid-component receipt and validation is successful, it
is recorded in the ETS Audit Traill Report, which is generated by ETS. In case of any
uncertainty, the application audit trail generated by ETS (ETS Audit Trail Report) shal be the
final record/evidence for reference regarding the ‘successful bid receipt’.

6) It is the responsibility of each bidder to remember and securely store the Pass-Phrase for
each Bid-Part submitted by that bidder. In the event of a bidder forgetting the Pass-Phrase
before the expiry of deadline for Bid-Submission, facility is provided to the bidder to ‘Annul
Previous Submission’ from the Bid- Submission Overview page and start afresh with new
Pass-Phrase(s) and if the bids are not opened with the pass-phrase submitted by bidder, SIVN
may ask for re-submission/ clarification for correct pass-phrase. If bidder fails to submit
correct pass- phrase immediately as requested by SIVN, the Bid Processing Fee and Document
Fee, if applicable, shall be forfeited and bid shall not be opened, and EMD shall be refunded.
No request on this account shall be entertained by SIVN.

7) ETS will make your bid available for opening during the Online Public Tender Opening
Event (TOE) ‘ONLY IF’ the status pertaining Overal Bid-Submission is ‘COMPLETE’. For
the purpose of record, the bidder can generate and save a copy of ‘Final Submission Receipt’.
This receipt can be generated from 'Bid- Submission Overview Page only if the status
pertaining overall Bid-Submission’is ‘COMPLETE’

NOTE:
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While the first three instructions mentioned above are especially relevant to first-time users of
ETS the fourth, fifth, sixth and seventh instructions are relevant at all times.

ADDITIONAL DOs AND DON’Ts FOR BIDDERS PARTICIPATING IN eREVERSE
AUCTION

1) Get your organization's concerned executives trained for e-Reverse Auction related processes
on ETS well in advance of the start of e-Reverse Auction.

2) For responding to any particular e-Reverse Auction, the e-Reverse Auction (i.e. its Reverse
Auction Search Code or RASC) has to be assigned to an MA.

3) It is important for each bidder to thoroughly read the ‘rules and related criterion’ for thee-
Reverse Auction as defined by the Buyer organization.

4) It is important to digitally-sign your ‘Final bid’ after the end of e-Reverse Auction bidding
event.

5) Pay the ETS Bidding-Fee for e-Reverse Auction well in advance of the start of e- Reverse
Auction Bidding Event.

Note: To participate in e-Reverse Auction, the ETS Bidding-Fee for e-Reverse Auction should
be paid before the ‘Date and Time of Start of Reverse-Auction’. In case ETS Bidding-Fee for
e-Reverse Auction is sent offline to the Auctioneer or ETS Service Provider, it isimportant for
the bidder to ensure that the Auctioneer/ ETS Service Provider has received the ETS Bidding-
Feefor e-Reverse Auction and aso entered the related detailsin ETS.

When the Auctioneer/ ETS Service Provider enters the details, the bidder should receive an e-
mail acknowledgement. If ETS Bidding-Fee for e-Reverse Auction status of the bidder is
not updated as outlined above, the bidder would not be able to participate in the Auction.

6) During an e-auction, it is recommended that a bidder submits a bid well before the scheduled
time of ‘Date and Time of Closure of Reverse-Auction’. Submission of a bid near the closing
time of an auction may result in failure due to any of the various factors at that instant, such as
— dow internet speed at the bidder’s end, slow running of computer at bidder’s end,
nervousness of the bidder in the last few seconds, etc. This could lead to delay in submission of
data from the bidder’s computer to the server. Even if the delay is of afraction of second after
the scheduled closing time, it will result in failure of bid submission. Further, please note that a
bid can be submitted even if the bidding-page has not been refreshed manually, or otherwise
depending on the conditions of the e-auction.

Note: Successful receipt of Bid in an e-auction scenario takes place if the bid is successfully
‘received and vaidated’ in the system (ETS) within the scheduled date and time of closure of
bidding (On some ETS screens, this is also referred to as ‘Date and Time of Closure of
Reverse-Auction’, or Forward-Auction, as the case may be). End Users shall be solely
responsible for ensuring timely submission of their respective bids such that the bids are
successfully received in ETS as stated above. ETS/ Service Provider is not responsible for
what happens at an end-user’s end, or while a submission made by an end-user is in
transit, until the submission is successfully ‘received and validated’ in ETS. When a bid is
successfully ‘received and validated’, it is recorded in the ETS Audit Trall Report, which is
generated by ETS. In case of any uncertainty, the application audit trail generated by ETS (ETS
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7)

8)

9)

Audit Trail Report) shall be the final record/evidence for reference regarding the ‘successful
bid receipt’.

It is important to digitally-sign your ‘Fina bid’ after the end of e-Reverse Auction bidding
event.

Minimum Requirements at Bidder’s End Computer System having configuration with
minimum Windows 7 or above, and Broadband connectivity Microsoft Internet Explorer 7.0 or
above, or Edge with Internet Explorer mode Digital Certificate(s).

Vendors Training Program

One day online training (10:00 to 17:00) is provided by ISN-ETS. Training is optional. In case,
any bidder is interested, he may send a request to support@isn- ets.com. Vendors are requested
to arrange their own Laptop, Digital Certificate and Wireless Connectivity to Internet.

Vendors Training Charges (Per Participant): Rs. 5,000/- (plus GST @ 18.00 %) or as charged
by ISN-ETS.

TERMS & CONDITIONS OF REVERSE AUCTION

After opening of Financia bids and short-listing of bidders based on the tariff and total capacity of
project of qualified Project(s), SIVN shall resort to “REVERSE AUCTION PROCEDURE”.
Reverse Auction shall be conducted as per methodology specified in Section-5 and other
provisions of Reverse Auction in RfS Documents and their subsequent Addenda/ Amendments/
Clarifications. Bidders in their own interest, are advised to go through the documents in entirety.
The Terms & Conditions and Business Rules mentioned hereunder are in brief and may not give
completer explanations. Further these are supplementary in nature.

1)
2)

3)

4)
5)

6)

7)
8)

9)

Bidders shall ensure online submission of their ‘Bid Price’ within the auction period.

Bidders shall ensure to take al necessary training and assistance before commencement
of reverse auction to the interested bidders on chargeable basis to be paid directly to ISN-ETS.
Business rules for Reverse Auction like event date, time, bid decrement, extension etc. shall be
as per the business rules, enumerated in the RfS document or intimated later on, for
compliance.

Reverse auction will be conducted on scheduled date & time, as mentioned in the RfS
document.

Bidders should acquaint themselves of the ‘Business Rules of Reverse Auction’, which is
enclosed separately in the RfS document.

If the Bidder or any of his representatives are found to be involved in Price manipulation/ cartel
formation of any kind, directly or indirectly by communicating with other bidders, action as per
extant SIVN guidelines, shall beinitiated by SIVN.

The Bidder shall not divulge either his Bids or any other exclusive details of SIVN to any other
party.

Period of validity of Prices recelved through Reverse Auction shall be same as that of the
period of validity of bids offered.

Bidders should also note that:
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Although extension time is ‘8’ minutes, there is a time lag between the actual placing the
bid on the local computer of the bidder and the refreshing of the data on to the serverfor the
visibility to the Owner. Considering the processing time for data exchange and he possible
network congestion, bidders must avoid the last minute hosting of the Financial Bid during
reverse auction.

Participating bidder will agree to non-disclosure of trade information regarding the
purchase, identity of SIVN, bid process, bid technology, bid documentation and bid details.

It is brought to the attention of the bidders that the bid event will lead to the final price of
bidders only Technical and other non-commercial queries (not impacting price) can only be
routed to the SIVN contact personnel indicated in the RfS document.

Order finalization and post order activities such issue of LOA, signing of PPA etc. would be
transacted directly between successful bidder(s) and SIVN.

LOA shall be placed outside the ETS e-portal & further processing of the LOA shall also be
outside the system.

In case of any problem faced by the bidder during Reverse Auction and for all Bidding
process related queries, bidders are advised to contact the persons indicated in Annexure - C
of the RfS document.

Bidders are advised to visit the auction page and login into the system well in advance
identify/ rectify the problems to avoid last minute hitches.

SIVN will not be responsible for any PC configuration/ Java related issues, software/
hardware related issues, telephone line glitches and breakdown/ slow speed in internet
connection of PC at Bidder’s end.

Bidders may note that it may not be possible to extend any help, during Reverse Auction,
over phone or in person in relation to rectification of PC/ Internet/ Java related issues and
Bidder may lose the chance of participation in the auction.

For access to the Reverse Auction site, the following URL is to be used:
https://mww.bhar at-el ectronictender.com.

10) No queries shall be entertained while Reverse Auction isin progress.

BUSINESS RULES OF REVERSE AUCTION

Reverse Auction shall be conducted as per methodology specified in Section - 5 and other
provisions of Reverse Auction in RfS documents and their subsequent Amendments/
Clarifications Addenda. Bidders, in their own interest, are advised to go through the
documentsin entirety.

The following would be parameters for e-Reverse Auction:

. Parameters Value
No.
Date and Time of Reverse-Auction Bidding To be intimated Later to
1 | Event Eligible Bidders
2. | Duration of Reverse-Auction Bidding Event 60 minutes
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Automatic extension of the ‘Reverse-Auction closing
Time’, if last bid received is within a ‘Predefined
3, Time-Duration” before the ‘Reverse-Auction Closing | v g
Time’
3.1 | Pre-defined Time-Duration 08 Minutes
3.2 | Automatic extension Time-Duration 08 Minutes
3.3 | Maximum number of Auto-Extension Unlimited Extension
A Bidder/s can go on
‘Decreasing’ his own bid value
4 | Criteriaof Bid-Acceptance without taking into cognizance
the Starting Price’ or ‘Rank-1’
bid
Tariff quoted by the biddersin
5. | Entity-Start-Price Financial  Bid  (Second
Envelope)
6. | Minimum Bid-Decrement 0.01INR

Online Reverse Auction shall be conducted by SIVN on pre-specified date and time, while the
bidders shall be quoting from their own offices place of their choice. Internet connectivity shall
have to be ensured by bidders themselves.

During the Reverse Auction, any requests for extension of time will not be considered by SIVN.
Bidders are therefore requested to make all the necessary arrangements/ alternatives whatever
required so that they are able to participate in the Reverse Auction successfully. Failure of power
or loss of connectivity at the premises of bidders during the Reverse Auction cannot be the cause
for not participating in the Reverse Auction. SJVN shall not be responsible for such eventualities.

Bidders are advised to get fully trained and clear al their doubts such as refreshing of
Screen, capacity/ no. of projects being auctioned, auction rules etc.

SIVN reserves the right to cancel/ reschedule/ extend the Reverse Auction process/ tender at any
time, before ordering, without assigning any reason.

SJIVN shall not have any liability to bidders for any interruption or delay in access to the auction
website irrespective of the cause. In such cases, the decision of SIVN shall be binding on the
bidders.

Other terms and conditions shall be as per bidder’s techno-commercia offers and as per the RfS
document and other correspondences, if any, till date
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Annexure- C

CHECK LIST FOR FINANCIAL CLOSURE

(To be signed by the Authorized signatory of the HPD)

(RTSNO. ceevviinennnne. dated ............ ) Last Date for submission of documents related to
Financial Closure............. (18 months/ 24 months from Effective Date of PPA)

Project Company Name:

Project ID:

LoA No.:

Date:

Effective Date of PPA:
Scheduled Commissioning Date:

1) Financia Closure......... (Clause 6.12 of the RfS, including subsequent amendments &
clarifications)
Details Presently indicated in PPA
Location
Technology

In case of tie up through Bank / Financial
| nstitutions: -

Document from Bank / Financia Institutions
certifying arrangement of necessary funds by
way of sanction of Loan (to be enclosed as
Annexure-l).

I n_case of |nternal Resour ces: -

Copy of Board Resolution, Audited/Certified
Balance sheet, Profit

& Loss Account Statement, Bank Statement and
Cash Flow Statement in support of availability
of Interna resources of the Project Company
and of the Company other than Project Company
(in case the required funding will be raised from
Company other than Project Company) (to be
enclosed as Annexure-l).

Performa for the cases where funding will be
from Company other
than Project Company isat ‘A-1".

Certificatefrom all
financial institutions

Note: -
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i.  Copy of Fina Detailed Project Report (DPR) isto be enclosed as Annexure— 11 A.

ii.  Undertaking by the Project Company that all Consents, clearances and permits required
for supply of Power to SIVN as per the terms of PPA have been obtained is to be enclosed
asAnnexure-11 B

2) Copy of Agreement/ MOU entered into / Purchase Order with acceptance, for the supply of
Plants and Equipment (to be enclosed as Annexure-111)

3) Technical Parametersof the Project (Clause ....... of the RfS)

3.0.1 Certificate from Project Company that Technical specifications and directives given in
Annexure-A of the RfSwill be adhered to (to be enclosed as Annexure-1V_A)
3.0.2 Proposed Project configuration as part of DPR of the Project (to be enclosed as Annexure-

1V B)

4) Ownership of the HPD: Latest Shareholding Pattern of the Project Company (including
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCDs), Compulsorily Convertible Preferential
Shares (CCPS) of the Project Company certified by Chartered Accountant (to be
enclosed as Annexure-V A)

Shareholding pattern isnot required to be submitted by a Listed Company.

Note: Declaration of Shareholding Pattern of the Project Company is to be submitted to SIVN
on monthly basis, i.e., by the 10" day of every month for shareholding status of the Company
upto the end of the previous month, till 1 year from the date of commissioning of the project.

5) The above checklist isto facilitate financial closure of projects. For any interpretation the
respective provision of RfS/ PPA shall prevail
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Performa ‘A-1°
For caseswherefunding will befrom a Company other than Project Company

Board Resolution from .........cccc...... (Name of the Company from where the required
funding will be raised)

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY AT THEIR MEETING HELD
ON...........c.. AT.......... THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY

RESOLVED that approval of the Board be and is hereby accorded to the company extending
unconditional and full financial support whether by way of equity, debt, or a combination thereof,

towards meeting the full project cost of Rs.............. (in words and figures) to
M/s............ (Name of Project Company), a company within the meaning of The Companies Act,
1956 and/or The Companies Act, 2013, and having its registered office at................ which was
selected by SIVN Limited (SIVN) to develop the...... MW RE Power Project (Project ID...), for
generation and sale of RE power under the RfS No. ............... in respect of which Power
Purchase Agreement (PPA) was signed between SIVN and ............ (Name of Project Company).
Funds will be released for the project as per the request of ......... (Name of Project Company) to

meet the financial requirement for the said Project.
Board Resolution from................ (Project Company)

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY OF THE RESOLUTION PASSED BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY AT THEIR MEETING HELD ON .......... AT....... THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY

RESOLVED that approva of the Board be and is hereby accorded to the Company which was
selected by SIVN Limited (SIVN) to develop the...... MW RE Power Project (Project ID......... ),
for generation and sale of RE power under the RfS No................ in respect of which Power
Purchase Agreement (PPA) was signed between SIVN and ....... the Company, to request and
undertake to accept unconditional and full financial support and getting release of funds for
project as per requirement from the Company i.e. .................. , @ Company within the meaning
of The Companies Act, 1956 and/or The Companies Act, 2013, and having its registered office
a........... whether by way of equity, debt, or a combination thereof for meeting the financial
reguirements of the project being developed by the Project Company.

Further Resolved that in the event the Company i.e., agrees to extend full financial support as
sought above, Sh............. Director, Sh ............. Director.... be and are hereby severdly or
collectively authorized to accept any terms and conditions that may be imposed
DY (Name of the Company), for extending such support and that they are also
severally or collectively authorized to sign such documents, writings as may be necessary in this
connection.
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Annexure-D

[Hlustration regar ding applicability of liquidated damages on account of shortfall in
Power Supply (Clause 6.7.2, Section VI of the RfS)

% Assumptions

i) Tota contracted capacity = 500 MW

i) Annual CUF declared by HPD = 35 %

iii) Permissible lower limit of annual CUF=35 % - 3.5 % =31.5 %
iv) Applicable Tariff: Rs.3.00/ kWh

Shortfall in annual offering of enerqgy from Hybrid sour ces:

1) Total Hybrid RE power offered (MWh) for the corresponding month = 1,08,000 MWh
(Considering tentative CUF of 30.00 %)

Total Hybrid RE power offered (MWh) for the year = (Summation of Power (MWh) offered for
each month) = 1,08,000 x 12 = 12,96,000 MWh

2) Minimum annual energy from Hybrid power sources committed at the time of bid submission =
500 x 8766 x 0.315 = 13,80,645 MWh (at 31.50% availahility)

3) Thus, Annual Shortfall in energy offered through Hybrid RE power in the year = 1380645-
1296000 = 84,645 MWh

4) Damages due to shortfal in Hybrid RE power offered for the year = (Annua shortfall x
Applicable RE Tariff x 1000) = 84645 x 3.00 x 1.5 x 1000 = Rs. 38,09,02,500/-

As per the provisions of the RfS and PPA, both damages will be levied on the developer for the
corresponding Contract Year

Note: The above illustration has been provided for a sample monthly data, based on assumptions
as indicated. Actual calculations for liquidated damages will be made for the yearly data as per
REA.

----------------------------------- END OF  SECTION  --semcmsmmmmmmcomoccoceeeee
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